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A t Great Eastern, we believe in everyone’s potential to achieve what 
is meaningful, and we take pride to protect, preserve and grow 

what matters to our customers.
 
From the development of holistic solutions to supporting our 
communities,  our customers have always been at the heart of all 
that we do. We believe that by protecting our customers against life’s 

greatest version of themselves.
 
The theme of our 2022 Annual Report is inspired by our most recent 
brand refresh in over 10 years that has been informed by an extensive 
consumer survey carried out across Singapore, Malaysia and Indonesia. 
Our new brand promise, Reach for Great, is a directional signpost that 
will elevate our business to deliver value to our customers, partners, 

 
As we journey together, we will all Reach for Great to create strong and 
happy communities of customers, stakeholders and staff.
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MR NORMAN KA CHEUNG IP
Chairman
Board Member

Mr Norman Ip was appointed to the Board of 
Directors ("Board") of Great Eastern General 
Insurance (Malaysia) Berhad (the "Company") on 8 
August 2014 as an Independent Director and 
Chairman of the Board. He was re-elected as the 
Company Director on 13 April 2021. He is also the 
Chairman of various Great Eastern subsidiaries in 
Malaysia.

Mr Norman Ip is currently a Director of QAF Limited 
and a Member of Securities Industry Council.

Mr Norman Ip was previously the Group Managing 
Director of United Engineers Limited, Deputy 
Chairman of Building and Construction Authority, 
Chairman of Malaysia Smelting Corporation Bhd, UE 
E&C Ltd, WBL Corporation Limited and Director of 
Australia Oriental Minerals NL, Great Eastern 
Holdings Limited, The Great Eastern Life Assurance 
Company Limited and Great Eastern General 
Insurance Limited. He is a Chartered Accountant by 
training and has over 40 years of commercial 
experience in finance and investments, real estate 
and managing companies. From 2000 to 2009, he 
was President and Group CEO of The Straits Trading 
Company Limited (“STC”), the main activities of 
which are in real estate, mining and hospitality. Prior 
to joining STC in 1983, he was with Ernst & Whinney 
(now known as Ernst & Young LLP).

Shareholding in the Company
Nil

Current Directorships (and Appointments)

1. Great Eastern Capital
 (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Chairman

2. Great Eastern Life
 Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad Chairman

3. Great Eastern Takaful Berhad Chairman

4. I Great Capital Holdings Sdn Bhd Chairman

5. Overseas Assurance Corporation
 (Holdings) Berhad Chairman

6. QAF Limited* Director

7. Securities Industry Council Member

* Listed Company

Academic and Professional Qualifications
Bachelor of Science (Economics), London School of 
Economics and Political Science
Fellow of the Institute Chartered Accountants in 
England and Wales
Fellow of the Institute of Singapore Chartered 
Accountants

Board Committees Served on
Member, Board Nominations and Remuneration 
Committee
Member, Board Audit Committee
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MS MIMI SZE HO
Board Member

Ms Ho was appointed to the Company’s Board on 17 
February 2020 as an Independent Director. She was 
re-elected as the Company Director on 12 April 2023

Ms Ho currently serves as a Director in The Great 
Eastern Life Assurance Company Limited and Great 
Eastern General Insurance Limited.

Ms Ho was previously a Director of Regulatory 
Professional Pte Ltd, Partner Reinsurance Asia Pte 
Ltd, Asia Pacific Clear Pte Ltd, Asia Pacific Exchange 
Pte Ltd, Central Provident Fund Board, a Director 
and Member of the Finance Committee of Assisi 
Hospice. She was also an Executive Director with the 
Monetary Authority of Singapore ("MAS") from 
March 1998 to September 2008 in various capacities 
including Insurance Supervision, Capital Markets 
Supervision, Financial Markets Development and 
Chief Representative for MAS in New York and 
London. She was also a Member of the Disciplinary 
Committee for Casino Regulatory Authority. Prior to 
that, she was the Chief Financial Officer and 
Appointed Actuary for Prudential Assurance 
Company Singapore Pte Ltd from February 1994 to 
February 1998.

Shareholding in the Company
Nil

Current Directorships (and Appointments)
1. The Great Eastern Life
 Assurance Company Limited Director

2. Great Eastern General Insurance
 Limited Director

Academic and Professional Qualifications
Master in Mathematical Statistics, Columbia 
University, United States of America
Bachelor in Mathematics, Columbia University, 
United States of America
Fellow of the Society of Actuaries, United States of 
America
Financial Industry Certified Professional (FICP), 
Singapore

Board Committees Served on
Member, Board Audit Committee
Member, Board Risk Management Committee
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MR KHOR HOCK SENG
Board Member

Mr Khor was appointed to the Company’s Board on 1 
March 2016 as a Non-Independent Non-Executive 
Director. He was redesignated as an Executive 
Director on 3 August 2016. He was re-elected as the 
Company Director on 12 April 2023. Mr. Khor is also a 
Director of Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) 
Berhad and Great Eastern Takaful Berhad.

Mr Khor presently sits on the Board of several 
companies within the Great Eastern Group in 
Singapore, Malaysia and Indonesia.

Shareholding in the Company
Nil

Current Directorships (and Appointments)

1. Great Eastern Financial Advisers

 Private Limited  Chairman

2. Lion Global Investors Limited Chairman

3. PT Great Eastern Life President
 Indonesia Commissioner

4. PT Great Eastern General President 
 Insurance Indonesia Commissioner

5. Great Eastern Capital
 (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Director

6. Great Eastern Life Assurance
 (Malaysia) Berhad  Director

7. Great Eastern International
 Private Limited  Director

8. Great Eastern Takaful Berhad Director

9. I Great Capital Holdings
 Sdn Bhd Director

10. Overseas Assurance
 Corporation (Holdings) Berhad  Director

11. The Great Eastern Trust
 Private Limited Director

12. 218 Orchard Private Limited Director

13. Financial Industry Disputes
 Resolution Centre Ltd Director

14. Life Insurance Association
 Singapore President

15. Institute of Banking and Council
 Finance Member

16. Financial Sector Tripartite
 Committee Member

17. Singapore College of Board of 
 Insurance Governors

Academic and Professional Qualifications
Bachelor of Art (Majoring in Actuarial Science 
and Statistics), Macquarie University Sydney, 
Australia
Certificate of Actuarial Techniques, Institute of 
Actuaries, London

Board Committee Served on
Nil
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YBHG DATUK KAMARUDDIN BIN TAIB
Board Member

YBhg Datuk Kamaruddin Bin Taib was appointed to 
the Company’s Board on 22 April 2016 as an 
Independent Director. He was re-elected as the 
Company Director on 13 April 2021. He was the 
Chairman of Great Eastern Takaful Berhad from 
2010 to 2019 and a Director of Great Eastern Life 
Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad until 1 March 2019.

YBhg Datuk Kamaruddin is currently the Chairman 
of HSBC Bank Malaysia Berhad and Malaysian Life 
Reinsurance Group Berhad. He also serves as a 
Director in several companies, namely Fraser & 
Neave Holdings Berhad, Malaysia Smelting 
Corporation Berhad, RAM Holdings Berhad, FIDE 
Forum, Maksud Sdn Bhd and Harta Maksud Sdn 
Bhd. He is well experienced in merchant banking, 
investment banking, corporate finance and mergers 
& acquisition. Apart from the experience serving on 
the board of companies listed on Bursa Malaysia, his 
experiences include serving on the board of 
companies listed on the Stock Exchange of India as 
well as on the NASDAQ (USA).

Shareholding in the Company
Nil

Current Directorships (and Appointments)

1. HSBC Bank Malaysia Berhad Chairman

2. Malaysian Life Reinsurance
 Group Berhad Chairman

3. Fraser & Neave Holdings Berhad* Director

4. Malaysia Smelting Corporation
 Berhad* Director

5. RAM Holdings Berhad Director

6. FIDE FORUM Director

7. Harta Maksud Sdn Bhd Director

8. Maksud Sdn Bhd Director

* Listed Companies

Academic and Professional Qualifications
Bachelor of Science in Mathematics, University of 
Salford, United Kingdom

Board Committees Served on
Chairman, Board Risk Management Committee 
Member, Board Nominations and Remuneration 
Committee
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MDM TAN FONG SANG
Board Member

Mdm Tan was appointed to the Company’s Board on 
10 March 2017 as an Independent Director. She was 
re-elected as the Company Director on 13 April 
2022. She was also a Director of Great Eastern Life 
Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad until 31 July 2019.

Mdm Tan is currently a Director of Fraser & Neave 
Holdings Berhad and Crystal Coast Sdn Bhd. She 
was previously a Director in several subsidiaries of 
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited 
(“OCBC”), namely e2 Power Sdn Bhd, OCBC Credit 
Berhad, OCBC Capital (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd and OCBC 
Advisers (M) Sdn Bhd. She held various executive 
positions in OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad, including 
the Chief Financial Officer, a position which she held 
until her retirement in 2012.

Shareholding in the Company
Nil

Current Directorships (and Appointments)

1. Fraser & Neave Holdings Berhad* Director

2. Crystal Coast Sdn Bhd Director

* Listed Company

Academic and Professional Qualifications
Bachelor of Accounting, National University of 
Malaysia
Chartered Accountant registered with the Malaysian 
Institute of Accountants

Board Committee Served on
Chairman, Board Audit Committee
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MR LAI CHIN TAK
Board Member

Mr Lai was appointed to the Company’s Board on 1 
November 2019 as an Independent Director. He was 
re-elected as the Company Director on 13 April 
2022.

Mr Lai was previously a Director of G3 Global 
Berhad. He held various leadership roles in Malaysia 
and the region, moving from a marketing role with 
Oracle Malaysia before joining mobile 
telecommunications provider Celcom (now known as 
Celcom Axiata) as its Senior Vice President in 2002 
to 2005. Subsequently, he went on to head TM Net 
Sdn Bhd as its Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) from 
2005 to 2006. He then assumed the post of CEO of 
Packet One Networks (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd (P1) from 
2007 to 2013. From 2013 to 2015, he was the 
President Director/CEO of Innovate Indonesia (now 
known as MyRepublic Indonesia) and assumed the 
post of Group Director of Singapore-based 
MyRepublic Group from 2015 to 2017.

Shareholding in the Company
Nil

Current Directorships (and Appointments)
Nil

Academic and Professional Qualifications
Master of Business Administration, Oklahoma State 
University, United States of America
Bachelor of Electrical Engineering, Queen’s 
University, Canada

Board Committee Served on
Member, Board Risk Management Committee
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NG KOK KHENG
Chief Executive Officer

KHOO SOOK HOOI
Chief Financial Officer

WILLIAM TAN WEE LENG
Division Head, Agency Distribution

STEVEN TAI MIOW CHONG
Division Head, Corporate Distribution

CHEW HAN WAH
Appointed Actuary

JARRON KHOO ENG SIONG
Division Head, Underwriting
& Policy Processing Management

EILEEN YAP AI LING
Division Head, Claims Management
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The year in review was tumultuous with mixed economic signals. 
On one hand, there were several positive developments: 
unemployment rates fell in many parts around the world, 
businesses were open after disruptions due to the pandemic, and 
financial markets generally performed well. However, several 
challenges remained including soaring inflation, and higher 
energy costs brought about by the Russia-Ukraine conflict. 
Overall, there were reasons for both optimism and caution with the 
global economy in a period of significant transition and 
uncertainty.

Domestically, the Malaysian economy continued on its journey of 
economic recovery, with Malaysia’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) 
nominal growth rate of 9% surpassing pre-pandemic levels. The 
World Bank has projected the Malaysian economy to continue 
growing by 4% in 2023 amid an expected slowdown in external 
demand. 

I am glad to say that GEGM has benefitted from the strong recovery of the Malaysian economy. 
Through strategic partnerships and close collaboration between our distribution channels, the 
Company has grown and thrived despite a challenging year to deliver strong financial results. 
Nevertheless, the team will remain cautious and practice underwriting prudence as we continue on our 
upwards trajectory.

We Continuously Strive for Greatness

In 2022, Great Eastern underwent a re-branding initiative to better reflect our commitment to 
excellence and customer-centricity. It also signals our growth and evolution as a Company. Our new 
tagline, “Reach for Great” plays a critical role in our communication and is a key supporting asset in our 
brand’s expression.  
At GEGM, we live and breathe our tagline “Reach for Great” in everything we do. It captures our spirit 
and serves as a reminder for how we speak, look, and behave every day. Our team is committed to 
building a culture of excellence where reaching for great is not just a tagline but a way of life.

The Company has consistently grown through the times, good or bad. From 2017 to 2022, GEGM’s 
Gross Written Premiums has grown at an average rate of 5%. The success of the Company is not due to 
singular effort, but collective effort. We have dedicated employees and intermediaries who embody our 
guiding core values of Integrity, Initiative, and Involvement. I am enormously grateful to our employees 
for their dedication and hard work and for that, I thank you.

We Reflect On Our Financial Performance

The Company reported a Net Profit After Tax (incl Shareholder Fund) of RM36.6 million for the year 
under review, down 19% from RM45.1 million in 2021. The lower NPAT was anticipated following the 
increase in economic activity and subsequent higher claims. This was reflected in GEGM’s Claims 
Incurred Ratio of 53% in 2022 (FY2021: 48%) which was marginally below the Industry’s average.
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Our Gross Written Premium (GWP) grew by 11% to RM581.3 million surpassing our Budget. This is 
commendable as our growth rate was higher than industry which grew 10%. As a result, our market 
ranking in the Malaysian general insurance market was maintained at 16th in 2022, according to the 
Insurance Services Malaysia Berhad’s Statistical Bulletin for the period of January to December 2022.

Our growth was driven by strong performance from our major distribution channels with Agency 
Distribution, Broking, and Auto Franchise growing 11% collectively. We are confident that we have the 
right team, strategy, and culture in place to build on our successes and we aim to carry this momentum 
into the year 2023 and beyond.

GEGM’s books remain highly diversified with Fire being our largest class of business followed by Motor 
and Personal Accident classes. We will continue our pursuit of a balanced growth strategy with an 
emphasis of growing our personal-line products which are traditionally profitable.

We Look Back on Developments Within Our Company

We are proud to announce that the Company has joined the 30% Club, a global initiative aimed at 
promoting gender diversity and inclusion in the workplace. By joining the 30% Club, we are committing 
to actively working towards increasing the representation of women at all levels in our organization, 
especially leadership positions. I am proud to say that the Senior Leadership in our Management team 
has achieved this goal and we will continue to ensure that diverse representation remains a key focus 
for GEGM. We recognize that diversity goes beyond just gender, and we are committed to creating an 
inclusive workplace where individuals of all backgrounds, experiences, and perspectives feel valued 
and supported.

In July, we implemented Project Allegro, a core system upgrade catered to GEGM that will meet the new 
IFRS17 reporting standard, in addition to other functionality upgrades. While significant progress has 
been made in implementing the system, we have also encountered several unexpected challenges 
along the way. We recognize that these issues may have caused disruptions to our employees and 
customers. Management has given assurance that we are doing everything in our power to resolve 
them as quickly as possible. Our IT team is working around the clock to identify and address issues that 
may arise. This upgrade has been a significant investment for the Company, and we remain committed 
to delivering the expected benefits to our stakeholders. We appreciate your patience and 
understanding as we work through these challenges; and we are confident that we will prevail and 
emerge with a stronger, more efficient core system that will better serve our customers and employees.

We Are Committed to Driving Business Growth

Growing the business remains a key objective of the Company. In order to achieve long term success, 
we must seek opportunities for growth and expansion. To this end, we have focused on growing our 
Agency channel. Agency remains an important channel for the general insurance industry, accounting 
for 55% of total GWP in 2022. We understand the importance of our agents, and we value our 
longstanding partnership with our Agency force.
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In 2022, we supported our agents through various initiatives. Throughout the year, six sales campaigns 
were held by Agency Distribution to drive new business and renewal growth. The sales campaigns 
focused on Motor, Personal Accident, Fire, and Home Products. We have also expanded the reach of our 
Agency Distribution channel by aggressively recruiting new agents. We have continued our 
Agent-Get-Agent campaign, a recruitment initiative that encourages existing agents to refer qualified 
candidates from their existing professional and social network. Overall, we were pleased with the 
success of these initiatives which were well-received and helped propel sales growth.

Insurance companies are looking to build distribution channels that are more efficient, cost-effective, 
and customer centric; and digital channels are a key part of this strategy.

Our Digital Affinity channel has benefitted from the full reopening of the economy growing 141% from 
the previous year. We have leveraged on our partnership with Axiata Digital Capital (ADC) to distribute 
motor and bite-sized protection products on the Boost platform at competitive price-points. Our 
Affinity partner, Malindo, has also benefitted from the resurgence of travel and demand for travel PA 
policies. 

Great Eastern Malaysia’s involvement in the life, family takaful, and general insurance business 
presents us with an interesting opportunity of being the one-stop-shop for Malaysian’s protection 
needs. Cross-selling has been a key focus area in the past year. We believe that cross-selling presents 
a significant opportunity for us to acquire new customers, and to enhance customer satisfaction and 
loyalty. Going forward, we remain committed to continuing our cross-selling efforts as we believe it is a 
critical component of our growth strategy and an important way to deepen our relationship with our 
customers.

The promotion of financial inclusion remains a priority for many central banks around the world. Bank 
Negara Malaysia (BNM) has advocated for the development of innovative products that cater to the 
underserved segments of society. Our new Great Shield Special product is a positive step towards this 
goal as it provides insurance coverage to individuals with high risk occupations who may previously 
been unable to obtain protection. Overall, GEGM remains committed to pursuing sustainable, profitable 
growth opportunities that will enable us to achieve our business objectives and create value for our 
stakeholders.

We Are Doing More for the Environment

We have witnessed the far-reaching impact of climate change, with floods, typhoons, and heatwaves 
being reported across the world. Malaysians are no strangers to natural disasters as we recall the 
catastrophic floods towards the end of 2021 which claimed billions of ringgit in damage, lives, 
livelihoods, and destroyed properties. This event which was considered a more than fifty-year return 
period occurrence has raised concerns about the growing intensity and frequency of such disasters. 
The linkage between these events and climate change has become evident. In short, climate change is 
not a local issue; it is a global issue.
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The Malaysian government has pledged to unconditionally reduce carbon emission by 45% by 2030 
(based on 2005 levels). In doing so, they have introduced incentives to propel the use of electric 
vehicles and the adoption of renewable energy. In support of our government’s pledge, Great Eastern 
has begun exploring the development of motor insurance targeted towards electric vehicles, and 
extensions to home insurance products to provide solar power adopters peace of mind with tailored 
products. This is an important step towards encouraging sustainable practices, demonstrating Great 
Eastern’s commitment of moving towards a sustainable future for all.

Great Eastern is a signatory of the United Nation’s Principles for Sustainable Insurance Initiative. We have 
also adopted guidance from the Net Zero Insurance Alliance on underwriting and operational-related 
emissions, with the aim of aligning insurance underwriting to Net Zero by 2050. To help achieve our 
goal, the Company has initiated steering committees to provide strategic guidance to support our 
sustainability goals and targets. We believe that by taking a proactive approach to sustainability, we 
can make a positive impact on the environment while also driving innovation and creating value for our 
stakeholders.

GEGM is committed to promoting sustainable practices both within our organization and in the wider 
community. Our staff plays a crucial role in achieving this goal, which is why we have organized various 
sustainability awareness programs such as recycling campaigns, World Water Day, and Earth Day. By 
actively engaging with our employees in these efforts, we are able to raise awareness about the 
importance of sustainable living, as well as foster a sense of shared responsibility and collaboration. 
Sustainability is after all a collective effort where we all have a role to play in creating a more 
sustainable future.

We Care About the Communities We Protect

Caring for community is a core value that we hold in high regard. We recognize that we are a part of a 
larger ecosystem that includes not only our employees, customers, and stakeholders, but also the 
communities in which we operate. Our Company has a long history of supporting local charities, and 
non-profit organizations that align with our values. In the past year, we contributed over RM50,000 
towards charitable causes benefitting special needs children, abandoned elderly, rural communities, 
palliative care patients, and humanitarian organizations.

We believe that it is our responsibility to give back and support these communities in meaningful ways. 
We contributed towards the upgrading and construction of Community Learning Centers in rural 
Sabah, and the setting up of computer laboratories in four schools in Perak through our contribution to 
the Touching Lives Club, and Medical Awareness Camp Outreach (MACO). We also continued our support 
of Hospis Malaysia, an organization that provides palliative care for the underprivileged, by contributing 
towards their Annual Charity Treasure Hunt.

As insurers, we have a responsibility to make protection accessible. We participated in the 
Perlindungan Tenang voucher programme, an initiative by the government to expand social protection 
for the B40 community. We introduced Great Tenang, a personal accident product specifically designed 
for motorcyclists. The product was very well received and I am proud to say that we have done our civic 
duty of being there for our customers, rich or poor. We believe that by caring for our community, we can 
create a better world for everyone.
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We Care About the Wellbeing and Development of Our Staff

We recognize that our employees are our most valuable asset. A healthy, happy, and motivated 
workforce is essential to our success and ability to better serve our customers. That is why we have 
introduced Family Friday, a new initiative that allows our employees to leave work early on a selected 
Friday of each month. This initiative provides staff with the opportunity to spend time with family or 
friends, or simply recharge after a busy workweek. We have received positive feedback from our staff 
regarding this initiative, and we believe that it will help us attract and retain top talent by demonstrating 
our commitment to their well-being.

The potential of our employees is paramount to our success. GEGM is committed to providing ongoing 
training and upskilling opportunities for our staff. We continued to sponsor learning by supporting 30 
employees with external certifications such as the AMII, CMII, and the Certificate of Fire Risk 
Assessors. We also leveraged on IT learning resources including LinkedIn Learning, ensuring that 
learning resources are easily accessible from anywhere and anytime. Through the use of these 
resources, we were able to train our staff in a cost effective and flexible manner, while also promoting 
continuous learning and development.

Great Eastern’s HR programmers and employer branding efforts continued to garner accolades from 
several award bodies. The Company received the Gold Award for ‘Best Employee Wellness Strategy’ 
and ‘Excellence in Retention Strategy’ from Human Resources Online. The Company was also 
acknowledged as one of HR Asia’s ‘Best Company to Work for in Asia 2022’ (Malaysia edition) for the 
seventh consecutive year. The dedication of our Human Capital team in creating a supportive and 
inclusive culture has been instrumental in attracting and retaining top talent. We are proud and grateful 
for their contribution to the Company.

We Look Towards the Future

Despite achieving significant growth and success in the past, GEGM is committed to staying ahead of 
the competition by anticipating industry developments and the evolving needs of our customers. As 
part of BNM’s push for a more inclusive, competitive, and efficient financial system, the Central Bank 
has begun laying the licensing and regulatory framework for Digital Insurers and Takaful Operators 
(DITOs). 

We recognize the potential benefits of DITOs such as increased access and affordability for consumers. 
However, our Company will not be applying for a DITO license at this juncture. Instead, we will be 
focusing our efforts on our Affinity channel which has been a key area of growth for us. Our Affinity 
channel has allowed us to establish deep strategic partnerships by offering bite-sized insurance 
products on the Boost platform. This has proven to be a successful strategy as it allows us to leverage 
our expertise in underwriting while also providing tailored solutions to meet the needs of our 
customers.

While we are optimistic about opportunities that lie ahead, we also recognize new challenges that are 
emerging in the insurance industry. One of the most significant challenges we face is the impact of 
climate change which is causing an increase in natural disasters and catastrophic events. This in turn is 
leading to higher claims, putting pressure on insurers to either raise premiums or reduce coverage.
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To address this, we are taking proactive approaches to better understand the risks associated with 
climate change. For instance, we have formed a task force with the aim of developing a predictive flood 
modelling tool. This tool which uses advanced analytics to forecast potential flood scenarios will allow 
us to better assess flood risk and adjust premiums accordingly. We are confident that this tool will be a 
game-changer, allowing us to protect our customers more effectively. 

GEGM will remain agile and responsive to new opportunities and challenges. We believe that our focus 
on customer centricity will allow us to thrive in the years ahead. We look forward to collaborating with 
our stakeholders to provide value to our customers to ensure long term success.

Sincerely yours, 

NG KOK KHENG
Chief Executive Officer
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Wisma Great Eastern, 03-01, Blok A
Komersil Southkey Mozek, Persiaran Southkey 1,
Kota Southkey, 80150 Johor Bahru, Johor
Tel: +607 336 9899  |  Fax: +607 336 9869
Asst. Vice President: Gan Ai Ling

3rd Floor, No. 10, Jalan Tiara 2A
Bandar Baru Klang, 41150 Klang, Selangor
Tel: +603 3345 1027  |  Fax: +603 3345 1029
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Manager: Kenny Law Shang Neng
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Manager: Danny Loh Jui Jong
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Head, Northern Region: Ewe Joo Beng

No. 103-2, Jalan Yam Tuan
70000 Seremban, Negeri Sembilan
Tel: +606 764 9082  |  Fax: +606 761 6178
Manager: Mavis Lau Wai Mei

Wisma Great Eastern, 2nd Floor, No. 10 A-F
Persiaran Brooke, 96000 Sibu, Sarawak
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Manager: Steven Ngui Sieng Chong

No. 69 & 70, 1st Floor, Jalan Teluk Wanjah
05200 Alor Setar, Kedah
Tel: +604 734 6515  |  Fax: +604 734 6516
Manager: Wilson Tan Seang Ping 

Wisma Great Eastern, 2nd Floor
No. 16, Persiaran Tugu, Greentown Avenue
30450 Ipoh, Perak
Tel: +605 253 6649  |  Fax: +605 255 3066
Asst. Vice President: Jade Yeo Jiat Yee

HEAD OFFICE
Menara Great Eastern, Level 18, 303, Jalan Ampang, 50450 Kuala Lumpur
Customer Careline: 1300-1300 88   Fax: +603 4813 0055
E-Mail: gicare-my@greateasterngeneral.com   Website: www.greateasterngeneral.com
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4th Floor, 109 Jalan Rahmat
83000 Batu Pahat, Johor
Tel:  +607 432 2357
Fax:  +607 432 2359

3rd Floor, Lots 1260 & 1261
Block 10 M.C.L.D, Jalan Melayu
98000 Miri, Sarawak
Tel:  +6085 421 299
Fax:  +6085 433 276

1st Floor, Lot 5 & 6, Block 40
Lorong Indah 15,
Bandar Indah Phase 7, 
Mile 4, North Road
90000 Sandakan, Sabah
Tel:  +6089 228 769

Wisma Great Eastern
3rd Floor, Jalan Billian   
91008 Tawau, Sabah
Tel:  +6089 755 882
Fax:  +6089 767 013

No. 60, 1st Floor, Jalan Okid,
28400 Mentakab, 
Pahang.
Tel:  +609 270 9358
Fax:  +609 270 9359

BATU
PAHAT

MIRI

SANDAKAN

TAWAU

MENTAKAB
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ABOUT GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD

Great Eastern General Insurance (Malaysia) Berhad (GEGM) started operations in Kuala Lumpur in 1954 
as a branch of Great Eastern General Insurance Limited, Singapore. The Company’s early focus was in 
general insurance but it expanded its life insurance business in 1963, making GEGM one of the earliest 
composite insurers in Malaysia.

In 1998, the branch operations were restructured to become a locally incorporated subsidiary of Great 
Eastern General Insurance Limited, Singapore to comply with the requirements of the Malaysian 
Insurance Act 1996. 

By 2000, GEGM was one of the largest providers of life, health and general insurance in Malaysia. With 
the merger of Great Eastern General Insurance Limited, Singapore and Great Eastern Holdings Limited, 
Singapore in December 2000, GEGM’s life insurance business was transferred to Great Eastern Life 
Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad in September 2001. Arising from this development, GEGM is now a pure 
general insurance operator that spearheads the Great Eastern Group’s development and expansion in 
the general insurance sector. 

GEGM had officially acquired the general insurance business of Tahan Insurance Malaysia Berhad 
(“Tahan”) with effect from 1 January 2011. Following the acquisition, Tahan’s entire general insurance 
business was transferred to GEGM.

As at 31 December 2022, GEGM has total assets in excess of RM 1,750 million with a paid-up capital of 
RM 100 million and a network of 13 branches with more than 3,000 agents.

BUILDING CONFIDENCE AND TRUST

At GEGM, building confidence and trust has always been the core. We put customers first by treating 
them as partners, fostering trust and respect through our unwavering commitment and 
uncompromising quality of service.

Trust comes with confidence. Our clients enjoy this confidence through our established corporate 
reputation and our affiliation with the Great Eastern and OCBC Group. With a legacy of integrity and 
professionalism, as well as the financial security and stability of the Group, GEGM is well positioned to 
continue its growth and expansion in years to come.

RM million

2018

Gross Premium Income

Total Assets At Market Value:
General Insurance
Shareholders' Fund

Underwriting Profit (before tax)
Operating Profit (after tax)

Total Assets

498.61

980.34
108.93

12.28
43.48

1,089

2020

527.04

1,115.81
116.95

31.17
55.37

1,233

2019

523.36

1,070.84
113.30

20.74
59.38

1,184

2021

521.86

1,586.33
117.93

37.67
45.14

1,704

2022

581.30

1,630.14
120.51

24.85
36.58

1,750



DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements 
of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is underwriting of all classes of general insurance business.

RESULTS
RM

Net profit for the year   36,584,809

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than 
as disclosed in the financial statements.

In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Company during the financial year 
were not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

DIVIDENDS

The amounts of dividend paid by the Company since 31 December 2021 were as follows:
RM

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2021 as reported in the
 Directors' report of that year:

Final single-tier dividend of RM0.45 per ordinary share on
 100,000,000 ordinary shares paid on 28 April 2022   45,000,000

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company, a final single-tier dividend in 
respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2022 of RM0.36 per ordinary share on 100,000,000 
ordinary shares, amounting to a dividend payable of RM36,000,000 will be proposed for shareholder's 
approval.

The financial statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such 
dividend, if approved by the shareholder, will be accounted for in the shareholder's equity as 
appropriation of retained earnings in the next financial year ending 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors of the Company in office since the beginning of the financial year to the 
date of this report are:

Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip (Chairman)
Mr Koh Poh Tiong
Ms Mimi Sze Ho
Mr Khor Hock Seng
Y Bhg Datuk Kamaruddin bin Taib
Mdm Tan Fong Sang
Mr Lai Chin Tak

In accordance with Clause 74 of the Company's Constitution, Ms Mimi Sze Ho and Mr Khor Hock Seng 
respectively would retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer 
themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS' BENEFITS

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any 
arrangement to which the Company was a party, whereby the Directors might acquire benefits by 
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, other 
than the options over shares in the Company's ultimate holding company as disclosed in this report.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive a 
benefit (other than benefits included in the aggregate amount of remuneration received or due and 
receivable by the Directors or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company as shown in 
Notes 22(b) and 29(b) to the financial statements amounted to RM982,050) by reason of a contract 
made by the Company or a related corporation with any Director or with a firm of which the Director is 
a member or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest required to be 
disclosed under Fifth Schedule, Part 1 Section 3 of the Companies Act 2016.

A Director and Officer's Liability Insurance has been entered into by the Company for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2022 pursuant to Section 289 of the Companies Act 2016. The cost of insurance 
effected for the Directors and officers of the Company amounted to RM37,260.
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Shareholdings in which
Directors have a direct interest

1.1.2022 Acquired 31.12.2022

a) Ordinary shares of OCBC Bank

 Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip

 Ms Mimi Sze Ho

 Mr Khor Hock Seng

 Mdm Tan Fong Sang

 4,614

2,756

 586,596

61,273

-

-

 109,380

10,079

-

-

 (135,000)

-

 4,614

 2,756

 560,976

 71,352

Notes:

(1) Deemed interest arising from OCBC Deferred Share Plan.
(2) Deemed interest arising from shareholdings by spouse.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (“OCBC Bank”), a public-listed 
company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore, as the ultimate holding company of the Company.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

According to the register of Directors' shareholdings, the interests of the Directors in office at the end 
of the financial year in shares and options over shares in the Company's ultimate holding company, 
OCBC Bank during the financial year were as follows:

Shareholdings in which Directors are deemed
to have an interest

1.1.2022 Acquired 31.12.2022

 Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip

 Ms Mimi Sze Ho

 Mr Khor Hock Seng

10,340(2)

11,357

280,067(2)

-

-

 (109,380)

-

-

 123,361

 10,340

11,357

266,086

Disposed

Disposed
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS (CONT'D.)

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors in office at the end of the financial year had any 
interest in shares in the Company or its related corporations during the financial year.

Options held by Directors in their own name

31.12.2022ExercisedGranted1.1.2022

b) Options to subscribe
 for ordinary shares of 
 OCBC Bank

 Mr Khor Hock Seng 272,135  -  - 272,135

 Mdm Tan Fong Sang 10,079 - 10,079 -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURES

The Company has taken concerted steps to comply with Bank Negara Malaysia (“BNM”) Policy 
Document on Corporate Governance issued on 3 August 2016 (the “CG PD”). The Company is 
committed to the standards and practices prescribed in this policy document.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

(a) Before the statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss of the Company were 
made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:

 (i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the 
making of provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had 
been written off and that adequate provision had been made for doubtful debts; and

 (ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown in the 
accounting records in the ordinary course of business have been written down to an amount 
which they might be expected so to realise.

(b) At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render:

 (i) the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of provision for doubtful debts in the 
financial statements of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; and

 (ii) the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Company misleading.

(c)  At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which 
would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Company 
misleading or inappropriate.

(d) At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with 
in this report or in the financial statements of the Company which would render any amount stated 
in the financial statements misleading.
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONT'D.)

(e) At the date of this report, there does not exist:

 (i) any charge on the assets of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year 
which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

 (ii) any contingent liability in respect of the Company which has arisen since the end of the 
financial year.

(f) In the opinion of the Directors:

 (i) no contingent liability or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become 
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which will or 
may affect the ability of the Company to meet its obligations as and when they fall due; and

 (ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between 
the end of the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the 
results of the operations of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

(g) Before the statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss of the Company were 
made out, the Directors took reasonable steps to ascertain that there was adequate provision for its 
insurance contract liabilities in accordance with the valuation method specified in Part D of the 
Risk-Based Capital Framework for insurers issued by BNM.

For the purpose of paragraphs (e)(ii) and (f)(i) above, contingent or other liabilities do not include 
liabilities arising from contracts of insurance underwritten in the ordinary course of business of the 
Company.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

There were no subsequent events after the financial year.
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AUDITORS

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146), have expressed their 
willingness to continue in office. Auditors' remuneration of the Company for the financial year ended 31 
December 2022 amounted to RM380,140 are set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

There was no indemnity given to, or insurance effected for auditors of the Company in respect of the 
liability for any act or omission in their capacity as auditors of the Company during the financial year.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 28 March 2023

Tan Fong Sang
Director

Datuk Kamaruddin bin Taib
Director

24ANNUAL REPORT 2022

DIRECTORS’
REPORT



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURES (as referred to in the Directors' Report)

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Great Eastern General Insurance (Malaysia) Berhad (the 
“Company”) together with the Management places great importance on high standards of corporate 
governance and are committed to upholding values of integrity, honesty and proper corporate conduct 
at all times in the business operations and dealings of the Company.

The Company adopts corporate governance practices as guided by the Bank Negara Malaysia (“BNM”) 
Policy Document on Corporate Governance issued on 3 August 2016 (the “CG PD”) and continues to 
enhance its standards of the overall governance.

BOARD MATTERS

The Board’s Conduct of Affairs

The prime stewardship responsibility of the Board is to ensure the viability and sustainability of the 
Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the Company as a whole while taking 
into account the interests of the shareholders and other stakeholders. The Company has a Board 
Charter approved by the Board.

The Board provides strategic directions to, and oversight of the operations of the Company. The 
principal roles and functions of the Board, as set out in the Board Charter include the following:

(a) reviewing and approving the overall business strategy as well as the organisation structure of the 
Company as developed and recommended by the Management;

(b) ensuring that the decisions and investments are consistent with the long-term strategic goals of 
the Company and reasonable standards of fair dealing with all stakeholders;

(c) ensuring that the interests of shareholders, policyholders and other stakeholders are taken into 
account in managing the Company’s business;

(d) ensuring that the necessary human resources are in place for the Company to achieve its 
objectives;

(e) ensuring that the Company operates in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, as well 
as policies, processes and guidelines approved by the Board, so as to preserve its financial 
integrity;

(f) reviewing and approving any transaction for the acquisition or disposal of assets that is material to 
the Company;
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT'D.)

The Board’s Conduct of Affairs (cont'd.)

(g) overseeing and approving of the Company’s risk appetite to be consistent with the strategic intent, 
operating environment, effective internal controls, capital sufficiency and regulatory standards;

(h) overseeing through the Board Audit Committee, the quality and integrity of the accounting and 
financial reporting systems, disclosure controls and procedures, and system of internal controls;

(i) overseeing, through the Board Risk Management Committee, the establishment and operation of 
an independent risk management system for managing risks on an enterprise-wide basis, the 
adequacy of the risk management function (including ensuring that it is sufficiently resourced to 
monitor risk by the various risk categories and with appropriate independent reporting lines), and 
the quality of the risk management processes and systems;

(j) overseeing through the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee, the selection, 
performance, remuneration and succession planning of the Senior Officers1 and Non-Senior 
Officers2, such that the Board is satisfied with their collective competence to effectively lead the 
operations of the Company;

(k) establishing corporate values and standards, emphasizing integrity, honesty and proper conduct at 
all times, with respect to internal dealings and external transactions, including situations where 
there are potential conflicts of interest;

(l) overseeing, through the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee, the design and 
operation of an appropriate remuneration framework and ensuring that the remuneration practices 
are aligned with the remuneration framework;

(m) reviewing Management’s performance and ensuring that Management formulates policies and 
processes to promote fair practices and high standards of business conduct by staff;

(n) maintaining records of all meetings of the Board and Board Committees, especially with regards to 
records of discussions on key deliberations and decisions taken;

 1 Senior Officers of the Company referred throughout this Corporate Governance Disclosures are the Senior Management 
Team and such other executives as the Board and/or regulator should determine.

   
 2 Non-Senior Officers of the Company referred throughout this Corporate Governance Disclosures are officers with rank of 

Senior Vice Presidents and above who are not members of the Senior Management Team, and officers who are 
categorised as Other Material Risk Takers.
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT'D.)

The Board’s Conduct of Affairs (cont'd.)

(o) overseeing the implementation of the Company’s governance and internal control frameworks, and 
periodically reviewing the frameworks to ensure they remain appropriate in light of material 
changes to the size, nature and complexity of the Company’s operations;

(p) promoting sustainability through appropriate environmental, social and governance considerations 
in the Company’s business strategies;

(q) overseeing and approving the recovery and resolution as well as business continuity plans for the 
Company to restore its financial strength, and to maintain or preserve critical operations and 
services when they come under stress; and

(r) promoting timely and effective communications between the Company and BNM on matters 
affecting or that may affect the safety and soundness of the Company.

Conflicts of Interest

The Company has implemented a Directors’ Conflict of Interest (“COI”) Guide which sets out the 
procedures to address actual and potential conflicts of interest of the Directors. The COI Guide serves 
to safeguard against the risk that a Director’s decision may be unduly influenced by other secondary 
interests, instead of the interests of the Company. Pursuant to the COI Guide, the Directors of the 
Company shall disclose to the Board the nature and extent of their interest whether directly or 
indirectly, in a material transaction or material arrangement with the Company.

Directors with conflicts of interest recuse themselves from discussions and decisions involving the 
issues of conflict.

Board Approval

The Company has adopted internal guidelines on matters that require Board approval. These guidelines 
are communicated to Management in writing. Matters requiring Board approval include but are not 
limited to the overall business strategy and direction, significant policies governing the operations of 
the Company, strategic or significant acquisitions or disposal of assets by the Company, corporate 
restructuring, major corporate initiatives and other activities of a significant nature, dividend policy and 
dividend declaration, all material related party transactions, authority levels for the Company’s core 
functions and outsourcing of core business functions.

The Board approves transactions exceeding certain threshold limits, while delegating authority for 
transactions below the threshold limits to the Board Committees and Management to optimise 
operational efficiency.
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT'D.)

Board Committees

While the Board has ultimate responsibility for the affairs of the Company, it has established a number 
of Board Committees to assist it in carrying out more effective oversight of the operations and business 
affairs of the Company. These Board Committees consist of the Board Audit Committee, Board 
Nominations and Remuneration Committee and Board Risk Management Committee. All the Board 
Committees have been constituted with clear Board-approved terms of reference and any changes 
thereto also require the Board’s approval.

The Board Committees, in carrying out their responsibilities in accordance with their respective terms 
of reference, are also actively involved in assisting the Board to ensure compliance with good corporate 
governance practices by the Company. Minutes of the Board Committees’ meetings, which provide a 
fair and accurate record of the discussions, key deliberations and decisions taken during the meetings, 
are maintained and circulated to the Board. The composition and details of principal roles and 
responsibilities of the Board Committees are set out below.

Board Audit Committee

Under the CG PD, the Board Audit Committee is required to comprise at least three Non-Executive 
Directors, with a majority of them being Independent Directors. The Board Audit Committee must be 
chaired by an Independent Director who is not the Chairman of the Company.

The Board Audit Committee comprises the following Directors:      

•  Mdm Tan Fong Sang, Chairman
•  Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip, Member
• Ms Mimi Sze Ho, Member

All the Members (including the Board Audit Committee Chairman) are Independent Directors.

The Board Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate any matter within its terms of 
reference and has the full co-operation of and access to Management. It has full discretion to invite any 
Director or Senior Officer to attend its meetings. It also has resources to enable it to discharge its 
functions properly.

The functions performed by the Board Audit Committee and details of the Board Audit Committee’s 
activities during 2022 included the following:

(a)  Reviewed with the Internal Auditors –

 (i) their audit plan, evaluation of the system of internal controls and audit reports;
 (ii) the scope and results of the internal audits; and
 (iii) the assistance given by the officers of the Company to the internal auditors.
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT'D.)

Board Audit Committee (cont'd.)

(b)  Reviewed with the External Auditors –

 (i) their audit plan prior to the commencement of the annual audit;

 (ii) the interim financial statements and the audited financial statements of the Company for the 
financial year and the auditors’ report thereon for submission to the Board for consideration 
and approval thereafter;

 (iii) their scope and results of the audit procedures and cost effectiveness, and their independence 
and objectivity taking into consideration factors including the nature and extent of non-audit 
services provided by them (if any);

 (iv) the implications and impact of new or proposed changes in financial reporting standards, 
accounting policies and regulatory requirements on the financial statements together with the 
Senior Officers;

 (v) any significant financial reporting issues, to ensure the integrity of the financial statements of 
the Company; and

 (vi) the assistance given by the officers of the Company, including the internal auditors, to the 
external auditors.

(c) Reviewed the adequacy, independence and effectiveness of the outsourced internal audit function.

(d) Maintained an appropriate relationship with both the internal and external auditors.

(e) Recommended the re-appointment of the external auditors to the Board.

(f) Recommended the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors to the Board.

(g) Reviewed and updated the Board on all related-party transactions.

(h) Monitored compliance with the COI Guide.

The Board Audit Committee, in performing its functions, meets at least once annually with the internal 
and external auditors in separate sessions without the presence of Management, to consider any other 
matters which may be raised privately.

The Board Audit Committee held a total of four meetings in 2022. By invitation, the Board Audit 
Committee meetings were also attended by the internal and external auditors, Executive Director, 
Group Chief Financial Officer, Group Chief Internal Auditor and relevant Senior Officers.
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT'D.)

Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee

Under the CG PD, the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee is required to comprise at least 
three Non-Executive Directors, with a majority of them being Independent Directors. The Board 
Nominations and Remuneration Committee must be chaired by an Independent Director, who is not the 
Chairman of the Company.

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee comprises the following Directors:

•  Mr Koh Poh Tiong, Chairman
•  Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip, Member
• Y Bhg Datuk Kamaruddin bin Taib, Member       

All the Members (including the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee Chairman) are 
Independent Directors.

The responsibilities of the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee are set out in its 
Board-approved terms of reference. The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee reviews the 
Board and Board Committee compositions annually and ensures that there is progressive renewal of 
the Board. It is responsible for identifying candidates for directorship, reviewing and recommending 
nominations and re-nominations of Directors on the Board and Board Committees. It also reviews 
nominations and dismissals or resignations of Senior Officer and Non-Senior Officer positions in the 
Company.

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee is also responsible to recommend to the Board 
for endorsement a framework of Directors’ fees, as well as remuneration of the Senior Officers and 
Non-Senior Officers. For Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers, the framework covers all aspects of 
remuneration including salaries, allowances, bonuses, share options and other incentives and benefits. 
The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee also ensures that the Company’s remuneration 
policies and practices are aligned with the approved framework and that remuneration packages are 
appropriate to attract, retain and motivate the Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers without being 
excessive.            

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee held a total of seven meetings (comprising six 
scheduled and one ad hoc meeting) in 2022.

Board Risk Management Committee

Under the CG PD, the Board Risk Management Committee is required to comprise at least three 
Non-Executive Directors, with a majority of them being Independent Directors. The Board Risk 
Management Committee must be chaired by an Independent Director, who is not the Chairman of the 
Company.
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT'D.)

Board Risk Management Committee (cont'd.)

The Board Risk Management Committee comprises the following Directors:    
     

• Y Bhg Datuk Kamaruddin bin Taib, Chairman
• Mr Lai Chin Tak, Member        
• Ms Mimi Sze Ho, Member

All the Members (including the Board Risk Management Committee Chairman) are Independent 
Directors.

The Board Risk Management Committee is responsible for overseeing all risk management and 
compliance matters which the Company is or may be exposed to (including strategic, market, credit, 
liquidity, insurance, operational, technology, cyber security, information/data loss, regulatory and 
compliance, sustainability and any other category of risks); as well as technology-related matters as 
delegated by the Board or as deemed necessary by the Board Risk Management Committee.

It reviews the overall risk management philosophy, including the risk profile, risk appetite and tolerance 
level, and risk and capital management strategy, guided by the overall corporate strategy and risk 
appetite approved by the Board. The Board Risk Management Committee also assists the Board in 
monitoring the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management processes and systems set up by 
the Company. It oversees the cultivation of a strong risk culture that promotes risk awareness and 
sound risk taking.

The Board Risk Management Committee performs its functions pursuant to its Board-approved terms 
of reference. The terms of reference include endorsement or approval of (where applicable) 
frameworks, policies, charters and strategies for effective risk management of various risk exposures 
including those arising from investment management and asset-liability management; as well as 
review of other financial transactions that exceed the authority limits of the Management Committees. 
Material investment-related activities and transactions are reviewed by the Board Risk Management 
Committee and recommended to the Board for information or approval, as applicable.

In discharging its duties and responsibilities, the Company engages the services of the Risk 
Management and Compliance Departments of Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad 
(“GELM”), which are adequately resourced with experienced and qualified personnel who are 
sufficiently independent to perform their duties objectively. The Risk Management regularly engages 
Senior Officers to develop enterprise-wide risk controls and risk mitigation procedures. The Board Risk 
Management Committee reviews the performance of the outsourced services and its servicing fees 
annually.
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT'D.)

Board Risk Management Committee (cont'd.)

The Board Risk Management Committee meets with the Division Head, Risk Management and the 
Division Head, Compliance at least once a year without the presence of Management to discuss 
matters which may be raised privately.

The Board Risk Management Committee held a total of five meetings in 2022.

The Company’s enterprise risk governance and management objectives and policies and other 
pertinent details are disclosed in Note 31 of the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board meets regularly during the year to review the business performance and key activities of the 
Company, and to deliberate significant business proposals presented by the Management. All 
members of the Board participate actively in Board discussions and decisions are taken objectively in 
the interests of the Company. The Board works with Management to achieve its stated goals and 
Management remains accountable to the Board. Where warranted by particular circumstances, ad hoc 
Board or Board Committee meetings will be convened. In 2022, the Board convened eight scheduled 
and one ad hoc Board meetings.

The contributions of the Directors go beyond attendance at meetings. They individually or collectively 
engage with other Directors and Management outside formal meetings in their oversight of the affairs 
of the Company.

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees via telephone, video conference, or any other similar 
communications equipment are permitted by the Company’s Constitution. If a Director is unable to 
attend a Board or Board Committee meeting, he will still be able to access all the papers and materials 
to be tabled for discussion at that meeting. Directors are provided with complete, adequate and timely 
information related to agenda items before each meeting. Directors are also equipped with electronic 
tablets that allow secured access to Board and Board Committee meeting materials.

All Directors have complied with the minimum requirement of 75% attendance at Board meetings as 
stipulated in the CG PD and Board Charter.
       
The number of meetings of the Board and Board Committees held in 2022 and the attendance of the 
Directors at those meetings are tabulated below:
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT'D.)

Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (cont'd.)

Directors’ attendance at Board and Board Committee meetings in 2022

Notes:
(-) Not applicable to the Non-Member of the respective Board Committees.

AttendedHeldAttended

Scheduled

No. of Meetings

Board Risk
Management Committee

Held

-

-

5

-

5

-

5

-

-

5

-

5

-

5

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Ad hocScheduled

AttendedHeldName of Director

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

No. of Meetings

Board

Mr Normal Ka Cheung Ip

Mr Koh Poh Tiong

Ms Mimi Sze Ho

Mr Khor Hock Seng

Y Bhg Datuk Kamaruddin bin Taib

Mdm Tan Fong Sang

Mr Lai Chin Tak

Name of Director

Scheduled Ad hoc

No. of Meetings

Board Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Scheduled

No. of Meetings

Board Audit Committee

Mr Normal Ka Cheung Ip

Mr Koh Poh Tiong

Ms Mimi Sze Ho

Mr Khor Hock Seng

Y Bhg Datuk Kamaruddin bin Taib

Mdm Tan Fong Sang

Mr Lai Chin Tak

AttendedHeldAttendedHeld

4

-

4

-

-

4

-

4

-

4

-

-

4

-

1

1

-

-

1

-

-

1

1

-

-

1

-

-

AttendedHeld

6

5

-

-

6

-

-

6

6

-

-

6

-

-
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT'D.)

Directors’ attendance at Board and Board Committee meetings in 2022 (cont'd.)

Directors’ attendance at the Annual General Meeting of the Company is not included in the above table.

There were two Joint Board Audit Committee – Board Risk Management Committee meetings held in 
2022. Directors’ attendance at these meetings is not included in the above table. 

The number of meetings indicated in “Held” above reflects the number of meetings held during the 
time the respective Directors held office.

Total number of ad hoc meeting held in 2022 – Board: 1; Board Nominations and Remuneration 
Committee: 1.

Access to Information

The Directors are provided with relevant and timely information by Management on matters to be 
discussed or considered at meetings of the Board and Board Committees. For matters requiring 
approval, information furnished by Management usually includes background explanatory information, 
relevant facts and/or analysis to support the proposal, implications or merits of the case, risk analysis 
and mitigating strategies, the budget (if applicable) and Management’s recommendation. The Senior 
Officers who can provide additional information and insight or provide clarifications to queries raised 
are usually present at the meeting during discussion on such matters. Occasionally, external 
consultants engaged on specific projects may also be invited to brief the Board or Board Committees, 
where relevant. All Board and Board Committees’ members have unfettered access to information, 
which the Company is in possession of or has access to, for the purpose of carrying out their 
responsibilities.

Directors have separate and independent access to the Company Secretary and Senior Officers at all 
times. The Company Secretary attends all Board meetings and prepares minutes of Board proceedings. 
She assists the Chairman to ensure that appropriate Board procedures are followed and that 
applicable regulations are complied with. Under the direction of the Chairman, she ensures good 
information flows within the Board and Board Committees, and between Senior Officers and Directors. 
The Company Secretary also facilitates the orientation of new Directors and professional development 
of Directors, as required. The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is considered to be 
a matter for the Board as a whole.

The Directors may take independent professional advice as and when necessary to enable them to 
discharge their duties effectively. Similarly, the Board and Board Committees may obtain professional 
advice, whenever necessary and appropriate, so as to effectively discharge their roles and 
responsibilities. All engagements of external advisers are at the Company’s expense.
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT'D.)

Board Orientation and Development

A formal appointment letter will be issued to a newly appointed Director, together with a Director’s 
orientation kit which will include key information of the Company, the terms of reference of the Board 
and Board Committees, duties and obligations of Directors as well as relevant rules and regulations. As 
part of the induction programme for new Directors, the Senior Officers will conduct presentation 
sessions on the Company’s principal activities, business operations, staff strengths, and applicable 
rules and regulations. The induction programme will be tailored to the specific development needs of 
the new Directors. The Company constantly reviews and improves on the contents of such 
presentations to new Directors to take into account any new legislative changes which affect the 
Directors and to enable them to have a more comprehensive understanding of the Company, the 
insurance business and practices, and the Company’s financial position.

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee ensures that there is a continuous professional 
development programme for all Directors, to ensure that they are equipped with the appropriate skills 
and knowledge to perform their roles on the Board and Board Committees effectively. The Company 
arranges for new Directors to be briefed on areas such as accounting, risk management, insurance, 
cybersecurity and Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") matters; and facilitates their 
attendance at the mandatory “Financial Institutions Directors’ Education (“FIDE”) Core Programme 
within one year from their date of appointment. Industry-related and topical articles are regularly 
circulated to Directors as part of the Directors’ continuous development programme. The Board 
Nominations and Remuneration Committee also encourages the Directors to be continually updated on 
developments affecting the insurance industry by offering them attendance at appropriate courses, 
conferences and seminars conducted by professional bodies within the industry or other professional 
organisations including programmes conducted by the FIDE FORUM, at their convenience. The 
Company has dedicated sufficient resources towards the on-going development of its Directors. The 
Company arranges for and funds the training and development programmes for existing and new 
Directors. The Company also maintains formal records of the training and development received by its 
Directors.

From time to time, in collaboration with the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee, the 
Board Risk Management Committee organises Board Educational Series, with briefings or 
presentations by external professionals, consultants or Management staff on topics relevant to the 
insurance industry and provides updates on developments in the industry locally.
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BOARD MATTERS (CONT'D.)

Board Orientation and Development (cont'd.)

In 2022, the Directors, collectively or on their own, attended the following seminars, courses and 
briefings organised by professional bodies and regulatory authorities as well as those conducted 
in-house, which were mostly conducted virtually/online:

•  Board Educational Series:
  Climate Impact X
  Directors’ Guide to Crisis Management & Leadership During Crisis
  Implementation of MFRS 17: Transition and Other Updates
  Lesson Learnt from Past Cyber Incidents – Role of Board Members and Management
  Top 5 Cyber Attacks & How to Protect Against It
  Transaction Monitoring - A Better Way to Fight Money Laundering
  Understanding Climate Terminologies

•  Webinar:
  BNM-FIDE FORUM MyFintech Week Masterclasses
  BNM-FIDE FORUM Dialogue: Climate Risk Management and Scenario Analysis
  BNM-FIDE FORUM Dialogue: Licensing Framework for Digital Insurers and Takaful Operators
  Board’s Role in Value Creation
  Engagement session with Board Members of General Insurers and Takaful Operators on Motor 

Claims Reforms
  ESG Series 2022 - Demystifying ESG: From Aspirations to Action - Plan Your ESG Journey: Lessons 

for the Boardroom
  ESG Series 2022 - Demystifying ESG: From Aspirations to Action – Why Investors Care About ESG
  ESG Series 2022 - Demystifying ESG: From Aspirations to Action - ESG + 'T' : Global Megatrends to 

Watch Out For
  FIDE FORUM-International Compliance Association: Can We Win the War against Financial Crime
  ICLIF-FIDE FORUM Joint Event on Steward Leadership for Sustainability
  PIDM-FIDE FORUM: Recovery and Resolution Planning Sharing Session
  Sustainability and Its Impact on Organizations: What Directors Need to Know
  Sustainability in the Energy Sector
  Sustainability & International Trade for Export-Oriented Companies
  The Emerging Trends, Threats and Risks to the Financial Services Industry - Managing Global 

Risk, Investment and Payment System        
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND GUIDANCE

Board Membership

The Company’s present Board of seven Directors comprises a Non-Executive Chairman, Mr Norman Ka 
Cheung Ip, five Non-Executive Directors and one Executive Director. The five Non-Executive Directors 
are Mr Koh Poh Tiong, Ms Mimi Sze Ho, Y Bhg Datuk Kamaruddin bin Taib, Mdm Tan Fong Sang and Mr 
Lai Chin Tak. Mr Khor Hock Seng is the Executive Director.

All appointments and re-appointments of Directors of the Company are subject to the approval of BNM.

Key Information on Directors

Key information on the Director’s qualifications, background, directorships and appointments are 
provided under the section “Board of Directors” of the Company’s Annual Report3. The Directors’ 
membership in various Board Committees is also set out therein. Information on their shareholdings in 
the Company’s ultimate holding company, Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (“OCBC 
Bank”) are disclosed in the Directors’ Report that accompanies the Company’s Financial Statements for 
the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (“FY2022”). The Directors do not hold any shares in the 
Company or its penultimate holding company, Great Eastern Holdings Limited (“GEH”).

Board Composition and Independence

The Company determines the independence of its Directors in accordance with the requirements of the 
CG PD. Under the CG PD, an Independent Director must be independent in character and judgement, 
and free from associations or circumstances that may impair the exercise of his or her independent 
judgement. An Independent Director of the Company must be one who himself or herself or any person 
linked to him or her has not been an executive of the Company in the last two  years, is not a substantial 
shareholder of the Company or any of its affiliates, and has no significant business or other contractual 
relationship with the Company or any of its affiliates within the last two years; and has not served for 
more than nine years on the Board4. Each Director is required to abstain from the Board Nominations 
and Remuneration Committee and the Board’s deliberations respectively on his own independence.

Under the CG PD, the Board is required to comprise a majority of Independent Directors at all times.

3 Available at the Company’s website at https://www.greateasterngeneral.com/my/en/index.html.
4 CG PD provides for tenure limits of independent directors to generally not exceed nine years.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND GUIDANCE (CONT'D.)

Board Composition and Independence (cont'd.)

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee determines annually whether a Director is 
independent. Taking into consideration the definition of “independence” of a Directors under the CG PD, 
the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee has determined that the Company’s Independent 
Directors are currently Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip, Mr Koh Poh Tiong, Ms Mimi Sze Ho, Y Bhg Datuk 
Kamaruddin bin Taib, Mdm Tan Fong Sang and Mr Lai Chin Tak.

Mr Khor Hock Seng is an Executive Director as he is the Group Chief Executive Officer of GEH.

The current Board complies with the requirements on Board composition and Board independence 
under the CG PD. The Company’s Board comprises a majority of Independent Directors, with six out of 
the seven Board members are independent.

The Board, through its Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee, is of the view that the current 
Board and Board Committees are of an appropriate size to facilitate effective decision making, taking 
into account the scope and nature of the operations of the Company.

Further, the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee also assesses the diversity of its 
members’ competency profiles, and determines the collective skills required to discharge its 
responsibilities effectively.

The Company’s Directors have diverse backgrounds, experience and qualifications, and bring a wide 
range of financial and commercial experience to the Board. Collectively, they provide the necessary 
business acumen, knowledge, capabilities and core competencies to the Company, including industry 
knowledge in insurance, investment and asset management, banking, accounting, finance, strategy 
formulation, information technology, management experience, risk management and familiarity with 
regulatory requirements. The diversity of experience and competencies of the Directors enhance the 
effectiveness of the Board in discharging its responsibilities. Directors who serve on Board Committees 
have an appropriate mix of skills and capabilities, taking into account the skill set required for Board 
Committees to perform their respective roles and responsibilities.

With the knowledge, objectivity and balance contributed by the Non-Executive Directors, the Board 
constructively challenges and enhances proposals on strategy, reviews the performance of 
Management against agreed goals and objectives, and monitors the reporting of performances.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) are not related to each other. The roles of the 
Chairman, Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip, and the CEO, Mr Ng Kok Kheng, are distinct and separate, with 
clear division of responsibilities between them to ensure an appropriate balance of power, increased 
accountability and greater independence in decision making.

The principal responsibilities of the Chairman include leading the Board to ensure it effectively 
discharges its roles and responsibilities, approving agendas of Board meetings, monitoring the quality 
and timeliness of the flow of information from Management to the Board and promoting effective 
communication with shareholders. The Chairman also facilitates robust discussions and deliberations 
in Board meetings, encourages constructive relations between the Board and Management, and 
promotes high standards of corporate governance with the full support of other Directors, the 
Company Secretary and Management.

The CEO manages the Company and oversees the Company’s operations and implementation of its 
strategies, plans and policies to achieve planned corporate performance and financial goals. His 
management of the Company’s businesses, including implementing the Board’s decisions, is carried 
out with the assistance of the Senior Officers of the Company. Collectively, they are responsible for the 
day-to-day operations and administration of the Company, ensuring, inter alia, operational and 
organisational efficiency, profitable performance, regulatory compliance, good corporate governance 
and effective risk management. The Board establishes the performance targets of the CEO and reviews 
his performance against the targets annually.

BOARD MEMBERSHIP

Process for Appointment of New Directors and Re-appointment of Existing Directors

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee has a key role in carrying out the formal and 
transparent process established for the appointment and re-appointment of Directors to the Board. 
Proposals for the appointment of new Directors and re-appointment of existing Directors are reviewed 
by the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee. For appointment of new Directors, the Board 
Nominations and Remuneration Committee meets with the candidates to assess their suitability and 
commitment. Amongst others, the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee takes into 
consideration the candidate’s professional qualifications, integrity, prior experience as a director, other 
directorships and principal commitments, relationships (if any) with other members of the Board, the 
Company or the substantial shareholder of the Company, financial and commercial business 
experience, and field of expertise relevant to the Company, as well as his or her potential to contribute 
to the effectiveness of the Board and to complement the skills, knowledge and expertise of the Board. 
Competent individuals are nominated for the Board’s consideration, before submitting the application 
to BNM for approval.
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BOARD MEMBERSHIP (CONT'D.)

Process for Appointment of New Directors and Re-appointment of Existing Directors (cont'd.)

The proposed candidate is required to confirm that he or she is not an active politician as defined in the 
CG PD. Further, he or she must not have prior involvement as an external auditor for the Company either 
in the capacity of an officer who is directly involved in the Company’s engagement or partner of the 
external auditor firm; until at least two years after he or she ceases to be an officer or partner of the 
external auditor firm or the firm last served as an auditor of the Company. The proposed candidate 
expected to provide such confirmation to BNM prior to his or her respective appointment and 
re-appointment as Director.

In addition, the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee further determines the proposed 
candidate’s independence status under the CG PD and ensures that the proposed  candidate will 
satisfy the criteria under the CG PD in that his or her appointment or re-appointment will not result in 
non-compliance with any of the composition requirements for the Board and Board Committees, and 
that he or she is a fit and proper person for the office, taking into account his or her track record, age, 
experience, capabilities, skills and other relevant factors as may be determined by the Board 
Nominations and Remuneration Committee. Such reviews are also conducted on an annual basis to 
ensure that each Director remains qualified for the office based on the above criteria.

Re-election and Re-appointment of Directors at Annual General Meeting

All Directors of the Company are required to retire from office at regular intervals, at least once every 
three years. At each Annual General Meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors, being those 
who have served longest in office since their first re-election, are required to retire by rotation in 
accordance with the Company’s Constitution. Pursuant to the Company’s Constitution, newly appointed 
Directors will hold office until the next Annual General Meeting and, if eligible, can stand for 
re-appointment. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election when re-nominated by the Board 
Nominations and Remuneration Committee, taking into account their expertise, knowledge and 
commitment, and their contributions to Board discussions and to the effectiveness of the Board.

The Directors who are retiring by rotation under Clause 74 of the Company’s Constitution and standing 
for re-election at the 2023 Annual General Meeting are Ms Mimi Sze Ho and Mr Khor Hock Seng.

40ANNUAL REPORT 2022

DIRECTORS’
REPORT



BOARD MEMBERSHIP (CONT'D.)

Re-election and Re-appointment of Directors at Annual General Meeting (cont'd.)

Directors are expected to set aside adequate time for their oversight of matters relating to the 
Company. The Directors provide declarations of changes on their other appointments which are 
disseminated to all Directors. The Company has established guidelines on meeting attendance and the 
extent of other appointments outside of the Company that a Director may assume. Each of the 
Directors’ listed company directorships and principal commitments are provided under the section 
“Board of Directors” of this Annual Report3. The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee 
annually assesses each Director’s attendance record and meeting participation to determine if a 
Director is able to and has been diligently discharging his or her duties as a Director of the Company.

Board Performance

The Board has an annual performance evaluation process, carried out by the Board Nominations and 
Remuneration Committee, to assess the effectiveness of the Board, Board Committees and each 
Director’s contributions. This annual assessment process consists principally of evaluation by and 
feedback from each Director. Each Director evaluates the performance of the Board and Board 
Committees. The assessment of the contributions of individual Directors to the effectiveness of the 
Board is also performed annually. Such assessments are made against established performance 
criteria consistent with those approved by the Board and used in the previous year. A member of the 
Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee will recuse himself when the Board Nominations and 
Remuneration Committee deliberates upon his performance to avoid conflict of interest.

An external party is engaged after every three years to facilitate the Board Evaluation process and to 
provide the Board with an independent perspective of the Board’s performance, including benchmarks 
against peer boards and industry best practices. In 2022, the Board Nominations and Remuneration 
Committee engaged Aon Malaysia Sdn Bhd (“Aon”) to facilitate the Board Evaluation process. Aon and 
its consultants are independent and not related to the Company or its Directors.

The 2022 Board Evaluation questionnaire focused on areas such as competency and independence, 
information quality and timeliness, conduct of meetings, environmental, social and corporate 
governance, managing performance, succession planning, Directors’ development, internal controls 
and risk management as well as culture and conduct, and Board Committees.

The purpose of the evaluation is to improve the overall effectiveness of the Board. The Board has found 
the evaluation process useful and constructive since its implementation. This collective process has 
also provided an opportunity to obtain insightful feedback from each Director on suggestions to 
enhance the effectiveness of the Board and the Board Committees.

3 Available at the Company’s website at https://www.greateasterngeneral.com/my/en/index.html.    
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REMUNERATION MATTERS

Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies, Level and Mix of Remuneration and Disclosure 
on Remuneration

The objective of the Company’s remuneration policy is to attract, motivate, reward and retain quality 
personnel.

In considering its recommendations to the Board and in approving remuneration, the Board 
Nominations and Remuneration Committee ensures that remuneration policies are in line with the 
Company’s strategic objectives, Code of Conduct and corporate values, and do not give rise to conflicts 
between objectives of the Company and interests of individual Directors, Senior Officers and 
Non-Senior Officers.

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee is tasked to review and recommend to the Board, 
the general remuneration policy framework as well as the specific remuneration of each Director and 
for each Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers. No Director is involved in the deliberations regarding 
any remuneration, compensation or any form of benefits to be granted to himself or herself.

Level and Mix of Remuneration

Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors are paid Directors’ fees, which take into account factors such as the 
Directors’ contributions, effort and time spent, attendance at and frequency of meetings, the respective 
responsibilities of Directors including the Board Committees on which they serve, market practices and 
the need to pay competitive fees to attract, retain and motivate Directors.

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee performs an annual review of the Directors’ fee 
structure and of the computation of the aggregate Directors’ fees based on the earlier Board-approved 
fee structure, before recommending any proposed changes to the Board for endorsement. The 
Directors’ fees proposed by the Board each year are subject to the shareholders’ approval at the 
Company’s Annual General Meeting.

The Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee has considered the market practices for 
Non-Executive Director remuneration, and on its recommendation, the Board has decided to use the 
same fee structure for computing the fee for each Non-Executive Director for  FY2022 as that used in 
the previous financial year (in the following table):
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REMUNERATION MATTERS (CONT'D.)

Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors (cont'd.)

Attendance fees are paid to Non-Executive Directors to recognise their contributions and time spent in 
attending meetings.

Remuneration policy in respect of Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers

The remuneration policy is approved by the Board and is subject to annual review taking into account 
changes in the remuneration practices and/or regulator’s requirements from time to time.

The remuneration of the CEO, the Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers of the Company are 
reviewed annually by the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee, based on the overall 
remuneration framework approved by the Board. Currently, there are five identified Senior Officers and 
no identified Non-Senior Officer under the purview of the Board Nominations and Remuneration 
Committee.

Staff engaged in all control functions including Compliance, Risk Management, Actuarial Valuation, 
Audit and others do not carry business profit targets in their goal sheets, and hence are compensated 
independently of the business profit achievements. Their compensation is dependent on the 
achievement of key results in their respective domain.

Pursuant to the CG PD, Other Material Risk Takers is defined to include an officer who can materially 
commit or control significant amounts of the Company’s resources or whose actions are likely to have 
a significant impact on the Company’s risk profile. There are no identified Other Material Risk Takers for 
FY2022.

* Common Directors who serve on the board of the licensed affiliated companies in Malaysia will be remunerated at one-third of the 
Company’s annual retainer fee basis.

Board

Board Committees

Chairman

Member

Chairman:
• Board Audit Committee
• Board Risk Management Committee

Member:
• Board Audit Committee
• Board Risk Management Committee

Chairman:
• Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee

Member:
• Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee

RM130,000*

RM65,000*

Annual
Retainer

RM50,900*

RM25,400*

RM45,000*

RM27,000*

RM2,600Attendance fees per Board or Board Committee meeting
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REMUNERATION MATTERS (CONT'D.)

Remuneration policy in respect of Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers (cont'd.)

In such annual reviews, the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee takes into consideration 
factors such as market competitiveness and market benchmark, and that the remuneration is 
commensurate with individual performance and contribution. The Board Nominations and 
Remuneration Committee also takes into account the time horizon of risks that the Company is exposed 
to, such as ensuring that all variable compensation payments shall not be fully paid over short periods 
when risks are recognised over longer periods. 

As part of the Company’s continuous efforts to create sustainable value for stakeholders through 
broad-based growth across its core markets, delivering sustained earnings, driving core competencies 
of disciplined risk management, prudent investment and continued upgrading of technology and 
people, and ensuring sustainable business practices, the performance measures set for each business 
unit embeds these objectives, which match their functions and are consistent with the Company’s risk 
appetite. In determining the remuneration of Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers, risk and control 
indicators as well as audit findings and compliance issues are taken into account when assessing their 
overall performance, in addition to their achievement in business and operation performance. Senior 
Officers and Non-Senior Officers are remunerated based on the achievements of their own 
performance measures and the demonstration of core values and competencies, while taking into 
account market compensation data for their respective job roles. 

Disclosure on Remuneration

To ensure that its remuneration packages are competitive, the Company regularly reviews salary levels 
and benefits packages based on market data provided by recognised consultants who conduct surveys 
on comparative groups in the financial sector. The determination of the Company’s variable 
compensation pool is fully discretionary and the factors taken into consideration include financial and 
non-financial metrics such as the Company’s performance, risk indicators and compliance issues, 
market condition and competitive market practices.

The total compensation packages for Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers comprise basic salary, 
various performance-related variable compensation, allowances, deferred share awards and benefits.

The variable components have been designed to link rewards to corporate and individual performance, 
based on appropriate and meaningful performance measures set up by the Company, and approved by 
the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee and the Board. Senior Officers are subject to an 
additional performance measurement approach by embedding corporate governance indicator for 
more prudent risk taking.
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REMUNERATION MATTERS (CONT'D.)

Disclosure on Remuneration (cont'd.)

The annual budget for salary increment and performance-related variable compensation are reviewed 
and endorsed by the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee and is submitted to the Board 
for approval.

As a consequence of the financial crisis in recent years, financial institutions globally have been 
reviewing compensation practices to reduce incentives that encourage excessive risk taking. While the 
Company has adopted compensation practices that take into account the principles and 
implementation standards issued by the Financial Stability Forum for Sound Compensation Practices, 
it also continues to review its compensation practices on an on-going basis to further ensure that 
decisions made are conducive for sustained business performance. In its deliberations, the Board 
Nominations and Remuneration Committee also takes into account the remuneration principles, 
practices and standards issued by the regulator from time to time.

Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers through annual self-declaration commit not to undertake 
activities (such as personal hedging strategies and liability-related insurance) that will undermine the 
risk alignment effects embedded in their remuneration.

In collaboration with the Board Nominations and Remuneration Committee, the Company has designed 
and developed its Performance Assessment and Remuneration Framework, which takes into 
consideration the prevailing regulatory requirements, and with the inputs from the Senior Officers. The 
Performance Assessment and Remuneration Framework is independently reviewed by the Joint Board 
Audit Committee and Board Risk Management Committee. The Board Risk Management Committee 
may with the assistance of Risk Management Department assess how the Performance Assessment 
and Remuneration Framework affects the Company’s risk profile.

The Company’s variable compensation varies in line with its financial performance and corporate 
governance requirements.

Share-based incentives

The Company does not have any share option scheme or share plan in place. Instead, the Company’s 
ultimate holding company, OCBC Bank, grants share awards pursuant to the OCBC Deferred Share Plan 
to selected senior executives of the Company. All grants and awards are subject to cancellation and 
clawback if it is determined that they were made on the basis of materially inaccurate financial 
statements and/or the employee has engaged in conduct that results in financial loss, reputational 
harm, restatement of financial results and/or adverse changes of the Company’s risk profile/rating, 
which takes into consideration the risks that could have a long-term negative impact to the Company.
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REMUNERATION MATTERS (CONT'D.)

Disclosure of Directors’ and CEO Remuneration

The total Directors’ and CEO’s Remuneration in respect of FY2022 is shown under Note 22 of the Notes 
to the Financial Statements. Non-Executive Directors will be paid Directors’ Fees totaling RM982,050 
in respect of FY2022, subject to shareholders’ approval at the 2023 Annual General Meeting.

Disclosure of Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers

The details of the remuneration granted to the eligible Senior Officers and Non-Senior Officers are 
disclosed in the table below:

Total value of remuneration awards for FY2022:

* The headcount included the cessation of Senior Officers during the year.

UnitsNo. of paxRMNo. of pax

-

-

9,329 units

(Deferred

Share, Share

Option and

Employee

Share

Purchase

Plan)

-

-

-

3

-

2,685,221.29

24,600.00

877,080.00

311,177.53

598,736.61

8*

1

5

6

8*

DeferredUnrestricted

Fixed remuneration

- Cash-based

- Other

Variable remuneration

- Cash-based

- Share and share-linked instruments

- Other
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INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The internal control framework comprises among others, the infrastructure in the form of risk oversight 
committees at the Board and Management level; frameworks, policies and procedures; risk and 
compliance self-assessment processes for all business units to assess and manage the adequacy and 
effectiveness of their systems of internal controls and their level of compliance with applicable rules 
and regulations; and a monitoring and reporting process.

Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the governance of risk. It sets the tone for the Company’s risks culture and 
monitors, through the Board Risk Management Committee, the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk 
management processes and systems of the Company. The Board approves the Company’s risk appetite 
and has oversight of the risk activities to ensure that the Company’s strategic intent, operating 
environment, internal control mechanisms and capital sufficiency are consistent with the Company’s 
risk appetite and regulatory standards. Further details of the Enterprise Risk Management Framework 
implemented by the Company are set out in Note 31 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The Board emphasises the importance of institutionalising a strong risk culture within the Company. As 
a subset of the broader organisational culture, a strong risk culture supports appropriate risk 
awareness, bolsters effective risk management and promotes sound risk taking to ensure the 
Company’s risk profile remains within its risk appetite. The Board also approves the risk culture 
principles and, along with it, the set of desired risk culture behaviours to support the target risk culture 
throughout the Company.

Annually, an Own Risk and Solvency Assessment report is submitted to apprise the Board Risk 
Management Committee and the Board of the Company’s risk profile, the manner in which the 
Company determines its solvency and the various measures put in place to ensure that the solvency 
requirements are met at all times.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company’s internal controls is adequate to safeguard 
stakeholders’ interests and the Company’s assets. The Company has in place, self-assessment 
processes for all business units to assess the adequacy and effectiveness of their internal controls, and 
level of compliance with applicable rules and regulations. The results of evaluation are reviewed by the 
Senior Officers, who in turn would provide an annual assurance to the CEO on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Company’s operational risk management and internal control systems and 
compliance with the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. This self-assessment process is 
further supplemented by an annual assurance report on risk management and internal controls, 
co-ordinated by Risk Management and tabled to the Board Audit Committee, the Board Risk 
Management Committee and the Board for notation.
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INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK (CONT'D.)

Internal Controls (cont'd.)

The system of internal controls provides reasonable but not absolute assurance that the Company 
would not be adversely affected by any event that could be reasonably foreseen as it strives to achieve 
its business objectives. Therefore, the Board notes that no system of internal controls can provide 
absolute assurance against the occurrence of material errors, poor judgement in decision-making, 
human error, losses, fraud or other irregularities.

Infrastructure

While the Board is ultimately responsible for the management of risks within the Company, there are 
risk oversight committees that facilitate in depth review of the risks associated with specific aspects of 
the business such as the Board Risk Management Committee, the Board Audit Committee, the Senior 
Management Team, the Asset Liability Committee, the Information Technology Steering Committee 
and the Product Development Committee. The duties and scope of work of these committees are 
documented in their respective Board-approved terms of reference.

The authority delegated by the Board to the Board Committees and the CEO are formalised in the 
Company’s Authority Grid. Other documents that guide on the delegation of the CEO’s authority include 
underwriting limits, claim limits and investment limits.

The segregation of duties is paramount in ensuring that members of staff are not assigned potential 
conflicting responsibilities that relate to matters such as approvals, disbursements and administration 
of policies, execution and recording of investments, operational and internal audit/compliance 
functions, underwriting and credit controls.

Frameworks, Policies and Procedures

The Company has established risk management frameworks and policies that set forth the means by 
which the Company shall evaluate and manage the risks inherent in the business. The frameworks 
outline the common risk management process across all risk types within the Company. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK (CONT'D.)

Frameworks, Policies and Procedures (cont'd.)

A number of policies and procedures have also been put in place to guide and facilitate consistency in 
application across the board. These cover key risk areas such as:

•  Investments
•  Insurance operations
•  Technology information and cyber
•  Fraud and market conduct
•  Anti-money laundering and countering the financing of terrorism 
•  Capital management, capital contingency and stress testing
•  Related party and interested party transactions
•  Outsourcing
•  Reinsurance management
•  Business continuity management
•  Anti-bribery and corruption
•  Personal data protection
•  Environment (including climate)

The frameworks, policies and procedures are reviewed each year to ensure continued relevance and to 
capture the latest regulatory, statutory and Group requirements. They are then approved by the Board, 
or the relevant Board Committee or Management Committee.

Monitoring and Reporting

An Enterprise Risk Dashboard that features the Company’s risk profile from various perspectives 
namely strategic risk, financial risk, operational risk, technology risk, market conduct and compliance 
risk as well as climate risk is submitted to the Board, Board Risk Management Committee and Senior 
Management Team for notation.

Regulatory breaches, risk concerns and operational incidents are reported in the Enterprise Risk 
Dashboard while investment breaches are reported via the limits report and compliance assurance 
reports. The respective business units are required to provide the corrective and preventive measures 
once a regulatory breach or operational incident is discovered. The Company has a process to collate 
statistics for a number of Key Risk Indicators for reporting internally as well as to BNM on a regular 
basis.

Stress test scenarios and the corresponding stress factors are developed and reviewed by the Board 
annually and thereafter, the scenarios and factors are used to stress the financial positions.
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INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK (CONT'D.)

Whistleblowing Policy

The Company has a whistleblowing policy in place whereby employees of the Company and external 
parties may raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other 
matters in confidence. The whistleblowing policy and procedures for raising such concerns are clearly 
disclosed and communicated to employees. All whistleblowing incidents are reported to the Board 
Audit Committee. Concerns expressed anonymously are considered and investigated on the basis of 
their merits. The Board Audit Committee ensures that arrangements are in place for the independent 
investigation of such matters and appropriate follow-up actions. If fraud is determined, appropriate 
remedial actions will be taken and the Board Audit Committee will be updated regularly on their status. 
The whistleblower will have protection against reprisals provided he/she has acted in good faith. The 
Board Audit Committee Chairman is responsible for the effective implementation of the whistleblowing 
policy, which includes evaluating periodic reports that monitor and assess how concerns are escalated 
and dealt with, and overseeing the periodic review of the effectiveness of the policy.

Internal Audit

The Company utilises the services of the Internal Audit Department (“Internal Audit”) of GELM, via an 
outsourcing arrangement. Internal Audit assists the Board Audit Committee in discharging its duties 
and responsibilities.  It serves to provide the Board and Management with independent and objective 
assessments of the reliability, adequacy and effectiveness of the governance, risk management and 
internal control processes as designed and implemented by Management. The Internal Audit Charter is 
approved by the Board.

Internal Audit, which is independent of the activities it audits, is staffed by executives with the relevant 
qualifications and experience, and the Board Audit Committee ensures that the Internal Audit is 
adequately resourced. The Chief Internal Auditor reports to the Chairman of the Board Audit 
Committee and administratively to GELM CEO.

The work undertaken by Internal Audit involves the assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the Company’s risk management and internal control environment, including ascertaining if the 
internal controls are sufficient in ensuring that significant financial, managerial and operating 
information is accurate, reliable and timely, operations and programs are effective and efficient, and 
assets are safeguarded. Internal Audit has unrestricted access to the Board, Board Audit Committee 
and functions, records, property and personnel of the Company. Internal Audit meets the International 
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing of The Institute of Internal Auditors.

50ANNUAL REPORT 2022

DIRECTORS’
REPORT



RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has implemented policies and procedures on related party transactions covering the 
definitions of relatedness, limits applied, terms of transactions, and the authorities and procedures for 
approving, monitoring whenever necessary, and writing-off of such transactions. All related party 
transactions are conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary course of business. The 
terms and conditions of such transactions are carried out on an arm’s length basis. Directors with 
conflict of interest are excluded from the approval process of granting and managing related party 
transactions. Material related party transactions and the write-off of material related party 
transactions are reported to the Board Audit Committee for review and to the Board for approval.

Details of the Company’s related party transactions during FY2022 are set out in Note 29 of the Notes 
to the Financial Statements.

ETHICAL STANDARDS

The Directors and Management are committed to promoting and maintaining values which emphasise 
integrity, honesty and proper conduct at all times in the business operations and dealings of the 
Company. The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct that sets out the guiding principles and 
minimum standards expected of its employees such as the highest standards of conduct and 
professional integrity. The Code of Conduct also provides guidance on areas such as responsible 
stewardship of the Company’s resources, the Company’s position against fraudulent conduct, conflicts 
of interests and the appropriate disclosures to be made, and maintaining confidentiality of information. 
The Code of Conduct is available on the Company’s staff intranet.

The Company has a suite of policies in place for proper governance and management that staff has to 
comply with. All policies are prepared and aligned with the Company’s risk management and internal 
control systems and processes, including Management’s self-assessment and independent audits.

The Company treats feedback and complaints from its customers seriously, and has instituted 
channels whereby customers may provide feedback or complaints. The Company aims to resolve 
feedback and complaints professionally and fairly in accordance with the service standards indicated 
on its website.
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

We, Tan Fong Sang and Datuk Kamaruddin bin Taib, being two of the Directors of Great Eastern General 
Insurance (Malaysia) Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the accompanying 
financial statements set out on pages 57 to 179 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial 
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 2016 in 
Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 
2022 and of its financial performance and the cash flows for the year then ended.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 28 March 2023.

STATUTORY DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

I, Khoo Sook Hooi (CA 28215), being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of 
Great Eastern General Insurance (Malaysia) Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the 
accompanying financial statements set out on pages 57 to 179 are in my opinion correct, and I make 
this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of 
the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared     
by the abovenamed Khoo Sook Hooi at     
Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Territory      
on 28 March 2023

Khoo Sook Hooi
Before me,

Tan Fong Sang
Director

Datuk Kamaruddin bin Taib
Director
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No. 198301007025 (102249-P)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opinion
         
In our opinion, the financial statements of Great Eastern General Insurance (Malaysia) Berhad (“the 
Company”) give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2022, 
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with 
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

What we have audited

We have audited the financial statements of the Company, which comprise the statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2022 and the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the financial year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set 
out on pages 57 to 179.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and 
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described 
in the “Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.

Independence and other ethical responsibilities 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct 
and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including 
International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146), Chartered Accountants, Level 10, Menara TH 1
Sentral, Jalan Rakyat, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, P.O. Box 10192, 50706 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
T: +60 (3)2173 1188, F: +60 (3) 2173 1288, www.pwc.com/my
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TO THE MEMBER OF GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No. 198301007025 (102249-P)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon    

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the Directors' Report which we obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report, and Annual 
Report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date. Other information does not include 
the financial statements of the Company and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Company does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of 
this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements   

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the 
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in 
Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Company that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the 
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia 
and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146), Chartered Accountants, Level 10, Menara TH 1
Sentral, Jalan Rakyat, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, P.O. Box 10192, 50706 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
T: +60 (3)2173 1188, F: +60 (3) 2173 1288, www.pwc.com/my
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No. 198301007025 (102249-P)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International 
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

(a)  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Company, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

(b)  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

(c)  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

(d)  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements  of the Company or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

(e)  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the 
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Company 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers PLT (LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146), Chartered Accountants, Level 10, Menara TH 1
Sentral, Jalan Rakyat, Kuala Lumpur Sentral, P.O. Box 10192, 50706 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
T: +60 (3)2173 1188, F: +60 (3) 2173 1288, www.pwc.com/my
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TO THE MEMBER OF GREAT EASTERN GENERAL INSURANCE (MALAYSIA) BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registration No. 198301007025 (102249-P)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D.)

OTHER MATTERS
 
This report is made solely to the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of 
the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any 
other person for the content of this report.

LIEW CHI MIN
03529/09/2024 J
Chartered Accountant

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS PLT
LLP0014401-LCA & AF 1146
Chartered Accountants

Kuala Lumpur
28 March 2023



Note  2022
 RM

 2021
 RM

Intangible assets

Property and equipment

- Owned

- Right-of-use assets

Investments

Reinsurance assets

Insurance receivables

Other receivables

Deferred tax assets

Tax recoverable

Cash and bank balances

3

4(a)

4(b)

5

6

7

8

9

 58,260,893

 3,336,107

 14,141,800

 731,234,396

 689,590,698

 165,515,390

 59,902,297

 2,908,096

 7,298,595

 18,463,356

 54,297,014

 3,953,017

 13,423,409

 731,891,678

 724,539,305

 60,648,631

 61,919,187

 3,726,860

 3,234,175

 46,630,299

 1,750,651,628  1,704,263,575

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

Assets

Total Assets

Share capital

Retained earnings

Fair value reserves

10

11

 100,000,000

 345,511,552

 (1,534,215)

 100,000,000

 354,078,735

 2,601,574

 443,977,337  456,680,309

Equity

Total Equity

Insurance contract liabilities   

Lease liabilities

Deposits from reinsurers

Insurance payables

Other payables

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

12

13

14

15

 1,112,727,418

 14,012,242

 2,464,659

 88,548,553

 88,921,419

 1,111,677,560

 13,474,112

 3,291,066

 55,135,992

 64,004,536

 1,306,674,291  1,247,583,266

Liabilities

Total Liabilities

 1,750,651,628  1,704,263,575Total Equity and Liabilities
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Note  2022
 RM

 2021
 RM

Gross earned premiums

Premiums ceded to reinsurers

16(a)

16(b)

 560,506,643

 (173,452,044)

 387,054,599

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022        

Net Earned Premiums

Fee and commission expense

Management expenses

Finance cost

22

 (80,935,913)

 (111,980,625)

 (320,935)

 (193,237,473)

 49,228,199

Other Expenses

Profit Before Taxation

Taxation 23  (12,643,390)

Basic and diluted 24

 36,584,809Net Profit For The Year

Earnings Per Share (sen)

Net investment income

Net realised gains

Fair value losses

Changes in allowance for expected credit losses

 (“ECL”) on investment assets

Fee and commission income

Other operating revenue

17

18

19

20

 26,880,882

 1,116,863

 (3,771,252)

 1,431,231

 36,263,145

 94,418

 62,015,287Other Revenue

Gross claims paid

Claims ceded to reinsurers

Gross change in contract liabilities

Change in contract liabilities ceded

 to reinsurers

21(a)

21(b)

21(c)

21(d)

 (367,419,733)

 191,419,401

 19,740,990

(50,344,872)

 (206,604,214)Net Claims

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

 36.58

 528,154,268

 (187,560,133)

 340,594,135

 (76,334,120)

 (101,246,489)

 (572,977)

 (178,153,586)

 59,053,453

 (13,909,561)

 45,143,892

 27,496,732

 1,822,410

 (6,257,220)

 (1,222,393)

 37,118,047

 795,582

 59,753,158

 (225,306,145)

 67,288,771

 (504,101,531)

 498,978,651

 (163,140,254)

 45.14
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Note  2022
 RM

9

   (3,479,536)

 (731,049)

 199,988

 (1,431,231)

 (5,441,828)

 1,306,039

 (4,135,789)

 36,584,809Net Profit For The Year

 32,449,020Total Comprehensive Income For The Year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Other Comprehensive Income:

Items that may be reclassified to statement of

 profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Fair value through other comprehensive income

Net losses on fair value changes

Realised gains transferred to statement of profit or loss

Reclassification from FVOCI reserves to retained

 earnings arising from realised losses on

 disposal of FVOCI equities

Changes in allowance for ECL

       

Tax effect

 2021
 RM

 45,143,892

  (17,777,409)

 (1,754,035)

 1,034,887

 1,222,392

 (17,274,165)

 4,145,802

 (13,128,363)

 32,015,529
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

 Distributable

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Reclassification from FVOCI     

 reserves to retained earnings

 arising from realised losses on

 disposal of FVOCI equities

Dividend paid during the year (Note 25)

 Non-distributable

Retained
 earnings

RM

FVOCI
reserves

RM

Share
capital

RM

At 1 January 2021

Total equity
RM

 45,143,892

 (786,514)

 (55,000,000)

 (13,914,877)

 786,514

 -

 31,229,015

 -

 (55,000,000)

 364,721,355 15,729,939100,000,000  480,451,294

At 31 December 2021
 36,584,809

 (151,990)

 (45,000,000)

 (4,287,781)

 151,990

 - 

 32,297,028

 -

 (45,000,000)

 354,078,733 2,601,576100,000,000  456,680,309

At 31 December 2022  345,511,552 (1,534,215)100,000,000  443,977,337

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Total comprehensive income for the year

Reclassification from FVOCI

 reserves to retained earnings

 arising from realised losses on

 disposal of FVOCI equities     

Dividend paid during the year (Note 25)     

-

-

-

-

-

-
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Note  2022
 RM

Cash generated from operating activities

Dividend income received

Interest income received

Interest paid

Income tax paid

26  18,656,238

 6,590,905

 21,910,956

 (2,906)

 (14,535,011)

 32,620,182

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Operating Activities

Net Cash Flows Generated From Operating Activities

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment

Purchase of equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

4(a)

3

25

 3,999

 (1,660,282)

 (10,665,397)

 (12,321,680)

Investing Activities

Net Cash Flows Used In Investing Activities

Cash and bank balances

Deposits with licensed financial institutions

 18,463,356

 -

 18,463,356

Cash And Cash Equivalents Comprises:

Payment of lease liabilities

Dividend paid

 (48,465,445)

Financing Activities

Net Cash Flows Used In Financing Activities

 (28,166,943)Net (Decrease)/Increase In Cash And Cash Equivalents

 46,630,299Cash And Cash Equivalents At Beginning Of Year

 18,463,356Cash And Cash Equivalents At End Of Year

 (3,465,445)

 (45,000,000)

 2021
 RM

As at 1 January

Additions 

Lease expiration

Interest charge

Cash Flows

 13,474,112

 8,963,860

 (5,402,952)

 442,667

 (3,465,445)

Lease liabilities
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities.

 14,012,242As At 31 December

 77,624,056

 8,447,973

 22,761,609

 (17,370)

 (16,497,849)

 92,318,419

 100,166

 (1,975,421)

 (9,874,829)

 (11,750,084)

 26,630,299

 20,000,000

 46,630,299

 (58,560,224)

 22,008,111

 24,622,188

 46,630,299

 (3,560,224)

 (55,000,000)

 15,850,067

 1,538,220

 (878,772)

 524,821

 (3,560,224)
 13,474,112

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

 The Company is a public limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.  The 
registered office of the Company is located at Level 20, Menara Great Eastern, 303 Jalan Ampang, 
50450 Kuala Lumpur.

 The principal activity of the Company is underwriting of all classes of general insurance business.

 There has been no significant change in the nature of the principal activity during the financial year.

 The immediate holding company is Overseas Assurance Corporation (Holdings) Berhad (“OACH”), 
which is incorporated in Malaysia. The intermediate holding company is Great Eastern General 
Insurance Limited, a company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. The ultimate holding 
company is OCBC Bank, a public-listed company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore.

 The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a 
resolution of the Directors on 28 March 2023.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 2.1 Basis Of Preparation

  The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian 
Financial Reporting Standards ("MFRS") as issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards 
Board (“MASB”), International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in 
Malaysia.

  At the beginning of the current financial year, the Company had adopted the amended MFRSs 
and new MFRSs as described fully in Note 2.3.

  The Company has met the minimum capital requirements as prescribed by the Risk-Based 
Capital ("RBC") Framework as at the reporting date.

  The financial statements of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost 
convention, unless stated otherwise in the accounting policies. The financial statements are 
presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the Company's functional currency.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

  (a) Property And Equipment

   Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, 
including non-refundable taxes and any costs to enhance the working condition of the asset 
for its intended use.

   Expenditure incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such 
as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is charged to the statement of profit or loss 
in the period in which the costs are incurred. Where the expenditure has resulted in an 
increase in the future economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use of an item of 
property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the 
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of property and equipment.

   Depreciation of property and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis to reduce the 
cost of each amount to its residual value over its estimated useful life.  No depreciation is 
provided for capital work in progress as it is not ready for active use. The useful life of an 
asset is as follows:

   The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable.

   The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at each financial 
year end to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with 
previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic 
benefits embodied in the items of property and equipment.

   An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use. Gains and losses on disposal are determined 
by comparing proceeds with the carrying amounts and are included in the statement of 
profit or loss.

Category Of Asset

Office Equipment

Office Furniture And Fittings

Renovation

Computer Equipment

Motor Vehicles

Useful Life

5 years

10 years

3 to 5 years

3 years

5 years
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (b) Financial Assets

   (i) Initial Recognition And Measurement  

    Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the financial assets. The Company determines the 
classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. 

    At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus, in 
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs for 
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are recognised as expense in 
the statement of profit or loss.

    Classification  

    On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost, fair 
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss 
(“FVTPL”).

    A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following 
conditions and is not designated as measured at FVTPL:

    •  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect 
contractual cash flows; and

    •  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (b) Financial Assets (cont'd.)

   (i) Initial Recognition And Measurement (cont'd.)

    Classification (cont'd.)

    A debt security is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions 
and is not designated as measured at FVTPL:

    •  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

    •  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

    An equity security that is not held for trading may, by irrevocable election, be 
designated and measured at FVOCI. This election is made on an 
investment-by-investment basis. The Company has designated certain equity securities 
held for strategic purposes as measured at FVOCI.

    A financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised 
cost or at FVOCI may, by irrevocable election, be designated and measured at FVTPL if 
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would 
otherwise arise. The Company has designated certain debt securities which are held 
with the intent to hold to collect contractual cash flows and sell to be measured at 
FVTPL.

    All other financial assets are measured as FVTPL.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (b) Financial Assets (cont'd.)

   (i) Initial Recognition And Measurement (cont'd.)

    Business Model Assessment

    The Company assesses the objective of the business model in which an asset is held at 
a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and 
information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

    •  The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies 
in practice;

    •  How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to management;
    •  The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets 

held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;
    •  How managers of the business are compensated; and
    •  The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales 

and expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales 
activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the 
Company's stated objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how 
cash flows are realised.

    Financial assets that are held for trading or whose performance is evaluated on a fair 
value basis, are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual 
cash flows nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell.

    The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without 
taking “worst case” or “stress case” scenarios into account. If the cash flows after initial 
recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company’s original 
expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial 
assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing 
newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (b) Financial Assets (cont'd.)

   (i) Initial Recognition And Measurement (cont'd.)

    Assessment Whether Contractual Cash Flows Are Solely Payments Of Principal And 
Interest

    For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the 
financial asset on initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time 
value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding 
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as 
profit margin.

    In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and 
interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes 
assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the 
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In 
making the assessment, the Company considers the following key aspects:

    •  Contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;
    •  Leverage features;
    •  Prepayment and extension terms;
    •  Terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets; and
    •  Features that modify consideration of the time value of money, credit risk, other basic 

lending risks and costs associated with the principal amount outstanding.

   (ii) Subsequent measurement

    Debt Instruments

    Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business 
model for managing the asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset. 
The three measurement categories for classification of debt instruments are:
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (b) Financial Assets (cont'd.)

   (ii) Subsequent Measurement (cont'd.)

    Debt Instruments (cont'd.)

    (a) Amortised Cost

     Debt instruments that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where 
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest income, foreign 
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in statement of profit or 
loss. Gains or losses are also recognised in statement of profit or loss when the 
assets are derecognised.

    (b) FVOCI

     Debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for sale, 
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are 
classified as FVOCI. Any gains or losses from changes in fair value are recognised in 
other comprehensive income and accumulated in fair value reserve. Impairment, 
foreign exchange gains and losses and interest calculated using the effective 
interest method are recognised in statement of profit or loss. The cumulative gain or 
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from 
equity to statement of profit or loss when the financial asset is derecognised.

    (c) FVTPL

     Debt instruments that do not meet the criteria for classification as amortised cost or 
FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. Any gains or losses from changes in fair value and 
interest are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

     Equity Instruments

     The Company subsequently measures all equity instruments at fair value. On initial 
recognition of an equity instrument that is not held for trading, the Company may 
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. The Company's 
policy is to designate equity investments as FVOCI when those investments are held 
for purposes other than held for trading. When this election is used, fair value gains 
and losses are recognised in OCI and are not subsequently reclassified to the 
statement of profit or loss, including upon disposal. Equity instruments designated 
at FVOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

68ANNUAL REPORT 2022

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (b) Financial Assets (cont'd.)

   (ii) Subsequent Measurement (cont'd.)

    Equity Instruments (cont'd.)

    Dividends, when representing a return from such investments are to be recognised in 
the statement of profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive payments is 
established.

    Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised in the statement 
of profit or loss.

    Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

    Financial assets at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.

    These investments are initially recognised at cost. All transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition are also included in the cost of the investment.

    Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at amortised cost are measured at 
amortised cost, using the effective yield method, less allowance for impairment. Gains 
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the assets are 
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

    Reclassifications

    Financial assets are not reclassified subsequently to their initial recognition, except in 
the period after the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

  (c) Financial Liabilities And Insurance Payables

   Financial liabilities and insurance payables within the scope of MFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments and MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts respectively are recognised on the statement 
of financial position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual obligations of 
the financial instrument.

 
   Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial 

liabilities.

   (i)  Financial Liabilities At FVTPL

    Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading (“HFT”) and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (c) Financial Liabilities And Insurance Payables (cont'd.)

   (i)  Financial Liabilities At FVTPL (cont'd.)

    Financial liabilities HFT include derivatives entered into by the Company that do not 
meet the hedge accounting criteria. Derivative liabilities are initially measured at fair 
value and subsequently stated at fair value, with any resultant gains or losses 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Net gains or losses on derivatives include 
exchange differences.

    The Company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL.

   (ii)  Other Financial Liabilities

    Other financial liabilities are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition 
at the fair value of the consideration received plus directly attributable transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the 
effective yield method.

    A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, 
cancelled or expired. Gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

    When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

  (d) Fair Value Measurement

   The Company measures certain financial instruments as disclosed in Note 30 at fair value at 
each financial position.

 
   Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer 
the liability takes place either:

   •  In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
   •  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (d) Fair Value Measurement (cont'd.)

   The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

   The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when the pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best interest.

   The fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market 
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best 
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the assets in its highest and 
best use.

   The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

   All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on 
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

   •  Level 1 -  Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities;

   •  Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable including 
quotes from brokers and market makers, discounted cash flows and other 
valuation techniques commonly used by market participants; and

   •  Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is unobservable.

   For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring 
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the 
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

   At each financial position, Finance Department analyses the movements in the values of 
assets and liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the 
Company’s accounting policies.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (d) Fair Value Measurement (cont'd.)

   For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets 
and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and 
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

  (e) Impairment Of Assets

   (i) Impairment Of Non-Financial Assets

    The carrying amount of non-financial assets is reviewed at each financial position to 
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. Impairment is measured by 
comparing the carrying values of the assets with their recoverable amounts. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of the net realisable value and its value in use, which is 
measured by reference to discounted cash flows. Recoverable amounts are estimated 
for individual assets, or if it is not possible, for the cash-generating unit (“CGU”).

    An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which 
it arises. Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount of an asset is treated as a 
reversal of the previous impairment loss and is recognised to the extent of the carrying 
amount of the asset that would have been determined (net of amortisation and 
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised. A reversal of impairment loss is 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued 
amount, in which case, such reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

   (ii) Impairment Of Financial Assets

    The Company recognises loss allowances for ECL on the following financial instruments 
that are not measured at FVTPL:

    (a) Debt instruments measured at FVOCI; and
    (b) Debt instruments measured at amortised cost.

    The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the ECL associated with its loans and 
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. For insurance receivables, the 
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to the lifetime expected 
credit losses. The Company recognises a loss allowance for ECL at each reporting date.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (e) Impairment Of Assets (cont'd.)

   (ii) Impairment Of Financial Assets (cont'd.)

    The measurement of ECL reflects:

    •  An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a 
range of possible outcomes;

    •  The time value of money; and
    •  Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort 

at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future 
economic conditions.

    The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for 
financial instruments on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their 
initial recognition.

    12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that result from default events on 
a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

    Not Credit-Impaired Financial Assets

    For financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date, the ECL is the 
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the 
entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to 
receive).

    Modified Financial Assets

    If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial 
asset is replaced with a new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an 
assessment is made whether the financial asset should be derecognised and ECL are 
measured as follows:

    •  If the expected modification will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then 
the expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in 
calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing asset.

    •  If the expected modification will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the 
expected fair value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing 
financial asset at the time of its derecognition. This amount is included in calculating 
the cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset that are discounted from the 
expected date of derecognition to the reporting date using the original effective 
interest rate of the existing financial asset.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (e) Impairment Of Assets (cont'd.)

   (ii) Impairment Of Financial Assets (cont'd.)

    Credit-Impaired Financial Assets

    At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets measured at 
amortised cost and debt financial assets measured at FVOCI are credit-impaired.

    A financial asset is 'credit-impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

    The Company considers factors as evidence that a financial instrument is credit 
impaired;

    •  Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
    •  A breach of contract such as default or past due event;
    •  The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company 

would not consider otherwise;
    •  It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial 

reorganisation; or
    •  The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial 

difficulties.

    For financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: the ECL is the 
difference between the gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (e) Impairment Of Assets (cont'd.)

   (ii) Impairment Of Financial Assets (cont'd.)

    Write-Off

    Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no 
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines 
that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate 
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial 
assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to 
comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

  (f) Derecognition

   A financial asset is derecognised when:  
  

   •  The contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or

   •  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the assets or has 
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a 
third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement: and either (a) has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control 
of the asset.

   Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has 
entered into a pass through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent it has retained 
the risk and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the 
asset is recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. 
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum 
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (f) Derecognition (cont'd.)

   On derecognition of a financial asset except for equity securities measured at FVOCI, the 
difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to 
the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (a) the consideration received 
(including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (b) any cumulative 
gain or loss that has been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss.

   On derecognition of equity securities measured at FVOCI, any cumulative gain/loss 
recognised in other comprehensive income is not recognised in statement of profit or loss.

   Any interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or 
retained by the Company is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

   Regular Way Purchase Or Sale Of A Financial Asset

   All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on 
trade date i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular 
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of 
assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the 
marketplace concerned.

  (g) Offsetting Of Financial Assets And Liabilities

   Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported on the 
statement of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets 
and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the statement 
of profit or loss unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, 
as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Company.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (h) Intangible Assets

   (i) Business Combination And Goodwill

    Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. 
This involves recognising identifiable assets and liabilities including contingent 
liabilities but excluding future restructuring liabilities of the acquired business at fair 
value. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net 
assets (net fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities) acquired 
is recognised as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair values of the 
identifiable net assets acquired, the discount on acquisition is recognised directly in the 
statement of profit or loss in the year of acquisition.

    Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured 
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

    For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired is allocated, from the 
acquisition date, to each of the Company’s CGU that are expected to benefit from the 
synergies of the combination irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the 
acquiree are assigned to those units.

    The CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and 
whenever there is an indication that the CGU may be impaired. Impairment is 
determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU to which the 
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying 
amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment 
losses recognised for goodwill are not reversed in subsequent periods.

    Where goodwill forms part of a CGU and part of the operation within that CGU is 
disposed, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the 
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the 
operation. Goodwill disposed in this circumstance is measured based on the relative fair 
values of the operations disposed and the portion of the CGU retained.

GREAT EASTERN
GENERAL INSURANCE
(MALAYSIA) BERHAD

77

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (h) Intangible Assets (cont'd.)

   (ii) Other Intangible Assets

    Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. 
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

    No amortisation is provided on capital works in progress as the assets are not yet 
available for use. Amortisation of an asset begins when it is available for use and 
calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of an asset. The useful 

    Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and 
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may 
be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least 
at the end of each reporting period.

    Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for 
impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The 
assessment of indefinite useful life is reviewed annually to determine whether the 
indefinite useful life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from 
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

    An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains 
control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any 
gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in 
the statement of profit or loss.

Category Of Asset

Computer software and software development costs

Distribution platform

Useful Life

3 to 10 years

6.5 years
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (i) Shareholders’ Equity

   Shareholders’ equity is defined as the residual interest in the assets of an entity after 
deducting all its liabilities. The following outlines the various types of equity and reserves 
of the Company.

   Ordinary share capital

   Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in equity. 
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted 
against share capital.

   Retained Earnings

   A portion of the retained earnings has been set aside to meet risk-based capital 
requirements for regulatory reporting purposes. These reserves are deemed statutory 
reserves and are not available for distribution to shareholders. These statutory reserves are 
measured according to the regulatory prescriptions and are subject to changes in line with 
the underlying risks underwritten.

   Fair Value Reserve

   Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in fair value of financial assets 
measured at FVOCI and the related loss allowance recognised in profit or loss until the 
assets are derecognised, net of tax. Any cumulative gain or loss on disposal (net of tax) for 
equities measured at FVOCI will be reclassified from fair value reserve to retained earnings.

  (j) Product Classification

   Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. Insurance 
contracts are contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance 
risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if 
a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. 
As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk, 
by comparing claims paid with claims payable if the insured event did not occur.

   Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance 
contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly 
during this period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired.

   When insurance contracts contain both a financial risk component and a significant 
insurance risk component and the cash flows from the two components are distinct and can 
be measured reliably, the underlying amounts are unbundled. Any premiums relating to the 
insurance risk component are accounted for on the same bases as insurance contracts and 
the remaining element is accounted for as a deposit through the statement of financial 
position similar to investment contracts.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (k) Reinsurance

   The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its businesses. 
Reinsurance assets represent amount receivable in respect of ceded insurance liabilities. 
These amounts are estimated in a manner consistent with the reinsured insurance contract 
liabilities, the outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated with reinsurer’s 
policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets 
arising from ceding of in-force book and gross onerous contracts are recognised in the 
same period when the gross liabilities are accrued.

   Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from the obligations to 
policyholders. Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and 
assumed reinsurance.

   Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently 
when an indication of impairment arises during the reporting period. Impairment occurs 
when there is objective evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial 
recognition of the reinsurance asset that the Company may not receive part or all 
outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract. The impairment loss is recorded 
in the statement of profit or loss. Gains or losses on reinsurance are recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss immediately at the date of contract and are not amortised. Ceded 
reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders.

   The Company also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business where 
applicable. Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognised as revenue or 
expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct 
business, taking into account the product classification of the reinsured business.

   Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amount payable 
are estimated in a manner consistent with the related reinsurance contract.

   Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are 
extinguished or expire or when the contract is transferred to another party.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (l) General Insurance Underwriting Results

   The general insurance underwriting results are determined for each class of business after 
taking into account reinsurances, commissions, premium liabilities and claim liabilities.

   Gross Premiums

   Gross premiums are recognised in a financial period in respect of risks assumed during that 
particular financial period.

   Reinsurance Premiums

   Inwards facultative reinsurance premiums are recognised in the financial period in respect 
of the facultative risks assumed during the particular financial period, as in the case of 
direct policies, following the individual risks' inception dates.

   Inwards proportional treaty reinsurance premium is recognised on the basis of periodic 
advices received from cedants given that the periodic advices reflect the individual 
underlying risks being incepted and reinsured at various inception dates of these risks and 
contractually accounted for.

   Premium Liabilities

   Premium liabilities represent the Company's future obligations on insurance contracts as 
represented by premiums received for risks that have not yet expired. In determining 
premium liabilities at reporting date, the method that most accurately reflects the actual 
unearned premium is used, as described in Note 2.2(n)(ii).

   Claim Liabilities

   A liability for outstanding claim is recognised in respect of both direct insurance and inward 
reinsurance.

   The amount of claim liabilities is the best estimate of the expenditure required together 
with related expenses less reinsurance recoveries to settle the present obligation at the 
financial position.

   Provision is also made for the cost of claims, together with related expenses, incurred but 
not reported at the financial position based on actuarial valuation, as described in Note 
2.2(n)(i).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (m) Insurance Receivables

   Insurance receivables are recognised when due. They are measured at initial recognition 
at the fair value received or receivable. Subsequent to initial recognition, insurance 
receivables are measured at amortised cost, using effective interest method. A loss 
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, with the impairment loss 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

   The expected credit loss impairment provisional amounts are recognised in the statement 
of profit or loss monthly.  Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount of the 
insurance receivable are treated as a reversal of the previous expected credit loss 
impairment amount.

   Insurance receivables are derecognised when the derecognition criteria for financial 
assets have been met. The Company’s insurance receivables include outstanding premium 
and reinsurance receivables.

  (n) General Insurance Contract Liabilities

   General insurance contract liabilities are recognised when contracts are entered into and 
premiums are charged. The valuation of general insurance contract liabilities is in 
accordance with the Risk-Based Capital Framework for Insurers (“RBC Framework”) 
issued by BNM.

   General insurance contract liabilities comprise claim liabilities and premium liabilities.

   (i) Claim Liabilities

    Claim liabilities are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not 
settled at the financial position, whether reported or not, together with related claims 
handling costs and reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries. 
Delays can be experienced in the notification and settlement of certain type of claims, 
therefore, the ultimate cost of these claims cannot be known with certainty at the 
financial position. The liability is calculated at the reporting date using a range of 
standard actuarial claim projection techniques based on empirical data and current 
assumptions that may include a provision for adverse deviation as required by the RBC 
Framework. The liability is not discounted for the time value of money. The liabilities 
are derecognised when the contract expires, are discharged or are cancelled.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (n) General Insurance Contract Liabilities (cont'd.)

   (i) Claim Liabilities (cont'd.)

    The valuation of general insurance contract liabilities at financial position is based on 
best estimates of the ultimate settlement cost of claims plus a provision for adverse 
deviation. As required by BNM, the provision for adverse deviation is set at 75% level of 
sufficiency. The valuation methods used include the paid and incurred link ratio 
methods, the paid and incurred Bornhuetter-Ferguson methods and the expected loss 
ratio methods.

   (ii) Premium Liabilities

    Premium liabilities is the higher of the aggregate of the Unearned Premium Reserves 
(“UPR”) for all lines of business and the best estimate value of the Unexpired Risk 
Reserves (“URR”) plus the required risk margin for adverse deviation as required by the 
RBC Framework.

    (a) UPR

      UPR represents the portion of net premiums of insurance policies written, less the 
related net acquisition costs that remains unearned at the financial position. UPR is 
computed with reference to the month of accounting for the premium reduced by 
the percentage of accounted gross direct business commissions to the 
corresponding premiums but not exceeding such limits as specified by BNM on the 
following basis:

      •  25% method for marine cargo business;
      •  1/365th method for all other classes of general business in respect of 

Malaysian policies; and
      •  Non-annual policies are time apportioned over the period of the risks.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (n) General Insurance Contract Liabilities (cont'd.)

   (ii) Premium Liabilities (cont'd.)

    (b) URR

      The URR is defined as a prospective estimate of the expected future payments 
arising from future events insured under policies in force as at the valuation date 
and also includes allowance for the Company’s expenses, including overheads and 
cost of reinsurance, expected to be incurred during the unexpired period in 
administering these policies and settling the relevant claims, and shall allow for 
expected future premium refunds.

  (o) Other Revenue Recognition

   Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 
to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair 
value of consideration received or receivable.

   Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis that takes into account the 
effective yield of the asset.

   Dividend is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

   All sales of investments are recognised on their trade dates i.e., the date the Company 
commits to sell the assets. Gains or losses arising from the sale of investments are 
calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or carrying 
amount and are credited or charged to the statement of profit or loss.

   Commission income derived from reinsurers in the course of cession of premiums to 
reinsurers are recognised to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are 
incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (p) Income Tax

   Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

   Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit 
for the year and is measured using the tax rates that have been enacted at the financial 
position.

   Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences at the 
financial position between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 
in the financial statements.

   In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and 
deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax 
losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and 
unused tax credits can be utilised.

   Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the 
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the financial position.

   Deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except when it arises from a 
transaction which is recognised directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also 
recognised directly in equity.

  (q) Provisions

   Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

   Provisions are reviewed at each financial position and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. Where the effect 
of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 
that reflects the risk specific to the liability.

   Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as finance cost.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (r) Contingent Liabilities

   A contingent liability is:  
    

   (i) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Company.

   (ii) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

    •  it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation; or

    •  the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

   Contingent liabilities are not recognised on the statement of financial position of the 
Company, except for contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination that are 
present obligations and for which the fair values can be reliably determined.

  (s) Employee Benefits

   Defined Contribution Plans Under Statutory Regulations

   As required by law, companies in Malaysia make contributions to the national pension 
scheme, the Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”). Such contributions are recognised as an 
expense in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

   Employee Leave Entitlements

   An employee's entitlement to annual leave is estimated and accrued according to the 
Company’s Human Resource policy.

   Share Options

   Senior executives of the Company are granted share options in the OCBC Bank's Share 
Option Scheme as consideration for services rendered. Options granted generally vest in 
one-third increments over a 3-year period and expire between 5 and 10 years from date of 
grant. The cost of these equity-settled share based payment transactions with the senior 
executives is measured by reference to the fair value of the options at the date on which the 
options are granted which takes into account market conditions and non-vesting conditions. 
The cost is recognised in the statement of profit or loss of the general insurance funds over 
the vesting period of the grant, with a corresponding increase in liabilities.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (s) Employee Benefits (cont'd.)

   Share Options (cont'd.)

   The cumulative expense recognised at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects 
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the 
number of options that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to statement of profit or loss 
for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the 
beginning and end of that period.

   No expense is recognised for options that do not ultimately vest, except for options where 
vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vested 
irrespective of whether or not the market condition or non-vesting condition is satisfied, 
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied. In the case 
where the option does not vest as a result of a failure to meet a non-vesting condition that 
is within the control of the Company or the senior executives, it is accounted for as a 
cancellation. In such case, the amount of the compensation cost that otherwise would be 
recognised over the remainder of the vesting period is recognised immediately in the 
statement of profit or loss upon cancellation.

   Deferred Share Plan

   In addition to the OCBC Bank’s Share Option Scheme, certain employees within the 
Company are granted OCBC shares under the OCBC Deferred Share Plan (“DSP”). There are 
2 types of deferred share awards. Deferred share awards granted as part of long term 
incentive compensation will vest three years from the grant date and will lapse if the staff 
ceases employment during the vesting period. For deferred share awards granted as part of 
variable performance bonus, half of the share awards will vest two years from the grant 
date and the remaining half will vest at the end of three years from the grant date. The cost 
of the DSP is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 
vesting period of the DSP.

   At each financial position, the cumulative expense is adjusted for the estimated number of 
shares granted under the DSP that have vested and/or lapsed.

   The Company has ceased granting OCBC share options to eligible executives with effect 
from FY2019.

GREAT EASTERN
GENERAL INSURANCE
(MALAYSIA) BERHAD

87

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (t) Cash And Cash Equivalents

   Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term, highly liquid 
investments with original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition, or 
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value.

  (u) Leases

   At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. 
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract involves the use of an identified asset and 
conveys the right to control the use of the asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration – i.e. the customer has the right to:

   •  obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from using the asset; and
   •  direct the use of the asset.

   The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commencement 
date of the lease. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the 
amount of lease liability, any lease payments made or before the commencement date, any 
indirect costs incurred and an estimate of the costs to dismantle and remove the underlying 
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease 
incentive received. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease 
payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate 
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental 
borrowing rate will be used as the discount rate. The Company generally uses its 
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

   Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or 
the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of the right-of-use assets are 
determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced by any impairment losses and adjusted for 
certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

   The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effect interest 
method. It is remeasured to reflect any lease modifications or reassessments.

   The Company presents its right-of-use assets in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease 
liabilities in the statement of financial position.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (u) Leases (cont'd.)

   Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

   The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for 
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. 
The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

  (v) Sales Tax Act 2018 and Service Tax Act 2018 ("SST")

   Effective from 1 September 2018, Sales Tax Act 2018 and Service Tax Act 2018 (“SST”) are 
introduced to replace the GST Act 2014. Service Tax is charged and levied on any provision 
of taxable services made in the furtherance of business by a taxable person and in Malaysia. 
Service tax is not chargeable on imported and exported services.

   The provision of all types of general insurance contracts to cover any risk incurred in 
Malaysia is a taxable service and subject to service tax at 6%.

   The amount of Service Tax payable to the tax authority is included as part of the payables 
in the statement of financial position.

  (w) Related Parties

   A related party is defined as follows:

   (a) A person or a close member of that person’s family who:

    (i) has control or joint control over the Company;
    (ii) has significant influence over the Company; or
    (iii) is a member of the key management personnel which includes the Directors, Chief 

Executive Officer and Senior Management Team of the Company or parent of the 
Company.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.2 Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

  (w) Related Parties (cont'd.)

   (b) An entity is related to the Company where any of the following condition applies:

    (i) the entity and the Company are members of the same Company (which means that 
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

    (ii) the entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint 
venture of a member of a Company of which the other entity is a member);

    (iii) both the entities are joint ventures of the same third party;
    (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of 

the third entity;
    (v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either 

the Company or an entity related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a 
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the Company;

    (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);
    (vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member 

of the key management personnel of the entity (or parent of the entity); or
    (viii) the entity, or any member of a Company of which it is a part, provides key 

management personnel services to the Company or to the parent of the Company.

   Related party transactions are reported in the Company’s financial statement in accordance 
with requirements of MFRS 124 Related Party Disclosures, Companies Act 2016 and 
Financial Services Act 2013 and Guidelines on Financial Reporting.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.3 Changes In Accounting Policies And Disclosures

  New And Amended Standards And IC Interpretations

  The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except 
as follows:  

  On 1 January 2022, the Company adopted the following amendments to MFRSs mandatory for 
annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

  • Amendment to MFRS 16 Leases - COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
  • Amendments to MFRS 116 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use
  • Amendments to MFRS 3 Business Combinations - Reference to the Conceptual Framework
  • Annual Improvements to MFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting 

Standards - Subsidiary as First-time Adopter
  • Annual Improvements to Illustrative Example accompanying MFRS 16 Leases - Lease 

Incentives
  • Annual Improvements to MFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Fees in the '10 per cent' test for 

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
  • Amendments to MFRS 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Onerous 

Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

  The adoption of the above pronouncement did not have any significant impact on the financial 
statements of the Company.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.4 Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective

  As at the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards, IC 
Interpretations and Amendments to Standards and improvements to published standards have 
been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) but are not yet effective 
and have not been adopted by the Company.

  Effective for the financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

  • Amendments to MFRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, MFRS Practice Statement 2 
and MFRS 108 on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - 
Disclosure of Accounting Policies and Definition of Accounting Estimates

  • Amendments to MFRS 112 Income Taxes - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities 
arising from a Single Transaction

  • MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts - Insurance Contracts and its amendments
  • Amendment to MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts - Initial Application of MFRS 17 Insurance 

Contracts and MFRS 9 Financial Instruments Comparative Information

  Effective for the financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

  • Amendments to MFRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification of liabilities 
as current or non-current” (‘2020 amendments’) and “Non-current Liabilities with 
Covenants” (‘2022 amendments’)

  • Amendments to MFRS 16 Leases - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

  The management expects that the adoption of the above standards, amendments to standards 
and interpretations to standards issued by MASB, but not yet effective, will have no material 
impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application except as discussed below:
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.4 Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective (cont'd.)

  A. MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (“MFRS 17”)

  The Company will apply MFRS 17 for the first time on 1 January 2023. It is a comprehensive new 
accounting standard for insurance and reinsurance contracts covering recognition, 
measurement, presentation and disclosure, and is expected to have a material impact on the 
Company’s consolidated financial statements in the period of initial application.

  MFRS 17 replaces MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and is effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2023. The nature and effects of the changes in the Company accounting 
policies are summarised below.

  (i)  Identifying contracts in the scope of MFRS 17

   MFRS 17 establishes specific principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and 
disclosure of insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held by the Company.

   The key principles of MFRS 17 are that the Company:

   • Identifies insurance contracts as those under which the Company accepts significant 
risk from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if 
a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the 
policyholder;

   • Separates specified embedded derivatives, distinct investment components and 
distinct noninsurance goods or services from insurance contracts and accounts for 
them in accordance with other standards; and

   • Divides the insurance and reinsurance contracts into groups they will recognise and 
measure.

  (ii)  Level Of Aggregation

   Under MFRS 17, insurance contracts are aggregated into groups for measurement 
purposes. Groups of insurance contracts are determined by identifying portfolios of 
insurance contracts, each comprising contracts subject to similar risks and managed 
together, and dividing each portfolio into annual cohort (by underwriting year), and further 
diving into three groups based on the expected profitability of the contracts:

   (a) any contracts that are onerous at initial recognition;
   (b) any contracts that at initial recognition have no significant possibility of becoming 

onerous subsequently; or
   (c) any remaining group of contracts.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.4 Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective (cont'd.)

  A. MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (“MFRS 17”) (cont'd.)

  (ii)  Level Of Aggregation (cont'd.)

   These groups represent the level of aggregation at which insurance contracts are initially 
recognised and measured. Such groups are not subsequently reconsidered.

   Portfolios of reinsurance contracts held are assessed for aggregation separately from 
portfolios of insurance contracts issued. Applying the grouping requirements to 
reinsurance contracts held, the company aggregates reinsurance contracts into portfolios 
of insurance contracts held by annual cohort (by treaty year) and further break into groups 
of:

   (a) contracts for which there is a net gain at initial recognition, if any;
   (b) contracts for which, at initial recognition, there is no significant possibility of a net gain 

arising subsequently; and
   (c) remaining contracts in the portfolio, if any.

   The level of aggregation of MFRS 17 limit the offsetting of gains on groups of profitable 
contracts, against losses on groups of onerous contracts, which are recognised 
immediately. Compared with the level at which the liability adequacy test is performed 
under MFRS 4 (i.e. entity level), the level of aggregation under MFRS 17 is more granular and 
is expected to result in more contracts being identified as onerous and losses on onerous 
contracts being recognised immediately.

  (iii) Contract Boundary

   Under MFRS 17, the measurement of a group of insurance contracts includes all the future 
cash flows within the boundary of each contract in the group. Cash flows are within the 
boundary of an insurance contract if they arise from substantive rights and obligations that 
exist during the reporting period in which the Company can compel the policyholder to pay 
the premiums, or in which the Company has a substantive obligation to provide the 
policyholder with insurance contract services. A substantive obligation to provide insurance 
contract services ends when:

   (a) The Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the particular policyholder 
and, as a result, can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects those risks, or
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.4 Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective (cont'd.)

  A. MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (“MFRS 17”) (cont'd.)

  (iii) Contract Boundary (cont'd.)

   (b) Both of the following criteria are satisfied:
    • The Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the portfolio of 

insurance contracts that contain the contract and, as a result, can set a price or level 
of benefits that fully reflects the risk of that portfolio; and

    • The pricing of the premiums up to the date when the risks are reassessed does not 
take into account the risks that relate to periods after the reassessment date.

   A liability or asset relating to expected premiums or claims outside the boundary of the 
insurance contract are not recognised. Such amounts relate to future insurance contracts.

   For groups of reinsurance contracts held, cash flows are within the contract boundary if 
they arise from substantive rights and obligations of the Company that exist during the 
reporting period in which the Company is compelled to pay amounts to the reinsurer or in 
which the Company has a substantive right to receive insurance contract services from the 
reinsurer.

   Cash flows that are not directly attributable to a portfolio of insurance contracts, are 
recognised in other operating expenses as incurred.

  (iv) Measurement - Overview

   MFRS 17 introduces a measurement model based on the estimates of the present value of 
future cash flows that are expected to arise as the Company fulfils the contracts, an explicit 
risk adjustment for non-financial risk and a CSM. For an explanation of how the Company 
will apply the measurement model, see note 2.4A(v).

   All of these contracts are measured under the Premium Allocation Approach (“PAA”) due to 
the duration of the policy issued by the Company are generally less or equal to one year. The 
PAA is an optional simplified measurement model in MFRS 17 that is available for insurance 
and reinsurance contracts that meet the eligibility criteria.

  (v) Measurement – contracts not measured under the PAA

   On initial recognition, the Company measures a group of insurance contracts as the total of:
   (a)  the fulfilment cash flows, and
   (b)  the Contractual Service Margin.

   The fulfilment cash flows of a group of insurance contracts do not reflect the Company’s 
non-performance risk.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.4 Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective (cont'd.)

  A. MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (“MFRS 17”) (cont'd.)

  (v) Measurement – contracts not measured under the PAA (cont'd.)

   If the total is a net outflow, then the group is onerous. A loss from onerous insurance 
contracts is recognised in profit or loss immediately, with no CSM recognised on the 
balance sheet on initial recognition, and a loss component is established in the amount of 
loss recognised.

   Fulfilment Cash Flows (“FCF”)

   The FCF are the current estimates of the future cash flows within the contract boundary of 
a group of contracts that the Company expects to collect from premiums and pay out for 
claims, benefits and expenses, adjusted to reflect the timing and the uncertainty of those 
amounts.

   The estimates of future cash flows are adjusted using the current discount rates to reflect 
the time value of money and the financial risks related to those cash flows, to the extent not 
included in the estimates of cash flows. The discount rates reflect the characteristics of the 
cash flows arising from the groups of insurance contracts, including timing, currency and 
liquidity of cash flows.

   Contractual Service Margin (“CSM”)

   The CSM is a component of the carrying amount of the asset or liability for a group of 
insurance contracts issued representing the unearned profit that the Company will 
recognise as it provides insurance contract services in the future.

   At initial recognition, the CSM is an amount that results in no income or expenses (unless a 
group of contracts is onerous or insurance revenue and insurance service expenses are 
recognised as in (d) below) arising from:

   (a) the initial recognition of the FCF;
   (b) cash flows arising from the contracts in the group at that date;
   (c) the derecognition of any insurance acquisition cash flows asset; and
   (d) the derecognition of any other pre-recognition cash flows. Insurance revenue and 

insurance service expenses are recognised immediately for any such assets 
derecognised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.4 Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective (cont'd.)

  A. MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (“MFRS 17”) (cont'd.)

  (v) Measurement – contracts not measured under the PAA (cont'd.)

   Subsequent Measurement

   Subsequently, carrying amount of a group of insurance contracts at each reporting date is 
the sum of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims. The 
liability for remaining coverage (“LRC”) comprises:

   (a) the fulfilment cash flows that relate to services that will be provided under the 
contracts in future periods and

   (b) any remaining CSM at that date. The liability for incurred claims (“LIC”) includes the 
fulfilment cash flows for incurred claims and expenses that have not yet been paid, 
including claims that have been incurred but not yet reported.

   The fulfilment cash flows of groups of contracts are measured at the reporting date using 
current estimates of future cash flows, current discount rates and current estimates of the 
risk adjustment for non-financial risk. Changes in fulfilment cash flows are recognise as 
follows:

   The CSM is adjusted subsequently only for changes in fulfilment cash flows that relate to 
future services and other specified amounts and is recognised in profit or loss as services 
are provided. The CSM at each reporting date represents the profit in the group of contracts 
that has not yet been recognised in profit or loss because it relates to future services.

Changes relating to future
service

Changes relating to current or
past services

Effects of the time value of
money, financial risk and
changes therein on estimated
cash flows

Adjusted against CSM (or recognised in the insurance
service result in profit or loss if the group is onerous)

Recognised in the insurance service result in profit
or loss

Recognised as insurance finance income or expenses
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.4 Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective (cont'd.)

  A. MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (“MFRS 17”) (cont'd.)

  (v) Measurement – contracts not measured under the PAA (cont'd.)

   Reinsurance Contracts

   The Company will apply the same accounting policies to measure a group of reinsurance 
contracts, with the following modifications.

   The carrying amount of a group of reinsurance contracts at each reporting date is the sum 
of the asset for remaining coverage and the asset for incurred claims. The asset for 
remaining coverage comprises (a) the fulfilment cash flows that relate to services that will 
be received under the contracts in future periods and (b) any remaining CSM at that date.

   The Company will measure the estimates of the present value of future cash flows using 
assumptions that are consistent with those used to measure the estimates of the present 
value of future cash flows for the underlying insurance contracts, with an adjustment for 
any risk of non-performance by the reinsurer. The effect of the non performance risk of the 
reinsurer is assessed at each reporting date and the effect of changes in the non 
performance risk is recognised in profit or loss.

   The risk adjustment for non-financial risk will represent the amount of risk being 
transferred by the Company to the reinsurer.

   For groups of reinsurance contracts held, any net gain or loss at initial recognition is 
recognised as the CSM unless the net cost of purchasing reinsurance relates to past events, 
in which case the Company recognises the net cost immediately in profit or loss. For 
reinsurance contracts held, the CSM represents a deferred gain or loss that the Company 
will recognise as a reinsurance expense as it receives insurance contract services from the 
reinsurer in the future.

   Insurance Acquisition Cash Flows

   Insurance acquisition cash flows are allocated to groups of insurance contracts on a 
systematic and rational basis.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.4 Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective (cont'd.)

  A. MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (“MFRS 17”) (cont'd.)

  (v) Measurement – contracts not measured under the PAA (cont'd.)

   Impact Assessment

   Based on the preliminary assessment, the contracts that being issued and held by GEGM 
are to be measured under PAA.

  (vi) Measurement – contracts measured under the PAA

   For insurance contracts issued, on initial recognition, the Company measures the LRC at the 
amount of premiums received, less any acquisition cash flows paid and any amounts arising 
from the derecognition of the insurance acquisition cash flows asset and the derecognition 
of any other relevant pre-recognition cash flows.

   For reinsurance contracts held, on initial recognition, the Company measures the remaining 
coverage at the amount of ceding premiums paid, plus broker fees paid to a party other than 
the reinsurer and any amounts arising from the derecognition of any other relevant 
pre-recognition cash flows.

   The carrying amount of a group of insurance contracts issued at the end of each reporting 
period is the sum of the LRC and the LIC, comprising the FCF related to past service 
allocated to the group at the reporting date.

   The carrying amount of a group of reinsurance contracts held at the end of each reporting 
period is the sum of the remaining coverage and the incurred claims, comprising the FCF 
related to past service allocated to the group at the reporting date.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.4 Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective (cont'd.)

  A. MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (“MFRS 17”) (cont'd.)

  (vi) Measurement – contracts measured under the PAA (cont'd.)

   For insurance contracts issued, at each of the subsequent reporting dates, the LRC is:
   (a) increased for premiums received in the period, excluding amounts that relate to 

premium receivables included in the LIC;
   (b) decreased for insurance acquisition cash flows paid in the period;
   (c) decreased for the amounts of expected premium receipts recognised as insurance 

revenue for the services provided in the period;
   (d) increased for the amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows in the period 

recognised as insurance service expenses; and
   (e) increased for insurance finance income and expenses recognised during the period.

   For reinsurance contracts held, at each of the subsequent reporting dates, the remaining 
coverage is:

   (a) increased for ceding premiums paid in the period;
   (b) increased for broker fees paid in the period; and
   (c) decreased for the expected amounts of ceding premiums and broker fees recognised as 

reinsurance expenses for the services received in the period.

   Future cash flows are adjusted for the time value of money.

   Impact Assessment

   Based on the preliminary assessment, the contracts that being issued and held by GEGM 
are all eligible to be measured under the Premium Allocation Approach (“PAA”). The 
Company intend to apply PAA to all the insurance contracts issued and reinsurance 
contracts. The following changes are expected in the accounting for contracts under PAA.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.4 Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective (cont'd.)

  A. MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (“MFRS 17”) (cont'd.)

  (vi) Measurement – contracts measured under the PAA (cont'd.)

   Impact Assessment (cont'd.)

  (vii) Measurement – Significant Judgements and Estimates

    The Company makes estimates, assumptions and judgements in its estimates of future 
cash flows, discount rates used, risk adjustments for non-financial risk, and CSM. The 
Company is still in the midst of finalizing the judgements and estimation techniques 
employed, which are subject to change until the Company finalizes its first financial 
statements that include the date of initial application.

Changes from MFRS 4 Impact on equity
on transition
to MFRS 17

Decrease

Increase

Decrease

Increase

Decrease

Under MFRS 17, the Company will apply financing component
when measuring liabilities for Remaining Coverage. The
Company does not apply financing component on Premium
Liability on MFRS 4.

Under MFRS 17, the Company will discount the future cash
flows when measuring liabilities for incurred claims regardless
of time of expected payment. The Company does not currently
discount such future cash flows.

The Company will adopt a risk adjustment at the 85th
percentile when measuring liabilities for incurred claims and
liabilities for remaining coverage. This compares to the
provision for adverse deviation used under MFRS 4 which is
measured at the 75th percentile. 

The Company will immediately recognise losses on onerous
groups of contracts rather than at a fund level under MRFS 4.
As a result, there will no longer be cross-subsidisation
of losses.

The Company’s accounting policy under MFRS 17 to
recognized separately eligible insurance acquisition cash flows
when they are incurred as deferred acquisition costs differs
from current practice to expense these amounts.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.4 Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective (cont'd.)

  A. MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (“MFRS 17”) (cont'd.)

  (viii)  Presentation And Disclosure

  Under MFRS 17, for presentation in the balance sheet, the Company will aggregate 
portfolios of insurance and reinsurance contracts held and present separately:

  • Portfolios of insurance contracts that are assets;
  • Portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are assets;
  • Portfolios of insurance contracts that are liabilities; and
  • Portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are liabilities. 

  The portfolios referred to above are those established at initial recognition in accordance 
with the MFRS 17 requirements.

  The descriptions of the line items in the Consolidated Profit or Loss Statement will change 
significantly compared with the Company’s current practice. Under MFRS 4, the Company 
reports the following line items: premiums, claims, maturities, surrenders and annuities 
and change in insurance contract liabilities. MFRS 17 requires separate presentation of: 

  • Insurance revenue;
  • Insurance service expense;
  • Insurance finance income or expense; and
  • Income or expenses from reinsurance contracts held.

  The Company will provide disaggregated qualitative and quantitative information in the 
notes to the financial statements about:

  • The amounts recognised in its financial statements from insurance contracts and 
reinsurance contracts; and 

  • Significant judgements, and changes in those judgements made when applying the 
standard.

  Insurance service result comprises insurance revenue and insurance service expenses.

  Insurance Revenue

  As the Company provides insurance contract services under the group of insurance 
contracts, it reduces the LRC and recognises insurance revenue. The amount of insurance 
revenue recognised in the reporting period depicts the transfer of promised services at an 
amount that reflects the portion of consideration that the Company expects to be entitled 
to in exchange for those services.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.4 Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective (cont'd.)

  A. MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (“MFRS 17”) (cont'd.)

  (viii)  Presentation And Disclosure (cont'd.)

  Insurance Revenue (cont'd.)

  The Company recognize the Insurance Revenue by passage of time. Many insurance 
premiums include an investment (that is, deposit) component – an amount that will be paid 
to policyholders or their beneficiaries in all circumstances, regardless of whether an 
insured event occurs. The receipt and repayment of these non-distinct investment 
components do not relate to the provision of insurance services; therefore, such amounts 
are not presented as part of the insurer’s revenue or insurance service expenses.

  Insurance Service Expense

  For contracts measured under the PAA, amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows 
is based on the passage of time.

  Other expenses that relate directly to the fulfilment of contracts will be recognised in 
profit or loss as insurance service expenses, generally when they are incurred. Expenses 
that do not relate directly to the fulfilment contracts are included in other operating 
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

  Insurance Finance Income Or Expenses

  Insurance finance income or expenses comprise the change in the carrying amount of the 
group of insurance contracts arising from:

  (a) the effect of the time value of money and changes in the time value of money; and
  (b) the effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk.

  The Company will report the entire change in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk is 
included in insurance service results. For change in interest rate adopted in insurance 
finance income or expenses, the Company chose to not disaggregate them into Profit or 
Loss and OCI.     
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.4 Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective (cont'd.)

  A. MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (“MFRS 17”) (cont'd.)

  (viii)  Presentation And Disclosure (cont'd.)

 Disclosure

 MFRS 17 requires extensive new disclosures about amounts recognised in the financial 
statements, including detailed reconciliations of contracts, effects of newly recognised 
contracts, as well as disclosures about significant judgements made when applying MFRS 17. 
There will also be expanded disclosures about the nature and extent of risks from insurance 
contracts and reinsurance contracts. Disclosures will generally be made at a more granular 
level than under MFRS 4, providing more transparent information for assessing the effects of 
contracts on the financial statements.

 B. Transition

 The Company will restate the comparative information based on the transition approaches 
taken on adoption of MFRS 17.

 Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of MFRS 17 will be applied using the 
full retrospective approach to the extent practicable.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.5 Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates And Assumptions

  (a) Critical Judgements Made In Applying Accounting Policies

   In the preparation of the Company’s financial statements, management makes estimates, 
assumptions and judgements that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, 
assets and liabilities at reporting date. Estimates, assumptions and judgements are 
continually evaluated and based on internal studies of actual historical experience and 
other factors. Best estimates and assumptions are constantly reviewed to ensure that they 
remain relevant and valid. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates 
could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
the asset or liability affected in future periods.

   The following are judgements made by management in the process of applying the 
Company’s accounting policies that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in 
the financial statements.

   (i)  Impairment Of Financial Assets

    The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of 
default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these 
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the 
Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates 
at the end of each reporting period.

  (b) Key Sources Of Estimation Uncertainty And Assumptions

   The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at the financial position date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed 
below.

   (i) Valuation Of General Insurance Contract Liabilities

    The principal uncertainty in the Company's general insurance business arises from the 
technical provisions which include premium and claim liabilities. Premium liabilities are 
recorded as the higher of UPR or URR at a 75% level of sufficiency while claim liabilities 
mainly comprise the provision for outstanding claims notified and outstanding claims 
incurred but not reported.

    Generally, claim liabilities are determined based upon previous claims experience, 
existing knowledge of events, the terms and conditions of the relevant policies and 
interpretation of circumstances. Particularly relevant are past experience with similar 
cases, historical claims development trends, legislative changes, judicial decisions and 
economic conditions.  It is certain that actual future premium and claim liabilities will not 
exactly develop as projected and may vary from the Company's projections.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 2.5 Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates And Assumptions (cont'd.)

  (b) Key Sources Of Estimation Uncertainty And Assumptions (cont'd.)

   (i) Valuation Of General Insurance Contract Liabilities (cont'd.)

    The estimates of premium and claim liabilities are therefore sensitive to various factors 
and uncertainties. The establishment of technical provisions is an inherently uncertain 
process and, as a consequence of this uncertainty, the eventual settlement of premium 
and claim liabilities may vary from the initial estimates.

    Following the identification and notification of an insured loss, there may still be 
uncertainty as to the magnitude of the claim. There are many factors that will determine 
the level of uncertainty such as inflation, inconsistent judicial interpretations, legislative 
changes and claims handling procedures.

    At each reporting date, the estimates of premium and claim liabilities are re-assessed 
for adequacy by an appointed actuary and changes will be reflected as adjustments to 
these liabilities. The appointment of the actuary is approved by BNM.

   (ii) Pipeline Premium

    The estimation of pipeline premiums made by management is based on average actual 
pipeline premium booked in for the past three (3) years. As estimations are inherently 
uncertain, actual premium may differ from the estimated premiums.

   (iii) Impairment Of Goodwill

    The Company assesses goodwill annually to determine if any impairment exists by 
measuring the recoverable amount of the goodwill based on the value-in-use method, 
which requires the use of estimates of cash flow projections, growth rates and discount 
rates. Changes to the assumptions used by management, particularly the discount rate 
and the terminal value, may affect the results of the impairment assessment. The 
assumptions applied to estimate the value-in-use computations are as described in Note 
3 to the financial statements.
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3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Total
 RM

Capital
work-in-

progress
RM

Software
RM

Distribution
platform

RM
Goodwill

RM

 66,005,617 19,822,125 23,628,394 4,372,500 18,182,598

Cost

Accumulated Amortisation

-
-

Additions
Reclassification

 17,088,692- 16,359,942 728,750-

 21,583,431- 20,181,989 1,401,442-
 6,701,518- 6,028,826 672,692-Amortisation for the year

 28,284,949- 26,210,815 2,074,134-

 54,297,014 26,636,372 6,506,986 2,971,058 18,182,598

 58,260,893 3,146,240 34,633,689 2,298,366 18,182,598

Net Carrying Amount

 4,494,739- 3,822,047 672,692-Amortisation for the year

 75,880,445 26,636,372 26,688,975 4,372,500 18,182,598

 86,545,842 3,146,240 60,844,504 4,372,500 18,182,598

 10,665,397
 -

 7,171,278
 (30,661,410)

 3,494,119
 30,661,410

-
-

-
-

Additions
Reclassification

At 1 January 2021

At 1 January 2021

At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2022

 10,048,232
 (173,404)

 10,048,232
 (3,233,985)

 -
 3,060,581

-
-
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3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D.)

 3.1 Goodwill

  The goodwill above arose from the acquisition of certain assets and liabilities of the general 
insurance business of Tahan Insurance Malaysia Berhad (“Tahan”) (now known as IUB 
Greengold Berhad) on 1 January 2011.

  Goodwill is allocated to the Company’s CGU which is expected to benefit from the synergies of 
the acquisition. The recoverable amount of the CGU is assessed based on its value-in-use and 
compared to the carrying value of the CGU to determine whether any impairment exists. 
Impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss if the carrying amount of the CGU 
exceeds its recoverable amount.

  Goodwill is allocated to the Company's business as a whole, which is defined as a single CGU. 
The value-in-use calculations apply discounted cash flow projections prepared and approved 
by management, covering a five-year period.

  The other key assumptions for the computation of value-in-use are as follows:

  (i) The expected growth rate of the Company is on the average of 11.5% per annum (2021: 
10.2%);

  (ii) The discount rate applied is the internal weighted average cost of capital of the Company at 
the time of the assessment, which is estimated to be 8.1% per annum (2021: 10.0%), pre-tax 
discount rate of 8.6% per annum (2021: 11.2%); and

  (iii) Terminal value cash flow growth rate of 6.0% (2021: 6.0%), which is consistent with the 
Gross Domestic Product rate.

  The management of the Company believes that any reasonably possible changes in any of the 
above key assumptions would not cause the carrying value of the CGU to exceed its recoverable 
amount. Accordingly, there is no evidence of impairment of goodwill as at the financial 
year-end.
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4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

 (a) Owned

Total
 RM

Capital
work-in-

progress
RM

Computer
equipment

RM

Motor
vehicles

RM

Office
equipment,
renovation,

furniture
& fittings

RM

 10,461,295 932,752 2,697,832 425,214 6,405,497

Cost

Accumulated Depreciation

 1,975,421
 -

 (329,000)
 (282,759)

 529,887
 (560,802)

 -
 -

 782,554
 560,802

 -
 (18,104)

 331,209
 -

 (329,000)
 -

 331,771
 -
 -

 (264,655)

Additions
Reclassification
Disposal
Write-off

 6,667,747- 1,832,954 425,212 4,409,581

 7,871,940- 2,741,637 118,512 5,011,791
 2,259,830

 (10,000)
 (133,314)

-
-
-

 1,413,264
 -

 (62,425)

 66,241
-
-

 780,325
 (10,000)

 (70,889)

Depreciation charge for the year (Note 22)
Disposal
Write-off

 9,988,456- 4,092,476 184,753 5,711,227

 3,953,017 901,837 1,281,447 308,911 1,460,822

 3,336,107 1,500 2,277,815 242,670 814,122

Net Carrying Amount

 1,812,308
 (328,998)

 (279,117)

-
-
-

 926,534
 -

 (17,851)

 22,298
 (328,998)

 -

 863,476
 -

 (261,266)

Depreciation charge for the year (Note 22)
Disposal
Write-off

 11,824,957 901,837 4,023,084 427,423 6,472,613

 13,324,563 1,500 6,370,291 427,423 6,525,349

 1,660,282
 -

 (20,000)
 (140,676)

    104,293
 (1,004,630)

-
-

 1,405,023
 1,004,630

 -
 (62,446)

-
-
-
-

 150,966
 -

 (20,000)
 (78,230)

Additions
Reclassification
Disposal
Write-off

At 1 January 2021

At 1 January 2021

At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2022

Included in the cost of property and equipment of the Company are the costs of fully depreciated 
assets which are still in use amounting to RM7,087,467 (2021: RM3,680,555).
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Total
RM

Cost

 Other
 Right-Of-

 Use Assets
RM

 Properties
 RM

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D.)

 (b) Right-of-use Assets

Accumulated Depreciation

 1,631,608
 (1,562,349)

Additions
Lease expiration

 6,003,205

Net Carrying Amount

 3,319,165
 (674,765)

Depreciation charge for the year (Note 22)
Lease expiration

 19,426,614

-
 -

 457,151

 185,677
 -

 702,782

 1,631,608
 (1,562,349)

 5,546,054

 3,133,488
 (674,765)

 18,723,832

At 1 January 2021

At 31 December 2021
 3,211,073

 (5,121,904)
Depreciation charge for the year (Note 22)
Lease expiration

 185,967
 (150,401)

 3,599,657

 3,025,106
 (4,971,503)

At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021

 14,141,800 210,699 13,931,101At 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021

 9,187,792
 (10,380,232)

Additions
Lease expiration

 18,234,174

 151,035
 (150,401)
 703,416

 9,036,757
 (10,229,831)
 17,530,758At 31 December 2022

At 1 January 2021

 492,717  4,092,374

 19,357,355 702,782 18,654,573

 3,358,805 271,474 3,087,331

 13,423,409 245,631 13,177,778
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Included in financial assets at FVOCI are quoted equity securities of RM31,765,377 (2021: 
RM30,819,046) with no maturity date.

Included in financial assets at FVTPL are collective investment schemes of RM95,036,933 (2021: 
RM184,288,036) with no maturity date.

5. INVESTMENTS

 2022
 RM

Malaysian government securities

Debt securities

Equity securities

Collective investment schemes

Loans

 731,234,396

The Company's investments are summarised by categories as follows:

 2022
 RM

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL
 731,234,396

The following investments mature after 12 months:

 2022
 RM

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL
 694,011,197

 628,672

 605,660,019

 124,945,705

 618,301

 568,447,191

 124,945,705

 122,532,450

 471,960,663

 41,075,678

 95,036,933

 628,672

 2021
 RM

 731,891,678

 2021
 RM

 731,891,678

 2021
 RM

 638,614,848

 544,219

 504,216,269

 227,131,190

 544,219

 410,939,439

 227,131,190

 131,487,510

 367,096,445

 48,475,468

 184,288,036

 544,219
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The carrying value of financial assets measured at amortised cost are reasonable approximations 
of fair values due to the insignificant impact of discounting. 

Allowance for ECL has been provided for Malaysian government securities and unquoted debt 
securities measured at FVOCI amount to RM1,731,203 (2021: RM3,162,434). The movement of 
allowance for ECL is detailed in Note 31(vi).

Quoted equities securities measured at FVOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2022, the Company sold listed equity securities due 
to portfolio rebalancing activities. These investments had a fair value of RM981,451 (2021: 
RM2,660,881) at the date of disposal. The cumulative loss on disposal (net of tax) of RM151,990 
(2021: RM786,514) was reclassified from fair value reserve to retained earnings.

5. INVESTMENTS (CONT'D.)

 2022
 RM

Vehicle loans

 628,672

 628,672

(a) Financial Assets Measured At Amortised Cost

 2022
 RM

Malaysian government securities

Unquoted debt securities in Malaysia

Quoted equity securities in Malaysia
 605,660,019

 122,532,450

 451,362,193

 31,765,376

(b) Financial Assets Measured At FVOCI

 2021
 RM

 544,219

 544,219

 2021
 RM

 504,216,269

 131,487,510

 341,909,713

 30,819,046
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 2022
 RM

Unquoted debt securities in Malaysia

Quoted equity securities in Malaysia

Unquoted equity securities in Malaysia

Collective investment schemes

 124,945,705

 20,598,470

 4,772

 9,305,530

 95,036,933

5. INVESTMENTS (CONT'D.)

(c) Financial assets measured at FVTPL

(d) Carrying Values Of Investments

 2021
 RM

 227,131,190

 25,186,732

 16,702

 17,639,720

 184,288,036

Total
 RM

 FVTPL
 RM

 FVOCI
 RM

 Amortised Cost
RM

 731,891,678

  317,738,655

 (310,635,794)

 (18,496,557)

 (6,257,220)

 (1,643,979)

 227,131,190

 7,797,207

 (6,931,790)

 -

 (6,257,220)

 -

 504,216,269

 309,903,448

 (303,411,496)

 (18,496,557)

 -

 (1,643,979)

 544,219

   38,000

 (292,508)

 -

 -

-

 751,186,573 232,522,993 517,864,853 798,727At 1 January 2021

At 31 December 2021

Purchases (Note 26)

Maturities/disposals

Fair value losses recorded in other

 comprehensive income

Fair value losses recorded in statement

 of profit or loss

Amortisation
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5. INVESTMENTS (CONT'D.)

(d) Carrying Values Of Investments (cont’d.)

 731,234,396

 752,632,135

 (743,844,636)

 (4,010,597)

 (3,771,252)

 (1,662,932)

 124,945,705

 20,193,955

 (118,608,188)

 -

 (3,771,252)

 -

 605,660,019

 732,123,180

 (625,005,901)

 (4,010,597)

 -

 (1,662,932)

 628,672

   315,000

 (230,547)

 -

 -

-

 731,891,678 227,131,190 504,216,269 504,216,269At 1 January 2022

At 31 December 2022

Purchases (Note 26)

Maturities/disposals

Fair value losses recorded in other

 comprehensive income

Fair value losses recorded in statement

 of profit or loss

Amortisation

Total
 RM

 FVTPL
 RM

 FVOCI
 RM

 Amortised Cost
RM
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6. REINSURANCE ASSETS

The Company have provided for impairment losses for reinsurance assets of reinsurers who are fully 
impaired as a result of deteriorating financial performance and credit ratings of the reinsurers. 
During the year, the Company has recognised reversal of impairment losses of RM21,993 (2021: 
RM2,126) provided earlier due to the closure of time-barred losses.

Movement Of Accumulated Impairment Losses Account:

 2022
 RM

Reversal of impairment losses

 1,276

 23,269

 (21,993)

Individually Impaired

At beginning of year

At end of year

 2022
 RM

Reinsurers' share of claim liabilities

Accumulated impairment losses

Reinsurers' share of claim liabilities (Note 12)

Reinsurers' share of premium liabilities (Note 12)
 689,590,698

 617,535,431

 (1,276)

 617,534,155

 72,056,543

 2021
 RM

 23,269

 25,395

 (2,126)

 2021
 RM

 724,539,305

 667,902,295

 (23,269)

 667,879,026

 56,660,279
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Premiums

Commissions

Claims

Gross amounts
offset in the

statement of
financial
position

RM

 (35,981,520)

 (23,234,631)

 (12,746,889)

 -

Net amounts
in the

statement of
financial
position

RM

 140,088,115

 106,609,618

 (11,552,632)

 45,031,129

Gross
carrying
 amount

RM

 176,069,635

 129,844,249

 1,194,257

 45,031,129

Premiums

Commissions

Claims

2022

Movement in the allowance for ECL of insurance receivables:

2021

Write off

Increase/(Decrease) in provision for ECL

At beginning of year

At end of year

2022
RM

 1,978,769

 (787,780)

 134,373

 2,632,176

Insurance receivables that do not meet the offsetting criteria amount to RM27,406,044 (2021: 
RM10,902,643). 

The Company's insurance receivables have been offset against payables are as follows:

7. INSURANCE RECEIVABLES

 2022
 RM

Due premiums including agents/brokers,

 co-insurers and insured balances

Due from reinsurers and cedants

Allowance for ECL

 165,515,390

 121,178,319

 46,315,840

 167,494,159

 (1,978,769)

 2021
 RM

 60,648,631

  51,082,887

 12,197,920

 63,280,807

 (2,632,176)

 (14,239,631)

 (3,689,721)

 (10,549,767)

 (143)
 52,378,165

 52,165,167

 (10,310,152)

 10,523,150
 66,617,796

 55,854,888

 239,615

 10,523,293

2021
RM

 2,632,176

 -

 (2,111,579)

 4,743,755
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The carrying amounts of other receivables (not including assets held under the MMIP) approximate 
fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these balances.

* As a participating member of MMIP (“Pool”), the Company shares a proportion of the Pool's 
assets/liabilities. At each reporting date, the Company accounts for its share of the assets, 
liabilities and performance of the Pool. The assets held under the MMIP represents the Company’s 
share of the Pool's assets, before insurance contract liabilities and other liabilities. The Company’s 
share of the Pool's insurance contract liabilities, other liabilities and net exposure arising from its 
participation in the Pool are disclosed in Notes 12, 15 and 31(v) respectively.    
 

 Assets held under the MMIP includes net cash contribution of RM10,849,491 (2021: RM12,849,491) 
made to MMIP. The accumulated net cash contributions were made in respect of the Company's 
share of MMIP's accumulated losses/surplus up to 31 December 2022.

The amounts due from immediate holding company and related companies are unsecured, interest 
free and are repayable on demand.

 2022
 RM

8. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Amount due from related companies (Note 29(a))

Income due and accrued

Assets held under the Malaysian

 Motor Insurance Pool (“MMIP”) (Note 31(v))*

Collateral fixed deposits

Deposits and prepayments

Other receivables

 2021
 RM

 2,350,848

 7,713,664

 41,007,509

 6,637,228

 1,993,947

 199,101

 59,902,297 

 2,756,610

 6,482,138

 45,442,759

 5,975,220

 1,223,990

 38,470

 61,919,187

GREAT EASTERN
GENERAL INSURANCE
(MALAYSIA) BERHAD

117

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Deferred Tax Liabilities:

At 1 January 2022

Accelerated
capital

allowance on
property and

equipment
RM

Total
RM

 2,970,842

Investments
RM

 (1,672,747)  1,298,095At 31 December 2022

 592,708

 2,378,134

 -

 72,184

 (438,892)

 (1,306,039)

 664,892

 1,939,242

 (1,306,039)

9. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) / LIABILITIES

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same tax 
authority.

2022
 RM

Recognised in:

 Statement of profit or loss (Note 23)

 Other comprehensive income
 (2,908,096)

 (3,726,860)

 2,124,803

 (1,306,039)

At beginning of year

At end of year

The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and assets during the financial year prior 
to offsetting are as follows:

2022
 RM

Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets
 (2,908,096)

 1,298,095

 (4,206,191)

Recognised in:

 Statement of profit or loss

 Other comprehensive income

2021
 RM

 (3,726,860)

 1,606,011

  (1,187,071)

 (4,145,800)

2021
 RM

 (3,726,860)

  664,892

 (4,391,752)
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9. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) / LIABILITIES (CONT’D.)

Deferred Tax Liabilities: (cont’d.)

Accelerated
capital

allowance on
property and

equipment
RM

Total
RM

Investments
RM

Deferred Tax Assets:

Total
RM

 Provision
  for ECL

RM

 Premium
 liabilities

RM
 Leases

RM
 Provisions

RM
At 1 January 2022

 (4,206,191)At 31 December 2022

 (4,391,752)

   185,561
  (442,316)

 (604,582)

   162,266
 (709,873)

 (938,238)

 228,365
 (92,368)

 (156,203)

 63,835
 (2,961,634)

 (2,692,729)

 (268,905)

Recognised in:

 Statement of profit or loss

At 1 January 2021

 592,708 72,184  664,892At 31 December 2021

 650,960

 (58,252)

 -

 6,215,363

 (1,997,379)

 (4,145,800)

 6,866,323

 (2,055,631)

 (4,145,800)

Recognised in:

 Statement of profit or loss

 Other comprehensive income

At 1 January 2021

 (4,391,752)At 31 December 2021

 (5,260,312)

  868,560
 (604,582)

 (1,111,702)

  507,120
 (938,238)

 (1,715,518)

 777,280
 (156,203)

 (107,308)

 (48,895)
 (2,692,729)

 (2,325,784)

 (366,945)

Recognised in:

 Statement of profit or loss
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10. SHARE CAPITAL

The shares issued by the Company do not have par value.

11. RETAINED EARNINGS

The Company may distribute dividends out of its retained earnings as at 31 December 2022 and 31 
December 2021 under the single-tier system.

RM No. of SharesRM No. of Shares

 2021 2022

Ordinary shares
At beginning and end of year

Issued and Paid-up:

100,000,000100,000,000100,000,000100,000,000
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A reinsurance deposit or premium reserve is maintained in the event the reinsurer fails to discharge 
their liability under the contract. The premium reserve is computed at the rate of 40% (2021: 40%) 
of gross ceded premium.

All deposits shall be released in the next suceeding year.

13. DEPOSITS FROM REINSURERS

14. INSURANCE PAYABLES

The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate fair values at the financial position date as the 
payables are due within one year.

Insurance payables that do not meet the offsetting criteria amount to RM3,479,792 (2021: 
RM687,689).         

The Company's insurance payables have been offset against receivables are as follows:

 2022
 RM

Due to agents, intermediaries and insured

Due to reinsurers and cedants

 29,544,252

 59,004,301

 88,548,553

2022

 Gross
 amounts

 offset in the
 financial

position
RM

 Net
 amounts in

 the  financial
position

 RM

Premiums

Commissions

Claims

 (32,282,082)

 (7,877,231)

 (11,374,369)

 99,729,261

 (3,313,659)

 (11,346,841)
 (51,533,682)

 Gross
 carrying
  amount

 RM

 132,011,343

 4,563,572

 27,528
 136,602,443  85,068,761

Premiums

Commissions

Claims

2021

 2021
 RM

 9,637,803

 45,498,189

 55,135,992

 (3,250,423)

 (8,952,602)

 (6,967,442)

 67,000,321

 (5,695,491)

 (6,856,527)
 (19,170,467)

 70,250,744

 3,257,111

 110,915
 73,618,770  54,448,303
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The carrying amounts disclosed above approximate fair values at the financial position date as the 
other payables (not including liabilities held under the MMIP) are due within one year.

The amounts due to related companies are trade in nature, unsecured, interest free and are 
repayable on demand.

15. OTHER PAYABLES

16. NET EARNED PREMIUMS

 2022
 RM

 88,921,419

 2022
 RM

 581,297,491

 (20,790,848)
 560,506,643

(a)  Gross earned premiums

 (173,452,044)
 387,054,599Net earned premiums (Note 12(ii))

(b)  Premiums ceded to reinsurers

Amount due to related companies (Note 29(a))

Liabilities held under the MMIP (Note 31(v))

Cash collateral held on behalf of insureds

Accrual for staff bonus

Other accrued expenses

Provision for reinstatement cost on lease properties

Other payables

 15,384,379

 911,508

 6,635,532

 9,550,000

 21,320,968

 514,426

 34,604,606

General insurance contract (Note 12(ii))

Change in premium liabilities

 (188,848,308)

 15,396,264

General insurance contract (Note 12(ii))

Change in premium liabilities

 2021
 RM

 64,004,536

 2021
 RM

 521,864,404

 6,289,864
 528,154,268

 (187,560,133)
 340,594,135

 12,718,680

 609,571

 5,973,524

 9,560,000

 18,703,582

 600,144

 15,839,035

 (176,534,761)

 (11,025,372)
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17. NET INVESTMENT INCOME

 2022
 RM

 21,289,129

 1,571,971

 547,696

 5,311

 1,602,084

 684,147

 4,033,046

Net amortisation of discounts (Note 26)

Investment expenses

 (1,662,932)

 (1,189,570)

 26,880,882

 29,733,384Investment Income (Note 26)

18. NET REALISED GAINS

 2022
 RM

Property and equipment:

Financial assets measured at FVOCI:

Realised gains/(losses):

 - unquoted debt securities in Malaysia

 - Malaysian government securities

 (6,001)(Losses)/gains on disposal of property and equipment (Note 26)

 1,116,863

 391,815Realised gains/(losses) on financial assets measured at FVTPL

Total realised gains on financial assets (Note 26)

Financial assets measured at FVTPL:

Realised gains/(losses):

 - collective investment schemes

 - unquoted debt securities in Malaysia

Realised gains on financial assets measured at FVOCI

 1,709,316

 (978,267)
 731,049

 391,815

 - 

Interest/profit income:

 - financial assets measured at FVOCI

 - financial assets measured at FVTPL

 - financial assets measured at amortised cost

Dividend/distribution income:

 - quoted equity securities in Malaysia

  - derecognised during the year

  - held at the end of the year 

 - unquoted equity securities in Malaysia

 - collective investment schemes

 2021
 RM

 20,190,437

 1,309,090

 330,226

 35,340

 1,482,348

 1,095,500

 5,819,869

 (1,643,976)

 (1,122,102)

 27,496,732

 30,262,810

 2021
 RM

 100,165

 1,822,410

 (31,790)

 2,522,381

 (768,346)
 1,754,035

 -

 (31,790)
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19. FAIR VALUE (LOSSES)/GAINS

 2022
 RM

Unrealised losses on quoted equity securities

Unrealised losses on unquoted equity securities

Unrealised losses on debt securities

Unrealised losses on collective investment schemes

 (11,930)

 (334,190)

 (1,588,263)

 (1,836,869)

 (3,771,252)Total fair value losses (Note 26)

20. OTHER OPERATING REVENUE

21. NET CLAIMS

 2022
 RM

(a)  Gross Claims Paid

 General insurance contracts (Note 12(i))

(b)  Claims Ceded To Reinsurers

 General insurance contracts (Note 12(i))
 (176,000,332)

(c)  Gross Change In Contract Liabilities

 General insurance contracts

(d)  Change In Contract Liabilities Ceded To Reinsurers

 General insurance contracts

 19,740,990

 (50,344,872)

 (30,603,882)Net change in contract liabilities
 (206,604,214)Net claims

 (367,419,733)

 191,419,401

 2022
RM

Sundry income  94,418

Net claims paid (Note 12(i))

 2021
 RM

 (13,123)

 (387,020)

 (1,741,795)

 (4,115,282)

 (6,257,220)

 94,418Total other operating revenue  795,582

 2021
 RM

 (158,017,374)

 (504,101,531)

 498,978,651

 (5,122,880)
 (163,140,254)

 (225,306,145)

 67,288,771

 2021
RM

 795,582
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Included in employee benefits expense is CEO's remuneration of RM1,266,230 (2021: 
RM1,160,899) as detailed in Note 22(c).

22. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

 2022
 RM

 58,396,410

 982,050

 380,140

 1,130

 635,220

 2,259,830

 3,211,073

 6,701,518

 787,780

 7,362

 -

 39,271,519

 (653,407)
 111,980,625

(a) Employee Benefits Expense

 2022
 RM

Wages and salaries

Social security contributions

Contributions to defined contribution plan - EPF

Other benefits

Share based payments

Human Resource Development (HRD) Levy

Employee benefits expense (Note 22(a))

Directors' remuneration (Note 22(b))

Auditors' remuneration:

 - statutory audits

 - regulatory related fees

 - other services

Depreciation of property and equipment (Note 4(a))

Depreciation of right of use assets (Note 4(b))

Amortisation of intangible asset

Write off of bad debts (Note 26)

Property and equipment written off (Note 26)

Rental of equipment, software and services

Administration and general expenses

Changes in allowance for ECL on

 insurance receivables (Note 7)

 2021
 RM

 58,014,025

 965,651

 345,780

 1,050

 121,800

 1,812,308

 3,319,165

 4,494,739

 636,666

 3,642

 (176)

 33,643,418

 (2,111,579)
 101,246,489

 2021
 RM

 47,599,362

 356,992

 7,424,337

 2,028,315

 605,019

-

 47,834,783

 363,757

 7,206,379

 2,318,424

 303,706

 369,361
 58,396,410  58,014,025
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Non-executive directors' fees

22. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONT'D.)

The details of remuneration received by Directors during the year are as follows:

(b) Directors' Remuneration

 2022
RM

 982,050

Total remuneration excluding benefits in kind  1,241,630

The other Directors in office during the year and as at the financial year did not receive any 
remuneration from the Company.

The Directors' fees are subject to the recommendation by the Board Nominations and 
Remuneration Committee (“BNRC”) to the Board for endorsement and approval by the 
shareholder at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company.

 2022
 RMName

 982,050 

Mr Norman Ka Cheung Ip

Mr Koh Poh Tiong

Y Bhg Datuk Kamaruddin bin Taib

Mdm Tan Fong Sang

Ms Mimi Sze Ho

Mr Lai Chin Tak

 136,990

 89,660

 219,900

 182,700

 191,000

 161,800

The details of remuneration received by the CEO during the year are as follows:

(c) CEO's Remuneration

 2022
 RM

Salaries and other remuneration

Bonus

 1,057,850

 183,780

 1,266,230
Estimated money value of benefits in kind  24,600

Share-based payment (in units)  6,526
Total remuneration (Note 22(a))

 2021
RM

 965,651

 1,141,299

 2021
 RM

 965,651

 128,791

 83,860

 223,700

 176,300

 191,800

 161,200

 2021
 RM

 957,519

 183,780

 1,160,899
 19,600

 6,473
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Income tax is based on the statutory tax rate of 24% (2021: 24%) of the estimated assessable profit 
for the financial year.       

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before taxation at the statutory income 
tax rate to income tax expenses at the effective income tax rate is as follows:

23. TAXATION

Current income tax:

 Malaysian income tax

 Under provision of income tax

Deferred tax (Note 9):

 Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

Under/(Over) provision in prior year

Profit before taxation

Tax expense for the year

Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24%         

 (2021: 24%)

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Under provision of prior year income tax

Under/(Over) provision of deferred tax in prior year

 2022
 RM

 10,180,353

 338,234

 12,643,390

 10,518,587

 2,115,978

 8,825
 2,124,803

 2022
 RM

 12,643,390

 49,228,199

 11,814,768

 (1,684,246)

 2,165,809

 338,234

 8,825

 2021
 RM

 14,102,695 

 993,937

 13,909,561

 15,096,632

 (1,028,635)

 (158,436)
 (1,187,071)

 2021
 RM

 13,909,561

 59,053,453

 14,172,829

 (2,295,024)

 1,196,255

 993,937

 (158,436)
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There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares as at the reporting date. There have been no other 
transactions involving ordinary shares between the reporting date and the date of completion of the 
financial statements.

24. EARNINGS PER SHARE

 2022
 RM

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holder

Number of ordinary shares in issue during the year

 36,584,809

 100,000,000

 36.58

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the financial year attributable to ordinary 
equity holders of the Company by the number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year.

25. DIVIDENDS

 2022
 RM

-

Recognised during the financial year:

Basic earnings per share (sen)

Final single tier dividend of RM0.55 per ordinary share
 on 100,000,000 ordinary shares paid on 4 May 2021

Final single tier dividend of RM0.45 per ordinary share
 on 100,000,000 ordinary shares paid on 28 April 2022

 2021
 RM

 45,143,892

 100,000,000

 45.14

 2021
 RM

 55,000,000

 45,000,000 -
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 2022
 RM

Investment income
Realised gains on financial assets at FVOCI and FVTPL
Fair value losses recorded in statement of profit or loss
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL
Purchases of financial assets at FVOCI
Proceeds from maturities/disposals of financial assets at FVOCI
Proceeds from maturities/disposals of financial assets at FVTPL
(Increase)/Decrease in financial assets at amortised cost
Finance cost

Profit before taxation

 (29,733,384)
 (1,122,864)
 3,771,252

 (20,193,955)
 (732,123,180)
 625,536,962
 119,000,003

 (84,453)
 320,935

 49,228,199

 2,259,830
 3,211,073
 6,701,518

 6,001
 (1,431,231)
 (653,407)

 (21,993)
 787,780

 7,362
 1,662,932

 18,656,238

Non-cash items:

Right-of-use assets
Reinsurance assets
Insurance receivables
Other receivables
Insurance contract liabilities
Deposits from reinsurers
Insurance payables
Lease liabilities
Other payables

 (3,929,464)
 34,970,600

 (105,001,132)
 3,248,416
 1,049,858
 (826,407)

 33,412,561
 3,705,532

 24,896,894

Note

17
18
19

5(d)
5(d)

4(a)
4(b)

3
18

 
7

 6
 22
 22
 17

Changes in working capital:

Depreciation of property and equipment
Depreciation of right of use assets
Amortisation on intangible assets
Losses/(gains) on disposal of property and equipment
Changes in allowance for ECL on investment assets
Changes in allowance for ECL on insurance receivables
Write back of impairment losses on reinsurance assets
Write off of bad debts
Property and equipment written off
Net amortisation of discounts 

Cash generated from operating activities

 2021
 RM

 (30,262,810)
 (1,722,245)
 6,257,220

 (7,797,207)
 (309,903,448)

 304,130,644
 6,900,000

 254,508
 572,977

 59,053,453

 1,812,308
 3,319,165

 4,494,739
 (100,165)

 1,222,393
 (2,111,579)

 (2,126)
 636,666

 3,642
 1,643,976

 77,624,056

 (744,024)
 (487,951,152)

 24,760,207
 3,268,027

 497,811,666
 976,137

 (2,798,030)
 650,635

 3,248,479

26. CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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27. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2022
 RM

Approved and contracted for:

 Property and equipment

Approved but not contracted for:

 Property and equipment

Capital expenditure:

The capital commitments of the Company as at the financial year-end are as follows:

 2,196,199

 3,855,409
 6,051,608

26. CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (CONT’D.)

The Company classifies the cash flows from the acquisition and disposal of financial assets as 
operating cash flows, as the purchases are funded from cash flows associated with the origination 
of insurance contracts, net of the cash flows for payments of claims incurred for insurance 
contracts, which are classified under operating activities.

28. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Company As Lessee

The Company has entered into lease agreements for rental of equipment and office premises.

From 1 January 2019, the company has recognised right-of-use assets for these leases, except for 
short term and low-value leases, see Note 4 for further information. During the year, there is no 
short term and low-value leases.

2021
 RM

   2,308,445

  4,325,891
 6,634,336
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29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

 2022
 RM

Premium paid (i)
- Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad

Premium (received)/refund (i)
- Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad
- OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad
- OCBC Al-Amin Bank Berhad
- OCBC Properties (M) Sdn Bhd
- BOS Wealth Management Malaysia Berhad
- E2 Power Sdn Bhd
- Pac Lease Berhad
- Great Eastern Capital (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd
- Axiata Digital Capital Sdn Bhd
- Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited
- Apigate Sdn Bhd 
- Boost Holdings Sdn Bhd
- Eastern Realty Company Pte Ltd
- Key Management Personnel

Property rentals paid (ii)
- Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad

Service charges paid/(received) (iii)
- Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad
- Great Eastern Life Assurance (Singapore) Co Ltd
- Great Eastern General Insurance Limited

Bank charges and custodian fees paid (iii)
- OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad
- OCBC Al-Amin Bank Berhad

(a) Related Party Transactions And Balances

 In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Company had 
the following transactions and balances with related parties during and at the end of the 
financial year:

 Significant transactions with related parties during the year:

 1,214,689

 (2,014,862)
 (5,316,729)

 (14,907)
 -
 -

 (598,920)
 (2,764)

 (193,000)
 (71,958)
 (12,782)

 (2,141)
 (78,906)

 -
 (49,582)

 3,072,343

 7,667,299
 1,472,774
 (100,470)

 2,124,324
 30

Expense/(Income):

 2021
 RM

 1,285,355

 (2,006,558)
 (4,358,037)

 (53,424)
 (14,404)
 (6,000)

 (605,390)
 17,291

 (173,100)
 (332,435)

 -
 -
 -

 10,051
 (70,244)

 3,097,019

 7,396,365
 1,663,876
 (227,440)

 1,889,802
 -
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(a) Related Party Transactions And Balances (cont’d.)

 Significant transactions with related parties during the year: (cont’d.)

 2022
 RM

 2021
 RM

Interest received (iv)
- OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad

Commission fees paid
- Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad
- OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad
- OCBC Al-Amin Bank Berhad
- Pac Lease Berhad
- Axiata Digital Capital Sdn Bhd

Employee Share Purchase Plan
- Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

Deferred Share Plan
- Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

Disposal of investments to
- Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad

Investment in corporate bond
- Pac Lease Berhad

Repayment in corporate bond
- Pac Lease Berhad

Investment in collective investment scheme
- Affin Hwang Wholesale Income Fund

Investment in collective investment scheme
- Aminstitutional Income Bond Fund

Redemption of collective investment scheme
- Affin Hwang Wholesale Income Fund

 (348,697)

 288,400
 2,601,132

 853
 3,117,840

 85,371

 239,046

 64,660

 -

 47,893,708

 (48,000,000)

 1,014,651

 3,179,304

 (26,000,000)

 (109,203)

 294,410
 2,560,979

 853
 3,116,408

 125,731

 395,428

 209,591

 (5,038,849)

 9,980,236

 (10,000,000)

 54,875,904

 129,412,132

 -

Expense/(Income): (cont’d.)

29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D.)
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Redemption of collective investment scheme
- Aminstitutional Income Bond Fund

Dividend received from collective investment scheme
- Affin Hwang Wholesale Income Fund

Dividend received from collective investment scheme
- Aminstitutional Income Bond Fund

 (66,000,000)

 (1,014,651)

 (3,018,395)

 -

 (2,129,972)

 (3,689,897)

Expense/(Income): (cont’d.)

(a) Related Party Transactions And Balances (cont’d.)

 Significant transactions with related parties during the year: (cont’d.)

 2022
 RM

 2021
 RM

29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D.)

Cash and bank balances
- OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad
- OCBC Al-Amin Bank Berhad

Fixed deposits and structured deposits
- OCBC Bank (Malaysia) Berhad

Amount due to subsidiaries of penultimate holding company (Note 15):
- Great Eastern Life Assurance (Singapore) Co Ltd
- Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited
- PT Great Eastern General Insurance Indonesia
- Great Eastern Takaful Bhd

Amount due from subsidiaries of penultimate holding company (Note 8):
- Great Eastern Life Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad
- Great Eastern General Insurance Limited

 8,654,224
 3,927

 5,659,407

 14,677,709
 667,293
 39,377

 -
 15,384,379

 (2,058,828)
 (292,020)

 (2,350,848)

 20,563,479
 55,758

 10,000,000

 12,215,463
 470,092

 -
 33,125

 12,718,680

 (2,741,343)
 (15,267)

 (2,756,610)

Balances with related parties at year-end:
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(a) Related Party Transactions And Balances (cont’d.)

 Significant transactions with related parties during the year: (cont’d.)

 The related companies disclosed above are companies within the Oversea-Chinese Banking 
Corporation Group. Notes on transactions with related parties:

 (i) The sale and purchase of insurance policies to/from related companies are made according 
to normal market prices and at terms and conditions no more favourable than those to other 
customers and employees.

 (ii) Rental of property from related parties are made according to normal market prices, terms 
and conditions.

 (iii) Payment of banking and trading service charges to related parties are made according to 
normal market prices.

 (iv) The interest income arose mainly from investment in fixed deposits and structured deposits 
which are made according to prevailing market rates, terms and conditions.

 (v) General terms for balances with related companies are disclosed in Note 15.

 (vi) Payment of Group function costs based on allocation rates governed by corporate service 
agreement and in line with Malaysian Transfer Pricing Guidelines and Organisation for 
Economic Co-operation and Development (“OECD”) Transfer Pricing Guidelines. Group 
function services are derived from immediate parent company in Singapore.

  The table below shows the breakdown by type of services received and geographical 
location for inter company charges:

          

29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D.)

 2022
 RM

Geographical
Location
Singapore

Type of Services  2021
 RM

 1,472,774  1,663,876

 1,472,774  1,663,876

Group service charges for services rendered, which 
include those in respect of finance, legal, actuarial, 
support, human resources, operations, investment 
management, IT, internal audit and risk management 
services.
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(b) Compensation Of Key Management Personnel

 Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the Company. The key management personnel of the 
Company includes the Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Senior Management Team.

 The remuneration of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT’D.)

 2022
 RM

Short-term employee benefits

Post-employment benefits

Share based payment

 3,715,926

 469,712

 311,177
 4,496,815

Non Executive Directors' remuneration (Note 22(b))  982,050

 5,478,865

 9,329Share-based payment (in units)

 2021
 RM

 4,067,539

 555,070

 210,597
 4,833,206

 965,651

 5,798,857

 12,795
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

2022

Assets
Investments
Insurance receivables
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances
Total Financial Assets

Total
RM

 731,234,396
 165,515,390
 58,855,653
 18,463,356

 974,068,795

Other
financial

liabilities
RM

-
-
-
-
-

FVTPL
RM

 124,945,705
-
-
-

 124,945,705

FVOCI
RM

 605,660,019
-
-
-

 605,660,019

Amortised
cost
RM

 628,672
 165,515,390
 58,855,653
 18,463,356

 243,463,071

Liabilities
Lease liabilities
Deposits from reinsurers
Insurance payables
Other payables
Total Financial Liabilities

 14,012,242
 2,464,659

 88,548,553
 23,445,845

 128,471,299 128,471,299

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

 14,012,242
 2,464,659

 88,548,553
 23,445,845

2021

Assets
Investments
Insurance receivables
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances
Total Financial Assets

Total
RM

 731,891,678
 60,648,631
 61,667,747

 46,630,299
 900,838,355

Other
financial

liabilities
RM

-
-
-
-
-

FVTPL
RM

   227,131,190
-
-
-

 227,131,190

FVOCI
RM

  504,216,269
-
-
-

 504,216,269

Amortised
cost
RM

 544,219
 60,648,631
 61,667,747

 46,630,299
 169,490,896

Liabilities
Lease liabilities
Deposits from reinsurers
Insurance payables
Other payables
Total Financial Liabilities

  13,474,112
 3,291,066

 55,135,992
 19,901,919

 91,803,089 91,803,089

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

 13,474,112
 3,291,066

 55,135,992
 19,901,919
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31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

 Governance Framework

 Managing risk is an integral part of the Company’s core business. As stated in the Enterprise Risk 
Management (“ERM”) Framework, the Company shall:

 • Operate within parameters and limits that have been set based on the risk appetite approved by 
the Board; and

 • Pursue appropriate risk-adjusted returns.

 Risk Management Department spearheads the development and implementation of the ERM 
Framework for the Company.

 The Board Risk Management Committee (“BRMC”), constituted in 2003, provides the oversight on 
the risk management initiatives. Detailed risk management and oversight activities are undertaken 
by the following Management Committees comprising the CEO and key Senior Management 
Executives:

 •  Senior Management Team (“SMT”)
 •  Asset Liability Committee (“ALC”)
 •  Product Development Committee (“PDC”)
 •  IT Steering Committee (“ITSC”)
 •  Financial Crime Committee (“FCC”)

 The SMT is responsible for providing leadership, direction and functional oversight with regards to 
all matters of the Company. The SMT is also responsible for ensuring compliance and alignment 
with governance and oversight frameworks, i.e. standards and guidelines, and ensuring the 
business operates within the risk appetite in delivering annual business targets.

 The ALC is responsible for balance sheet management. Specifically, the ALC reviews and 
formulates technical frameworks, policies and methodologies relating to balance sheet 
management.

 The PDC oversees the product development and launch process. In addition, the PDC regularly 
reviews and monitors the performance of new and existing products, ensuring the business 
operates within the risk appetite in delivering annual business targets. 

 The ITSC is responsible for providing the overall strategic direction and approval of all IT related 
initiatives to support the Company's strategic growth into the future.

 The FCC provides an independent oversight of fraud investigation and anti-money 
laundering/counter financing of terrorism ("AML/CFT") review, and ensures that investigations and 
reviews are conducted in a manner that is fair, consistent and transparent.
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31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Regulatory Framework

 Insurers are regulated by the Financial Services Act 2013 (“FSA”) which came into force on 30 June 
2013, and other relevant regulations issued by regulators from time to time.

 Capital Management Framework

 The Company’s capital management policy is to create shareholders' value, deliver sustainable 
returns to the shareholder, maintain a strong capital position with sufficient buffer to meet 
obligations to policyholders and regulatory requirements and to make strategic investments for 
business growth. The Company has had no significant changes in the policies and processes 
relating to its capital structure during the year.

 Under the Risk-Based Capital ("RBC") Framework, the insurer has to maintain a capital adequacy 
level that is commensurate with its risk profiles. The Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Company 
remained well at above the minimum capital requirement of 130% under the RBC Framework 
regulated by BNM.

 The Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (“ICAAP”) Framework came into effect on 1 
September 2012. Under this Framework, the Company has to ensure adequate capital to meet its 
capital requirements on an ongoing basis. The key elements supporting the Framework include 
Board and Senior Management oversight, comprehensive risk assessment, individual target capital 
level and stress testing, sound capital management as well as ongoing monitoring, reporting and 
review of capital position.

 Capital management and contingency policies have been further developed and refined under the 
Framework to outline the approaches and principles under which the Company’s capital will be 
monitored and managed, as well as the corrective actions to be implemented at various critical 
capital levels. In addition, a risk appetite statement has been established to outline the Company’s 
capacity to take on risks to achieve its business objectives while managing the expectations of key 
stakeholders.

 The following sections provide details regarding the exposure to the key risks faced by the 
Company and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks. There has 
been no major change to the Company's exposure to these key risks or the manner in which it 
manages and measures these risks.
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31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Insurance Risk

 The principal activity of the Company is underwriting of all classes of general insurance business.

 The Company's underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that these risks are well diversified in 
terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits. This is largely achieved through diversification of 
insurance contracts across industry sectors and geography, regular review of the actual claims 
experience, as well as detailed claims handling procedures. Underwriting limits are also set in 
place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria.

 Insurance risk comprises both actuarial and underwriting risks resulting from the pricing and 
acceptance of insurance contracts. Should the actual claims experience be worse than the 
assumptions used in pricing the products and establishing the provisions and liabilities for claims, 
there may be potential shortfalls in provision for future claims and expenses. Assumptions that may 
cause insurance risks to be underestimated include assumptions on policy claims frequency and 
policy claims severity.

 The Company works closely with reinsurers to put in place a prudent underwriting policy to ensure 
appropriate risk classification and premium levels. The Company’s reinsurance management 
strategy and policy are reviewed annually by the SMT, BRMC, and the Board as appropriate. 
Reinsurance structures are set based on the type of risk. Catastrophe reinsurance is procured to 
limit catastrophic losses.

 Only foreign reinsurers meeting a minimum credit rating of Standard & Poor's “A-”, or its equivalent, 
or legally set up local reinsurers are considered. The Company limits its risk to any one reinsurer by 
ceding different risks to different reinsurers or to a panel of reinsurers.

 The SMT reviews the claims trends and experience, as well as expenses to ensure that the policies, 
guidelines and limits put in place to manage these risks remain adequate and appropriate.

 Stress Testing (“ST”) is performed in accordance with BNM requirements. The purpose of the ST is 
to test the solvency of the general insurance funds under the various scenarios (i.e. Chinese 
Government Crackdown on Strategic Sector, Local Economic Slump and Inflation Amidst Recovery, 
and Unusual Weather Phenomena) according to regulatory guidelines on stress testing, simulating 
drastic changes in major parameters such as new business volume, market volatilities, reinsurance 
recoveries and loss ratios.
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Insurance Risk (cont'd.)

Risks under general insurance policies usually cover a twelve-month duration. The risk inherent in 
general insurance contracts is reflected in the insurance contract liabilities which include the 
premium and claim liabilities, as set out under Note 12 of the financial statements. The premium 
liabilities comprise the higher of Unearned Premium Reserves or Unexpired Risk Reserves, while the 
claim liabilities comprise the loss reserves which include both provision for outstanding claims 
notified and outstanding claims incurred but not reported.

Table 31(A1): The table below shows the concentration of premium liabilities by class of business:

31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Reinsurance
 premium
 liabilities

 RM

 Net
 premium
 liabilities

 RM

Fire

Motor

Marine, Aviation and Transit

Workmen's Compensation

Personal Accident and Health

Others

 (20,726,365)

 (15,014,911)

 (6,534,117)

 (42,300)

 (7,159,544)

 (22,579,306)

 23,926,431

 78,748,259

 4,707,752

 414,758

 33,949,225

 25,190,450

2022

 (72,056,543)

 Gross
 premium
 liabilities

 RM

 44,652,796

 93,763,170

 11,241,869

 457,058

 41,108,769

 47,769,756
 238,993,418  166,936,875

Fire

Motor

Marine, Aviation and Transit

Workmen's Compensation

Personal Accident and Health

Others

 (16,025,653)

 (7,903,823)

 (8,798,178)

 521

 (7,046,537)

 (16,886,609)

 21,281,940

 70,981,816

 5,684,413

 442,477

 38,916,631

 24,235,014

2021

 (56,660,279)

 37,307,593

 78,885,639

 14,482,591

 441,956

 45,963,168

 41,121,623
 218,202,570  161,542,291
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Insurance Risk (cont'd.)

Table 31(A2): The table below shows the concentration of claim liabilities by class of business:

 Reinsurance
 claims

 liabilities
 RM

 Net
 claims

 liabilities
 RM

Fire

Motor

Marine, Aviation and Transit

Workmen's Compensation

Personal Accident and Health

Others

 (147,376,503)

 (6,273,723)

 (34,797,298)

 (14,920)

 (10,235,423)

 (418,836,288)

 38,387,286

 109,223,766

 5,622,144

 620,621

 54,441,771

 47,904,257

2022

 (617,534,155)

 Gross
 claims

 liabilities
 RM

 185,763,789

 115,497,489

 40,419,442

 635,541

 64,677,194

 466,740,545
 873,734,000  256,199,845

31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

Fire

Motor

Marine, Aviation and Transit

Workmen's Compensation

Personal Accident and Health

Others

 (242,963,958)

 (10,664,935)

 (40,849,342)

 (23,243)

 (11,462,752)

 (361,914,796)

 31,444,563

 95,346,093

 5,628,549

 728,757

 51,816,528

 40,631,474

2021

 (667,879,026)

 274,408,521

 106,011,028

 46,477,891

 752,000

 63,279,280

 402,546,270
 893,474,990  225,595,964
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31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Insurance Risk (cont'd.)

 The general insurance contract liabilities are determined based on previous claims experience, 
existing knowledge of events, the terms and conditions of the relevant policies and interpretation 
of circumstances. Of particular relevance is past experience with similar cases, historical claims 
development trends, legislative changes, judicial decisions, economic conditions and claims 
handling procedures. The estimates of the general insurance contract liabilities are therefore 
sensitive to various factors and uncertainties. The actual premium and claim liabilities will not 
develop exactly as projected and may vary from initial estimates.

 Insurance risk of general insurance contracts is mitigated by emphasising diversification across a 
large portfolio of insurance contracts. The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and 
implementation of underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified 
in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits. This is largely achieved through diversification 
across industry sectors and geography. Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new 
and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of claims handling procedures and frequent 
investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in place to reduce the risk exposure of the 
Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing and prompt pursuing of 
claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively 
impact the Company.

 The Company has also limited its exposure by imposing maximum claim amounts on certain 
contracts as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements in order to limit exposure to catastrophic 
events, e.g. flood damages.

 The sensitivity analysis below shows the impact of changes in key assumptions on gross and net 
liabilities, profit before taxation and shareholders' equity.
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Insurance Risk (cont'd.)

Table 31(A3): The table below shows the insurance risk sensitivity analysis:

31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Impact
 on profit

 before
  taxation
 RM'000

 Impact
 on

equity*
 RM'000

Provision for adverse deviation

 ("PRAD") margin

Selected loss ratio (for latest year)

Claims handling expenses

 (4,257)

 3,412

 (73,910)

 43,341

 (1,464)

 1,464

 (3,235)

 2,593

 (56,172)

 32,939

 (1,113)

 1,113

 Impact
 on net

 liabilities
 RM'000

 4,257

 (3,412)

 73,910

 (43,341)

 1,464

 (1,464)

 Impact
 on gross

 liabilities
 RM'000

 9,565

 (9,565)

 65,723

 (57,393)

 1,462

 (1,441)

Changes
in

variables

+20%

-20%

+20%

-20%

+20%

-20%

2022

Increase/(decrease):
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*  The impact on equity reflects the impact net of tax at 24% (2021: 24%)

31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

Insurance Risk (cont'd.)

Table 31(A3): The table below shows the insurance risk sensitivity analysis:

 Impact
 on profit

 before
  taxation
 RM'000

 Impact
 on

equity*
 RM'000

Provision for adverse deviation

 ("PRAD") margin

Selected loss ratio (for latest year)

Claims handling expenses

 (6,858)

 5,120

 (66,730)

 35,024

 (2,341)

 2,341

 (5,212)

 3,891

 (50,715)

 26,618

 (1,779)

 1,779

 Impact
 on net

 liabilities
 RM'000

 6,858

 (5,120)

 66,730

 (35,024)

 2,341

 (2,341)

 Impact
 on gross

 liabilities
 RM'000

 9,610

 (9,610)

 79,598

 (65,822)

 1,520

 (1,520)

Changes
in

variables

+20%

-20%

+20%

-20%

+20%

-20%

2021

Increase/(decrease):
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31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Market And Credit Risks

 Market risk arises when the market values of assets are adversely affected by changes in financial 
markets. Changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices can impact present 
and future investment earnings of the insurance operations as well as shareholder's equity.

 The Company is exposed to market risk in the Shareholder's Fund and the General Insurance Fund. 
The ALC actively manages market risk through setting and monitoring of the investment policy, 
asset allocation, portfolio construction, risk measurement and approving hedging strategies. 
Investment limits are monitored at various levels to ensure that all investment activities are 
conducted within the Company's risk appetite and in line with the Company’s risk management 
principles and philosophies. Compliance with established limits forms an integral part of the risk 
governance and financial reporting framework. The approach adopted by the Company in 
managing the various types of risk, including interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, equity price 
risk, credit spread risk, liquidity risk, credit risk and concentration risk, is briefly described as 
follows:

 (i) Interest Rate Risk

  The Company is exposed to interest rate risk through investments in fixed income instruments. 
Since the Shareholder's Fund and General Insurance Fund have exposure to investments in 
fixed income instruments, it will incur an economic loss when interest rates rise.

 (ii) Foreign Currency Risk

  Investments denominated in foreign currencies are limited to 10% of individual funds 
regardless of country, subject to the foreign investments being in jurisdictions with sovereign 
ratings at least equivalent to that of Malaysia, as prescribed by the regulator.  In addition, net 
foreign currency exposure at the Company-level is limited to 10% of the total invested assets. 
The Company does not have exposure to foreign currency risk via direct investments. However, 
foreign currency risk exists in some insurance policies of which premiums and/or claims are 
billed and paid in foreign currencies.
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31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Market And Credit Risks (cont'd.)

 (iii) Equity Price Risk      

  Exposure to equity price risk exists in investment assets through equity, where the Company 
bears the volatility in returns and investment performance risk.

  A robust monitoring process is in place to manage equity risk by having appropriate risk 
management strategies to limit the downside risk at certain pre-determined levels. Limits are 
set for single security holdings as a percentage of equity holdings.

 (iv) Credit Spread Risk

  Exposure to credit spread risk exists in the Company’s investments in corporate bonds. Credit 
spread is the difference between the corporate yields against the risk-free rate of similar 
tenure. When spreads widen, it generally implies that the market is factoring a deterioration in 
the creditworthiness of the bonds. A widening in credit spreads will generally result in a fall in 
the value of the Company’s bond portfolio. 

 (v) Liquidity Risks

  Liquidity risks arise when a company is unable to meet the cash flow needs of its financial 
liabilities, or if the assets backing the liabilities cannot be sold quickly enough to meet its 
financial obigations without incurring significant losses. For an insurance company, the 
greatest liquidity needs typically arise from its insurance liabilities. Demands for funds can 
usually be met through ongoing normal operations, premiums received, sale of assets or 
borrowings. Unexpected demands for liquidity may be triggered by mass surrender of 
insurance policies due to negative publicity, deterioration of the economy, reports of problems 
in other companies in the same or similar lines of business, unanticipated policy claims, or other 
unexpected cash demands from policyholders.

  Expected liquidity demands are managed through a combination of treasury, investment and 
asset-liability management practices, which are monitored on an ongoing basis. Actual and 
projected cash inflows and outflows are monitored and a reasonable amount of assets are kept 
in liquid instruments at all times.

  The Company is exposed to liquidity risk from its insurance contract liabilities when actual 
claims development deviates from estimated claim liabilities. This is mitigated to some extent 
through the Company's periodic liability adequacy tests.
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 2022
 RM

 40,096,001

 25,095,291

Assets/(Liabilities):

Net assets held under MMIP

31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Market And Credit Risks (cont'd.)

 (v) Liquidity Risks (cont'd.)

  Included in other receivables and other payables is the Company’s share in the assets and 
liabilities held under MMIP as disclosed in Note 8 and Note 15. The Company's share of 
insurance contract liabilities from MMIP are disclosed in Note 12 of the financial statements. 
These balances have not been offset in the financial statements of the Company as it is the view 
of the Directors and Management that no legal right of set-off exists. The assets have been 
contributed in line with the Company's obligations under the Collective Agreement signed on 16 
November 1992 and the insurance contract liabilities represent the Company's share of the 
Pool's insurance contract liabilities arising from insurance contracts underwritten in respect of 
third party policyholders collectively, under the name of MMIP. Presented below is the 
Company’s net position of its share in the net asset held under MMIP as at year end:

Assets:

- Accumulated net cash contributions to MMIP

- Other assets

Total Assets (Note 8)

Liabilities:

- Other payables and provisions

Total Liabilities (Note 15)

Insurance contract liabilities (Note 12)

 - Claim liabilities

 - Premium liabilities

Net position

 10,849,491

 30,158,018

 41,007,509

 (911,508)

 (911,508)

 (14,327,571)

 (673,139)

 (15,000,710)

 2021
 RM

 44,833,188

 23,741,744

 12,849,491

 32,593,268

 45,442,759

 (609,571)

 (609,571)

 (20,373,731)

 (717,713)

 (21,091,444)
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 Non-
 Current**

 RM
 Total

 RM

Intangible assets

Property and equipment

 Owned

 Right-of-use assets

Investments:

 Amortised cost

 FVOCI

 FVTPL

Reinsurance assets

Insurance receivables

Other receivables

Deferred tax assets

Tax recoverable

Cash and bank balances

 58,260,893

 3,336,107

 14,141,800

 618,301

 568,447,191

 124,945,705

 205,575,026

 -

 41,007,509

 2,908,096

 -

 -

 58,260,893

 3,336,107

 14,141,800

 628,672

 605,660,019

 124,945,705

 617,534,155

 165,515,390

 58,933,858

 2,908,096

 7,298,595

 18,463,356

 Current*
 RM

 -

 -

 -

 10,371

 37,212,828

 -

 411,959,129

 165,515,390

 17,926,349

 -

 7,298,595

 18,463,356

2022
Assets

Insurance contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Deposits from reinsurers

Insurance payables

Other payables

 (301,430,957)

 (11,105,757)

 -

 -

 (1,425,934)

 (873,734,000)

 (14,006,855)

 (2,464,659)

 (88,548,553)

 (88,921,419)

 (572,303,043)

 (2,901,098)

 (2,464,659)

 (88,548,553)

 (87,495,485)

Liabilities

Total liabilities

Total assets

31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Market And Credit Risks (cont'd.)

 (v) Liquidity Risks (cont'd.)

  Table 31(B2): The following table shows the current and non current classification of assets 
and liabilities: 

 1,019,240,628 658,386,018  1,677,626,646

* Expected utilisation or settlement within 12 months from the financial position date.
** Included in non-current FVOCI  financial assets are quoted equity securities of RM31,765,376 

with no maturity date.
** Included in non-current FVTPL financial assets are collective investment schemes 

RM95,036,933 with no maturity date.

 (753,712,838)
 (95,326,820)

 (313,962,648)  (1,067,675,486)
 705,277,980  609,951,160
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31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Market And Credit Risks (cont'd.)

 (v) Liquidity Risks (cont'd.)

  Table 31(B2): The following table shows the current and non current classification of assets 
and liabilities: (cont'd.)

* Expected utilisation or settlement within 12 months from the financial position date.
** Included in non-current FVOCI  financial assets are quoted equity securities of RM30,819,046 

with no maturity date.
** Included in non-current FVTPL financial assets are collective investment schemes 

RM184,288,036 with no maturity date.

 Non-
 Current**

 RM
 Total

 RM

Intangible assets

Property and equipment

 Owned

 Right-of-use assets

Investments:

 Amortised cost

 FVOCI

 FVTPL

Reinsurance assets

Insurance receivables

Other receivables

Deferred tax assets

Tax recoverable

Cash and bank balances

  54,297,014

 3,953,017

 13,423,409

 544,219

 410,939,439

 227,131,190

 179,616,438

 -

 45,442,759

 3,726,860

 -

 -

 54,297,014

 3,953,017

 13,423,409

 544,219

 504,216,269

 227,131,190

 667,879,026

 60,648,631

 61,761,216

 3,726,860

 3,234,175

 46,630,299

 Current*
 RM

 -

 -

 -

-

  93,276,830

 -

 488,262,588

 60,648,631

 16,318,457

 -

 3,234,175

 46,630,299

2021
Assets

Insurance contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Deposits from reinsurers

Insurance payables

Other payables

 (312,567,311)

 (10,366,924)

 -

 -

 (1,209,715)

 (893,474,990)

 (13,472,644)

 (3,291,066)

 (55,135,992)

 (64,004,536)

 (580,907,679)

 (3,105,720)

 (3,291,066)

 (55,135,992)

 (62,794,821)

Liabilities

Total liabilities

Total assets  939,074,345 708,370,980  1,647,445,325

 (705,235,278)
 3,135,702

 (324,143,950)  (1,029,379,228)
 614,930,395  618,066,097
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31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Market And Credit Risks (cont'd.)

 (vi) Credit Risk

  Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial contract will cause financial loss to the other 
party by failing to discharge an obligation.  The Company is exposed to credit risk mainly 
through (i) investment in cash, deposits and bonds, (ii) corporate lending activities, (iii) exposure 
to counterparty’s credit in derivative transactions and reinsurance contracts and (iv) 
non-payment of premiums. For investment in bonds, financial loss may materialise as a result of 
the widening credit spread or downgrade of credit rating. For all four types of exposures, 
financial loss may materialise as a result of credit default by the borrower or counterparty.

  The task of evaluating and monitoring credit risk arising from financial instruments is 
undertaken by the ALC. The Company has internal limits by issuer and counterparty according 
to their investment credit rating, which are actively monitored to manage the credit and 
concentration risk, and are being reviewed on a regular basis. The creditworthiness of 
reinsurers, issuers and banks is assessed on an annual basis by reviewing their financial 
strength through published credit ratings and other publicly available financial information.

  Treaty reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have good rating while facultative 
reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have been carefully selected via internal 
guidelines to minimise the credit risk.

  Credit risk in respect of non-payment of premiums past the grace period is being actively 
monitored and guided by strict credit control guideline.
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Carrying Amount
of Loans

 RM

Fair Value
of Collateral

 RM

Secured loans

- Vehicle loans   628,672   628,672

Type of Collateral

Vehicle

2022

31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Market And Credit Risks (cont'd.)

 (vi) Credit Risk (cont'd.)

  For corporate lending, the amount and type of collateral required depends on the assessment 
of the credit risk of the counterparty. Credit risk is mitigated by entering into collateral 
agreements and collaterals are revalued on a periodic basis. The Company monitors the market 
value of the collateral, requests additional collateral when needed and performs an impairment 
valuation, whenever applicable. The fair value of collateral, held by the Company as a lender, for 
which it is entitled to sell or pledge in the event of default is as follows:

 628,672  628,672

544,219  544,219

Transactions are conducted under terms and conditions that are usual and customary to 
standard securities borrowing and lending activities.

Vehicle

Secured loans

- Vehicle loans  544,219  544,219

2021
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 Shareholder's
 Fund

 RM
 Total

 RM

 -

  1,500,455
 33,292,834

 2,743,614
 -
 -

 2,940,786
 367,037

 628,672

 122,532,450 
 451,362,193

 20,598,470
 617,534,155
 165,515,390
 59,902,297
 18,463,356

 Insurance
 Fund

 RM

 628,672

 121,031,995
 418,069,359

 17,854,856
 617,534,155
 165,515,390

 56,961,511
 18,096,319

2022

31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Market And Credit Risks (cont'd.)

 (vi) Credit Risk (cont'd.)

  Table 31(C1): The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components 
of the Statement of Financial Position and items such as future commitments by 
funds.

 40,844,726 1,415,692,257  1,456,536,983

Financial assets at amortised cost:
 Loans
Financial assets at FVOCI:
 Malaysian government securities
 Debt securities
Financial assets at FVTPL:
 Debt securities
Reinsurance assets
Insurance receivables
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

 -

 3,568,690
 5,535,842

 921,086
 -
 -

 2,867,218
 479,167

 544,219

 131,487,510
 341,909,713

 25,186,732
 667,879,026

 60,648,631
 61,919,187

 46,630,299

 544,219

 127,918,820
 336,373,871

 24,265,646
 667,879,026

 60,648,631
 59,051,969
 46,151,132

2021

 13,372,003 1,322,833,314  1,336,205,317

Financial assets at amortised cost:
 Loans
Financial assets at FVOCI:
 Malaysian government securities
 Debt securities
Financial assets at FVTPL:
 Debt securities
Reinsurance assets
Insurance receivables
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

GREAT EASTERN
GENERAL INSURANCE
(MALAYSIA) BERHAD

159

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



3
1.

 E
N

TE
R

P
R

IS
E

 R
IS

K
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T 

O
B

JE
C

TI
V

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

O
LI

C
IE

S
 (C

O
N

T'
D

.)

 
M

ar
ke

t 
A

nd
 C

re
di

t 
R

is
ks

 (c
on

t'd
.)

 
(v

i) 
C

re
di

t 
R

is
k 

(c
on

t'd
.)

 
 

Ta
bl

e 
3

1(
C

2)
: 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ta

bl
e 

se
ts

 o
ut

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t 
th

e 
cr

ed
it 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
fi

na
nc

ia
l a

ss
et

s 
m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 a

m
or

tis
ed

 c
os

t 
an

d 
de

bt
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 a
t 

FV
O

C
I. 

Th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 e
xp

os
ur

e 
is

 s
ho

w
n 

gr
os

s,
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 m
as

te
r 

ne
tt

in
g 

or
 c

ol
la

te
ra

l 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

cr
ed

it 
de

riv
at

iv
es

. 
Fo

r 
lo

an
 c

om
m

itm
en

ts
, 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
s 

in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

re
pr

es
en

t t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
co

m
m

itt
ed

.  

 
 

 
Fo

r e
xp

la
na

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
te

rm
s:

 “
12

-m
on

th
 E

C
L”

, “
lif

et
im

e 
EC

L”
 a

nd
 “c

re
di

t-
im

pa
ire

d”
, r

ef
er

 to
 N

ot
e 

31
(v

i).

Go
ve

rn
m

en
t g

ua
ra

nt
ee

d 
an

d 
lo

w
 ri

sk
 b

on
ds

No
t r

at
ed

Lo
ss

 a
llo

w
an

ce

 T
ot

al
 R

M

  6
28

,6
72

Li
fe

tim
e

EC
L

cr
ed

it
im

pa
ire

d
(S

ta
ge

 3
)

RM

20
22

-

Li
fe

tim
e

EC
L

no
t c

re
di

t
im

pa
ire

d
(S

ta
ge

 2
)

RM

-

12
-m

on
th

EC
L

(S
ta

ge
 1) RM

  6
28

,6
72

Lo
an

s a
t a

m
or

tis
ed

 c
os

t

Ca
rr

yi
ng

 a
m

ou
nt

 -

  6
28

,6
72

 6
28

,6
72

 -

- - - -

- - - -

 -

   6
28

,6
72

  6
28

,6
72

 -

Go
ve

rn
m

en
t g

ua
ra

nt
ee

d 
an

d 
lo

w
 ri

sk
 b

on
ds

In
ve

st
m

en
t g

ra
de

 (B
BB

 to
 A

AA
)

No
t r

at
ed

 5
73

,8
94

,6
43

-
 3

87
,8

33
 5

73
,5

06
,8

10

De
bt

 se
cu

rit
ie

s a
t F

VO
CI

Ca
rr

yi
ng

 a
m

ou
nt

 2
39

,5
22

,6
86

 3
33

,9
84

,12
4

 3
87

,8
33

- - -

 - -

 3
87

,8
33

 2
39

,5
22

,6
86

 3
33

,9
84

,12
4 -

160ANNUAL REPORT 2022

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



3
1.

 E
N

TE
R

P
R

IS
E

 R
IS

K
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T 

O
B

JE
C

TI
V

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

O
LI

C
IE

S
 (C

O
N

T'
D

.)

 
M

ar
ke

t 
A

nd
 C

re
di

t 
R

is
ks

 (c
on

t'd
.)

 
(v

i) 
C

re
di

t 
R

is
k 

(c
on

t'd
.)

 
 

Ta
bl

e 
3

1(
C

2)
: 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ta

bl
e 

se
ts

 o
ut

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t 
th

e 
cr

ed
it 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
fi

na
nc

ia
l a

ss
et

s 
m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 a

m
or

tis
ed

 c
os

t 
an

d 
de

bt
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 a
t 

FV
O

C
I. 

Th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 e
xp

os
ur

e 
is

 s
ho

w
n 

gr
os

s,
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 m
as

te
r 

ne
tt

in
g 

or
 c

ol
la

te
ra

l 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

cr
ed

it 
de

riv
at

iv
es

. 
Fo

r 
lo

an
 c

om
m

itm
en

ts
, 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
s 

in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

re
pr

es
en

t t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
co

m
m

itt
ed

. (
co

nt
'd

.)

 
 

 
Fo

r e
xp

la
na

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
te

rm
s:

 “
12

-m
on

th
 E

C
L”

, “
lif

et
im

e 
EC

L”
 a

nd
 “c

re
di

t-
im

pa
ire

d”
, r

ef
er

 to
 N

ot
e 

31
(v

i).

Go
ve

rn
m

en
t g

ua
ra

nt
ee

d 
an

d 
lo

w
 ri

sk
 b

on
ds

No
t r

at
ed

Lo
ss

 a
llo

w
an

ce

 T
ot

al
 R

M

 5
44

,2
19

Li
fe

tim
e

EC
L

cr
ed

it
im

pa
ire

d
(S

ta
ge

 3
)

RM

20
21

-

Li
fe

tim
e

EC
L

no
t c

re
di

t
im

pa
ire

d
(S

ta
ge

 2
)

RM

-

12
-m

on
th

EC
L

(S
ta

ge
 1) RM

 5
44

,2
19

Lo
an

s a
t a

m
or

tis
ed

 c
os

t

Ca
rr

yi
ng

 a
m

ou
nt

 -

  5
44

,2
19

 5
44

,2
19  -

- - - -

- - - -

 -

  5
44

,2
19

 5
44

,2
19  -

Go
ve

rn
m

en
t g

ua
ra

nt
ee

d 
an

d 
lo

w
 ri

sk
 b

on
ds

In
ve

st
m

en
t g

ra
de

 (B
BB

 to
 A

AA
)

No
n-

in
ve

st
m

en
t g

ra
de

 (C
 to

 B
B)

 4
73

,3
97

,2
23

-
 3

4,
95

1,4
08

 4
38

,4
45

,8
15

De
bt

 se
cu

rit
ie

s a
t F

VO
CI

Ca
rr

yi
ng

 a
m

ou
nt

 2
74

,9
50

,4
31

 19
7,9

64
,2

24

 4
82

,5
68

- - -

 -

 3
4,

46
8,

84
0

 4
82

,5
68

 2
74

,9
50

,4
31

 16
3,

49
5,

38
4  -

GREAT EASTERN
GENERAL INSURANCE
(MALAYSIA) BERHAD

161

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



3
1.

 E
N

TE
R

P
R

IS
E

 R
IS

K
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T 

O
B

JE
C

TI
V

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

O
LI

C
IE

S
 (C

O
N

T'
D

.)

 
M

ar
ke

t 
A

nd
 C

re
di

t 
R

is
ks

 (c
on

t'd
.)

 
(v

i) 
C

re
di

t 
R

is
k 

(c
on

t'd
.)

 
 

C
re

di
t 

Ex
po

su
re

 B
y 

C
re

di
t 

R
at

in
g

 
 

Ta
bl

e 
3

1(
C

3
): 

Th
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

cr
ed

it 
ris

k 
ex

po
su

re
s 

of
 t

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 b

y 
cl

as
si

fy
in

g 
as

se
ts

 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 th

e 
cr

ed
it 

ra
tin

gs
 o

f c
ou

nt
er

pa
rt

ie
s:

*  
B

as
ed

 o
n 

in
te

rn
al

 ra
tin

gs
 g

ra
de

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 e
qu

iv
al

en
t t

o 
gr

ad
es

 o
f e

xt
er

na
l r

at
in

g 
ag

en
ci

es
**

  A
n 

ag
in

g 
an

al
ys

is
 fo

r fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s 

pa
st

 d
ue

 is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

on
 p

ag
e 

16
4.

 6
28

,6
72

 12
2,

53
2,

45
0

 4
51

,3
62

,19
3

 2
0,

59
8,

47
0

 6
17

,5
34

,15
5

 16
5,

51
5,

39
0

 5
9,

90
2,

29
7

 18
,4

63
,3

56

 T
ot

al
 R

M

 1,
45

6,
53

6,
98

3

 P
as

t-
du

e*
*

 R
M

 8
8,

45
2,

16
0

 N
ot

 su
bj

ec
t t

o
 cr

ed
it 

ris
k

 R
M -

 N
ot

 ra
te

d
 R

M

 11
6,

22
7,

52
1

 N
on

-
 in

ve
st

m
en

t
 g

ra
de

*
 (C

 to
 B

B) RM

 2
5,

70
2,

96
6

 -

   1
22

,5
32

,4
50

 4
50

,9
74

,3
60

 2
0,

59
8,

47
0

 5
81

,0
42

,2
39

 18
,19

2,
56

9

 14
,3

50
,8

92

 18
,4

63
,3

56

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t

 g
ua

ra
nt

ee
d/

 In
ve

st
m

en
t

 g
ra

de
*

 (B
BB

 - A
AA

)
RM

 1,
22

6,
15

4,
33

6

Fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s a

t a
m

or
tis

ed
 c

os
t:

 
Lo

an
s

Fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s a

t F
VO

CI
:

 
M

al
ay

sia
n 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t s

ec
ur

iti
es

 
De

bt
 se

cu
rit

ie
s

Fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s a

t F
VT

PL
:

 
De

bt
 se

cu
rit

ie
s

Re
in

su
ra

nc
e 

as
se

ts

In
su

ra
nc

e 
re

ce
iva

bl
es

Ot
he

r r
ec

ei
va

bl
es

Ca
sh

 a
nd

 b
an

k 
ba

la
nc

es

20
22

N
ei

th
er

 p
as

t-
du

e 
no

r i
m

pa
ire

d

- - - - -

 8
8,

45
2,

16
0 - -

- - - - - - - -

  6
28

,6
72

 -

 3
87

,8
33

 -

 10
,78

8,
95

0

 5
8,

87
0,

66
1

 4
5,

55
1,4

05

 -

- - -  -

 2
5,

70
2,

96
6  -  -  -

162ANNUAL REPORT 2022

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



3
1.

 E
N

TE
R

P
R

IS
E

 R
IS

K
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T 

O
B

JE
C

TI
V

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

O
LI

C
IE

S
 (C

O
N

T'
D

.)

 
M

ar
ke

t 
A

nd
 C

re
di

t 
R

is
ks

 (c
on

t'd
.)

 
(v

i) 
C

re
di

t 
R

is
k 

(c
on

t'd
.)

 
 

C
re

di
t 

Ex
po

su
re

 B
y 

C
re

di
t 

R
at

in
g 

(c
on

t'd
.)

 
 

Ta
bl

e 
3

1(
C

3
): 

Th
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

cr
ed

it 
ris

k 
ex

po
su

re
s 

of
 t

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 b

y 
cl

as
si

fy
in

g 
as

se
ts

 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 th

e 
cr

ed
it 

ra
tin

gs
 o

f c
ou

nt
er

pa
rt

ie
s:

 (c
on

t’d
.)

*  
B

as
ed

 o
n 

in
te

rn
al

 ra
tin

gs
 g

ra
de

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 e
qu

iv
al

en
t t

o 
gr

ad
es

 o
f e

xt
er

na
l r

at
in

g 
ag

en
ci

es
**

  A
n 

ag
in

g 
an

al
ys

is
 fo

r fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s 

pa
st

 d
ue

 is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

on
 p

ag
e 

16
4.

 5
44

,2
19

 13
1,4

87
,5

10

 3
41

,9
09

,7
13

 2
5,

18
6,

73
2

 6
67

,8
79

,0
26

 6
0,

64
8,

63
1

 6
1,9

19
,18

7

 4
6,

63
0,

29
9

 T
ot

al
 R

M

 1,
33

6,
20

5,
31

7

 P
as

t-
du

e*
*

 R
M

 3
6,

40
2,

80
5

 N
ot

 su
bj

ec
t t

o
 cr

ed
it 

ris
k

 R
M -

 N
ot

 ra
te

d
 R

M

 8
5,

99
3,

57
6

 N
on

-
 in

ve
st

m
en

t
 g

ra
de

*
 (C

 to
 B

B) RM

 4
2,

25
2,

81
7

 -

  1
31

,4
87

,5
10

 3
41

,4
27

,14
5

 2
5,

18
6,

73
2

 6
10

,7
50

,6
88

 3
,6

16
,3

87

 12
,4

57
,3

58

 4
6,

63
0,

29
9

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t

 g
ua

ra
nt

ee
d/

 In
ve

st
m

en
t

 g
ra

de
*

 (B
BB

 - A
AA

)
RM

 1,
17

1,5
56

,11
9

Fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s a

t a
m

or
tis

ed
 c

os
t:

 
Lo

an
s

Fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s a

t F
VO

CI
:

 
M

al
ay

sia
n 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t s

ec
ur

iti
es

 
De

bt
 se

cu
rit

ie
s

Fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s a

t F
VT

PL
:

 
De

bt
 se

cu
rit

ie
s

Re
in

su
ra

nc
e 

as
se

ts

In
su

ra
nc

e 
re

ce
iva

bl
es

Ot
he

r r
ec

ei
va

bl
es

Ca
sh

 a
nd

 b
an

k 
ba

la
nc

es

20
21

N
ei

th
er

 p
as

t-
du

e 
no

r i
m

pa
ire

d

- - - - -

 3
6,

40
2,

80
5 - -

- - - - - - - -

 5
44

,2
19  -  -  -

 15
,3

58
,0

89

 2
0,

62
9,

43
9

 4
9,

46
1,8

29

 -

- -

 4
82

,5
68

 -

 4
1,7

70
,2

49

 -  -  -

GREAT EASTERN
GENERAL INSURANCE
(MALAYSIA) BERHAD

163

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



 T
ot

al
 p

as
t d

ue  R
M

 9
0,

43
0,

93
0

 P
as

t d
ue

 a
nd

 im
pa

ire
d

 R
M

 1,
97

8,
76

9

 T
ot

al
 R

M

 8
8,

45
2,

16
1

 M
or

e 
th

an
 18

0 
da

ys
 R

M

 14
,7

50
,3

56

 9
1 t

o 
18

0
 d

ay
s

 R
M

 3
3,

10
7,

25
0

 6
1 t

o 
90

 d
ay

s
 R

M

 2
0,

38
1,7

33

 3
1 t

o 
60

 d
ay

s
 R

M

 8
,6

94
,5

14

 <
30

 d
ay

s
 R

M

 11
,5

18
,3

08
In

su
ra

nc
e 

Re
ce

iv
ab

le
s

3
1.

 E
N

TE
R

P
R

IS
E

 R
IS

K
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T 

O
B

JE
C

TI
V

E
S

 A
N

D
 P

O
LI

C
IE

S
 (C

O
N

T'
D

.)

 
M

ar
ke

t 
A

nd
 C

re
di

t 
R

is
ks

 (c
on

t'd
.)

 
(v

i) 
C

re
di

t 
R

is
k 

(c
on

t'd
.)

 
 

C
re

di
t 

Ex
po

su
re

 B
y 

C
re

di
t 

R
at

in
g 

(c
on

t'd
.)

 
 

Ta
bl

e 
3

1(
C

4
): 

Th
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
ag

in
g 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f 

fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s 

th
at

 a
re

 p
as

t d
ue

 a
t t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

os
iti

on
 d

at
e:

 
 

A
gi

ng
 A

na
ly

si
s 

of
 fi

na
nc

ia
l a

ss
et

s 
pa

st
 d

ue
:

20
22

 3
9,

03
4,

98
2

 2
,6

32
,17

6
 3

6,
40

2,
80

6
 2

,7
91

,8
38

 6
,5

03
,9

64
 5

,5
51

,5
91

 10
,0

89
,6

24
 11

,4
65

,7
89

In
su

ra
nc

e 
Re

ce
iv

ab
le

s

20
21

Pa
st

-d
ue

 b
ut

 n
ot

 im
pa

ire
d

R
ec

ei
va

bl
es

 th
at

 a
re

 n
ei

th
er

 p
as

t d
ue

 n
or

 im
pa

ire
d 

ar
e 

cr
ed

itw
or

th
y 

de
bt

or
s 

w
ith

 g
oo

d 
pa

ym
en

t r
ec

or
ds

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

.

R
ec

ei
va

bl
es

 th
at

 a
re

 p
as

t d
ue

 b
ut

 n
ot

 im
pa

ire
d 

ar
e 

un
se

cu
re

d 
in

 n
at

ur
e.

164ANNUAL REPORT 2022

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Market And Credit Risks (cont'd.)

 (vi) Credit Risk (cont'd.)

  This disclosure below relates to MFRS 9 which came into effect in 2018.

  Amounts Arising From Expected Credit Losses ("ECL")

  Measurement of ECL - Explanation Of Inputs, Assumptions And Estimation Techniques

  The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:

  - probability of default (“PD”);
  - loss given default (“LGD”); and
  - exposure at default (“EAD”).

  These parameters are derived from the statistical models which are internally developed by the 
Company based on the historical data. They are adjusted to reflect forward-looking information.

  PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation, either over the 
next 12 months (“12M PD”), or over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime PD”) of the obligation. They 
are estimates at a certain date, which are calculated based on the statistical rating models. 
These statistical models are based on internally and externally compiled data comprising both 
quantitative and qualitative factors.

  If a counterparty or exposure migrates between rating classes, this will lead to a change in the 
estimate of the associated PD. The ECL considers the contractual maturities of exposures.

  LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. LGD is expressed as a percentage 
per loss per unit of exposure at the time of default and varies by type and seniority of claims, 
availability and quality of collateral, legal enforceability of processes in the jusridiction and 
industry of borrower and existing market conditions. They are estimates at a certain date, which 
are calculated based on the statistical rating models. These statistical models are based on 
internally compiled data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors.

  EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Company derives the EAD 
from the current and potential future exposure to the counterparty. The EAD of a financial asset 
is its gross carrying amount.
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31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Market And Credit Risks (cont'd.)

 (vi) Credit Risk (cont'd.)

  Amounts Arising From Expected Credit Losses ("ECL")(cont'd.)

  Measurement of ECL - Explanation Of Inputs, Assumptions And Estimation Techniques 
(cont'd.)

  The ECL is determined by projecting PD, LGD and EAD for each individual exposure. These three 
components are multiplied together and adjusted for forward looking information. This is then 
discounted back to the reporting date. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the 
original effective interest rate or an approximation thereof.

  The trade and lease receivables are in scope for ECL impairment provisions using the simplified 
assumption of lifetime ECL.

  Significant Increase In Credit Risk

  To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Company compares the risk 
of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date 
of initial recognition. The Company considers available reasonable and supportive 
forward-looking information which includes the following indicators:

  - Internal credit rating
  - External credit rating 
  - Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic 

conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty's ability to 
meet its obligations.

  A movement of an instrument's credit rating along the rating scale will represent changes in 
credit risk, measured by the change in PD.

  The criteria for assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly will be determined by 
both quantitative changes in 12M PDs and qualitative factors. The credit risk of a particular 
exposure is deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition if, based on the 
Company's quantitative model, the 12M PD is determined to have increased by more than 100% 
since origination. The criteria as described above would only apply if the financial instrument 
does not have an investment grade rating.
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31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Market And Credit Risks (cont'd.)

 (vi) Credit Risk (cont'd.)

  Significant Increase In Credit Risk (cont'd.)

  Using its experienced credit judgement and, where possible, relevant historical experience, the 
Company may determine that an exposure has undergone a significant increase in credit risk 
based on particular qualitative factors that are indicative of such and whose effect may not 
otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitative analysis on a timely basis. The Company uses the 
watch-list as an additional trigger for the identification of significant increase in credit risk.

  The Company considers “low credit risk” to be an investment grade credit rating using a 
combination of internal and external credit rating models.

  Definition of default

  The Company considers a financial asset to be in default by assessing the following criteria:

  Quantitative criteria

  For insurance receivables, the counterparty fails to make a contractual payment 6 months after 
it falls due (i.e. after expiration of the maximum granted credit terms).  For bonds and loans, the 
instrument is in overdue status and there are non-payments on another debt obligation of the 
same issuer to the Company.

  Qualitative criteria

  The counterparty is either bankrupt or has indications of potentially significant financial 
difficulty such as lawsuits or similar actions that threaten the financial viability of the 
counterparty; distressed exchange, merger or amalgamation without assumption, restructuring 
with expected principal haircut or a breach in material loan covenant that is not rectified within 
a given timeframe.

  The criteria above have been applied to all financial instruments held by the Company and are 
consistent with the definition of default used for credit risk management purposes. The default 
definition has been applied consistently to model the PD, EAD and LGD throughout the 
Company's expected loss calculations.
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31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Market And Credit Risks (cont'd.)

 (vi) Credit Risk (cont'd.)

  Incorporating Of Forward-Looking Information

  The Company incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether 
the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its 
measurement of ECL. The Company has performed historical analysis and identified key 
economic variables impacting credit risk and ECL for each portfolio.

  These economic variables and their associated impact on the PD, EAD and LGD vary by financial 
instrument. Experienced judgement has also been applied in this process. Forecasts of these 
economic variables (the “base economic scenario”) are obtained from publicly available 
economic databases published on a quarterly basis and provide the best estimate view of the 
economy over the next four to five years, and based on such information, to project the 
economic variables for the full remaining lifetime of each instrument, a mean reversion 
approach is used. The impact of these economic variables on the PD, EAD and LGD has been 
determined by performing statistical regression analysis to understand the impact changes in 
these variables have had historically on default rates and the components of LGD and EAD.

  As with any economic forecasts, the projections and likelihoods of occurrence are subject to a 
high degree of inherent uncertainty and the actual outcomes may be significantly different 
from those projected. The Company considers these forecasts to represent its best estimate of 
the possible outcomes and has analysed the non-linearities and asymmetries within the 
Company's different portfolios to establish that the chosen scenarios are appropriately 
representative of the range of possible scenarios.

  The sensitivity of the ECL to the economic variable assumptions affecting the calculation of 
ECL was not material to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Market And Credit Risks (cont'd.)

 (vii) Concentration Risk

  An important element of managing both market and credit risks is to actively manage 
concentration to specific issuers, counterparties, industry sectors, countries and currencies. 
Both internal and regulatory limits are put in place and monitored to manage this risk. These 
limits are reviewed on a regular basis by the ALC. The Company’s exposures are within the 
concentration limits set by the regulator. The Company actively manages its asset mix to 
ensure that there is no significant concentration of credit risk.

 (viii) Sensitivity Analysis On Financial Risks

  The sensitivity analysis below shows the impact on the Company's net profit after taxation by 
applying possible shocks to each key variable with all other variables held constant. While the 
co-movement of key variables can significantly affect the fair values and/or amortised cost 
of financial assets, to demonstrate the impact due to changes in each key variable, the 
variables are changed individually.

  The impact on net profit after taxation represents the effect caused by changes in fair value 
of financial assets whose fair values are recorded in the statement of profit or loss, and 
changes in valuation of insurance contract liabilities. The impact on equity represents the 
impact on net profit after taxation and the effect on changes in fair value of financial assets 
measured at FVOCI.
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31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Operational, Market Conduct And Compliance Risk

 Operational risk is an event or action that may potentially impact partly or completely the 
achievement of the Company’s objectives resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes 
and systems, human factors or external events.

 Market conduct risk is an event or action that may potentially impact partly or completely the 
achievement of the Company’s objectives arising from its personnel and intermediaries not 
conducting themselves in accordance with the ethical standards and in compliance with the 
relevant laws and regulations governing insurance product for pre-sales, during sales and after 
sales process. It is synonymous with professional behaviour and customer's protection. There are 
four areas in which the Company continuously strengthens:

 
 - Fit and Proper
 - Sales Advisory Process
 - Training and Competency
 - Business Conduct

 Compliance risk is any event or action that may potentially impact partly or completely the 
achievement of the Company’s objectives, as a result of its failure to comply with the following 
applicable laws, regulations and standards:

 - Laws, regulations and rules governing insurance business and regulated financial licensed 
activities undertaken by the Company;

 - Codes of practice promoted by industry associations of which the Company is a member of; and
 - Any other applicable regulations which do not specifically govern the licensed activities 

undertaken by the Company but can expose the organisation to legal, regulatory or reputational 
loss.

 The day-to-day management of operational, market conduct and compliance risks is effected 
through the maintenance of comprehensive internal controls, supported by an infrastructure of 
systems and procedures to monitor processes and transactions. The SMT regularly reviews and 
monitors these issues at its monthly meetings. The Internal Audit team regularly reviews the 
systems of internal control to assess their ongoing relevance and effectiveness , and reports at 
least quarterly to the Board Audit Committee. As an added measure, the risk appetite statement 
explicitly sets the Company's tolerance level to financial loss arising from operational, market 
conduct and compliance risks.
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31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Technology, Information and Cyber Risks

 Technology risk is defined as risk related to any potential adverse outcome, damage, loss, 
disruption, violation, system/hardware failure and capacity deficiency arising from the use of 
technologies such as electronic hardware/devices, software, online networks and 
telecommunication systems.

 Information risk is defined as risk related to confidentiality, integrity and availability of information 
(in physical or digital form).

 Cyber risk is defined as risk related to acts perpetrated by malicious threat actors including internal 
sabotage, espionage, malicious attacks, hacking incidents, fraudulent conduct using information 
and communication technologies.

 The Company adopts a risk based approach in managing technology, risks relating to IT disruption, 
cyber threats, data loss and third parties. Key risk indicators related to technology, information and 
cyber risks are reported to the Board on a regular basis. Independent assessment is performed by 
the Internal Audit team on the adequacy and effectiveness of the processes to manage technology, 
information and cyber risks. The risk appetite statement also explicitly sets the Company's 
tolerance level to financial loss arising from technology risks.

 Sustainability Risk

 "Sustainability risk is defined as any environmental, social or governance (ESG) event or condition 
that, if it occurs, could cause an actual or a potential material negative impact on the value of the 
investment and enterprise value. The Company has integrated ESG considerations into the 
investment activities.

 At present, the Company manages social and governance-related risk through existing frameworks 
and policies. In order to build resilience as the world transits to a low-carbon economy, the 
Company has formalised the Environmental Risk Management Policy which sets forth guiding 
principles and minimum standards in managing environmental risk within the Company. 
Environmental risk arises from the potential adverse impact to the Company's business, operations 
and balance sheet due to changes in the environment that impact economic activities and human 
well-being. Environmental issues that are of concern include climate change, loss of biodiversity, 
pollution and changes in land use. Environmental risk can manifest in three dimensions of risk as 
follows:

 • Physical risk – impact of weather events and long-term or widespread environmental changes.  It 
arises from acute (event-driven) and chronic (long term shift) climate-related events that 
damage property, reduce productivity and disrupt trade.
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31. ENTERPRISE RISK GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D.)

 Sustainability Risk (cont'd.)

 • Transition risk – arises from the process of adjustment to an environmentally sustainable 
economy, including change in public policies, disruptive technological developments, and shifts 
in consumer and investor preferences.

 • Liability risk – arises from legal risk and claims on damages and losses incurred from inaction or 
lack of action that results in the effects of physical and transition risks.

 The Company’s risk assessment considers the financial and non-financial impacts from physical 
and transition risks arising from climate change. With this, the organisation has put in place 
processes, methodology, and both qualitative and quantitative tools to identify and assess 
environmental risk for investment portfolios. For investment portfolio, the objective is to build 
resilient investment portfolios whilst striking a balance between ESG considerations, impact and 
financial returns.
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32. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

 The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the 
fair value hierarchy:

 Fair Values Hierarchy

 Valuation
 technique

 using
 observable

 inputs
 (Level 2)

 RM
 Total

 RM

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Financial assets at FVOCI:

 Malaysian government securities

 Debt securities

 Quoted equity securities

Financial assets at FVTPL:

 Debt securities

 Quoted equity securities

 Unquoted equity securities

 Collective investment schemes

 122,532,450

 451,362,193

 -

 20,598,470

 -

 9,305,530

 95,036,933

 122,532,450

 451,362,193

 31,765,376

 20,598,470

 4,772

 9,305,530

 95,036,933

31 December 2022

 698,835,576

 Quoted
 market price

 (Level 1)
 RM

 -

 -

   31,765,376

 -

 4,772

 -

 -

 31,770,148  730,605,724
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 Valuation
 technique

 using
 observable

 inputs
 (Level 2)

 RM
 Total

 RM

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Financial assets at FVOCI:

 Malaysian government securities

 Debt securities

 Quoted equity securities

Financial assets at FVTPL:

 Debt securities

 Quoted equity securities

 Unquoted equity securities

 Collective investment schemes

 131,487,510

 341,909,713

 -

 25,186,732

 -

 17,639,720

 184,288,036

   131,487,510

 341,909,713

 30,819,046

 25,186,732

 16,702

 17,639,720

 184,288,036

31 December 2021

 700,511,711

 Quoted
 market price

 (Level 1)
 RM

 -

 -

  30,819,046

 -

  16,702

 -

 -

 30,835,748  731,347,459

32. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D.)

 The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the 
fair value hierarchy: (cont’d.)

 Fair Values Hierarchy (cont’d.)
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32. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D.)

 Valuation Techniques

 There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy during the financial 
year.

 The following is a description of the method by which the fair values of financial instruments which 
are recorded at fair value are determined using valuation techniques. These incorporate the 
Company’s estimate of assumptions that a market participant would make when valuing the 
instruments:

 FVOCI /FVTPL Financial Assets

 The fair value of financial assets that are actively traded in organised financial markets is 
determined by reference to quoted market bid prices for assets at the close of business on the 
financial position date.

 Investments in financial instruments with embedded derivatives consist of investments in 
structured deposits. The fair values of structured deposits are determined by reference to banks' 
valuation at the close of business on the financial position date.

 For investment in Collective Investment Schemes, fair values are determined by reference to 
published net asset values.

33. REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

 The capital structure of the Company as at 31 December 2022, as prescribed under the RBC 
Framework is provided below:

2022
RM

2021
RM

Eligible Tier 1 Capital:

 Share capital (paid up)

 Reserves, including retained earnings

Tier 2 Capital:

 Eligible Reserves

Deductions

 100,000,000

 345,511,552

 445,511,552

 (1,534,215)

 (61,168,987)

 382,808,350

 100,000,000

 354,078,738

 454,078,738

 2,601,574

 (58,023,873)

 398,656,439Total Capital Available
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34. UPDATE ON THE MALAYSIAN COMPETITION COMMISSION'S (“MYCC”) CASE AGAINST 22 
GENERAL INSURERS AND PIAM

 On 22 February 2017, the Malaysian Competition Commission (“MyCC”) issued its Proposed 
Decision on an alleged infringement by the General Insurance Association of Malaysia (“PIAM”) and 
its 22 members under the Section 4(2)(a) of the Competition Act 2010 (“the Act”). MyCC’s Proposed 
Decision is with respect to the agreement reached between PIAM and the Federation of Automobile 
Workshop Owners’ Association of Malaysia (“FAWOAM”) in respect to the trade discount rates for 
parts of certain vehicle makes and labour rates for workshops under the PIAM Approved Repairers 
Scheme.

 A final decision dated 14 September 2020 was issued by the MyCC with a finding of infringement 
and the general insurance industry was imposed a financial penalty of about RM130 million. For 
GEGM, specifically, the financial penalty imposed is in the sum of RM1.9mil. The Company has filed 
its appeal against the MyCC’s final decision on 13 October 2020 and a stay application (pending 
disposal of the appeal) on 6 November 2020. The Competition Appeal Tribunal (“Tribunal”) 
delivered its decision with regard to the stay application on 23 March 2021, unanimously deciding 
to allow the insurers' respective stay applications and ordered that the Cease and Desist order and 
financial penalty imposed on all insurers be stayed pending disposal of the appeal before the 
Tribunal. Counsels for PIAM and the 22 insurers have completed their respective submissions 
before the Tribunal.

 Rebuttal submissions by counsels for the appellants started on 21.03.2022 and continued on 
24.03.2022. PIAM and the 22 insurers have concluded their submissions on 22 April 2022. In 
respect of GEGM, GEGM had concluded its rebuttal submission on 21 April 2022, during which no 
questions were raised by the Tribunal.

 On 2 September 2022, the Tribunal issued the decision and grounds of the decision on the case, 
which was to allow the appeals by PIAM & the general insurers and the Final Decision of MyCC 
dated 14.09.2020 to be set aside, while at the same time dismissing Bank Negara Malaysia 
(“BNM”)’s appeal.

 As the Tribunal had decided that there was no infringement of the Act by GEGM (as well as PIAM 
and the other 21 insurers), the MyCC’s Final Decision was set aside. Similarly, the MyCC’s direction 
to the insurers to cease and desist from implementing the agreed parts trade discount and the 
hourly labour rate for PIAM Approved Repairers Scheme (“PARS”) workshops and the financial 
penalty against the insurers was also accordingly set aside. However, there is no award of costs as 
the Tribunal is not empowered by legislation to make such an order.

 On  1 December 2022, MyCC filed an application for leave for judicial review of the Tribunal’s 
decision dated 2 September 2022 (“Leave Application”). On 4 January 2023, PIAM’s legal counsel 
was informed by the High Court that PIAM’s request for leave to appear in MyCC’s Leave 
Application has been allowed by the High Court Judge; and the hearing for the Leave Application, 
initially fixed on 10 January 2023, had been re-scheduled to 8 May 2023.
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